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December 29, 2014 

M UNICIPALITY OF SAN J UAN 

C OMMONWEAL TH OF P UERTO R ICO 
PO Box 4355 San Juan, Puerto Rico 00901-4355 

Te l: (787) 724-7171 
www.sanjuanciudadpatria.com 

Honorable Mayor Carmen Yulfn Cruz Soto, 
Members of the .Municipal Legislature and Constituents 
Municipality of San Juan, 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 

We are pleased to submit this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and Single Audit of Federal 
Financial Assistance of the Municipality of San Juan, Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Municipality), 
as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. 

Responsibility for both, the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, 
including all disclosures presented in this report, rests with the Municipality's management. All disclosures 
necessary to enable readers to gain an understanding of the Municipality' s financial activities have been 
included. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION AJlffi ECONOJ\IIIC OUTLOOK 

The Municipality is the largest municipality, principal seaport, and main governmental, financial, academic, 
cultural, and tourism center of Puerto Rico. 

The Municipality's government is composed of a Mayor, and a Municipal Legislature of 17 members 
elected in general elections every four years. The Mayor is responsible for establishing and carrying out 
the policy-making, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the municipal government and for 
appointing the senior municipal officials of the Municipality's departments. The Municipal Legislature is 
responsible, among other matters, for approving ordinances and resolutions, including the annual operating 
budget of the Municipality. 

The Municipality assumes either partial or full responsibility for providing services to its citizens related to 
public safety, urban affairs, culture and recreation, health and welfare, urban development, education, 
economic development, and other general services to its citizens. 

There are approximately 371 ,000 inhabitants with a population density of approximately 7,800 residents 
per square mile, making it the most densely populated municipality in the Island. The Municipality has an 
area 123.85 square kilometers; it bas 18 political subdivisions, or wards, and is divided into four (4) major 
districts: (1) Old San Juan, (2) Hato Rey, (3) Rio Piedras and (4) Santurce. 

Old San Juan is a compact historic district, cultural center and major tourist attraction of Puerto Rico. Ha to 
Rey is the main banking and financial services center of Puerto Rico having the headquarters of all major 
banks. Rio Piedras is the transportation hub for connections with the rest of the Island and Puerto Rico's 
principal educational center having the main campus of the University of Puerto Rico. Santurce is a center 
for government and private offices. 



According to statistics published by the Government Development Bank of Puerto Rico, the average family 
income (AFI) in San Juan was approximately Sl 7,000 for 2014. 

The Island·s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) and Gross National Product (GNP) have increased steadily 
over the past decade. The GDP is the total of consumer, investment and government spending, plus the 
value of exports minus value of imports. GNP is the GDP added to income accruing to residents with 
investments abroad, minus income earned in domestic markets accrued to investors living abroad. In Puerto 
Rico, the GDP exceeds the GNP because of the large amount of investment from the USA in the local 
economy. Nominal GDP and GNP according to the most recent report projected amounts to $103.l million 
and S70.7 million, respectively. 

San Juan is the most important socioeconomic center in Puerto Rico. It accounts for 9.7% of the island's 
population according to the latest figures from the Bureau Census. The unemployment rate in San Juan as 
of June 30, 2014 was 9.9%, which compares favorably with the unemployment for the entire island, which 
stood at 13 .1 % for the same period. 

The economic base of the Municipality is diversified among the financial sector, wholesale and retail trade, 
small and medium sized business, shipping, tourism and the meetings and conventions industry. 

FINANCIAL REPORTING E NTITY 

The accompanying basic financial statements present, in an easily readable and efficiently organized way, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality, as of June 30, 2014, the respective 
changes in financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, and the cash flows 
of the proprietary fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). 

INTERNAL C ONTROLS 

The management of the Municipality is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal 
controls to ensure that the assets of the Municipality are protected from loss, theft or misuse, and that 
adequate accounting data is compiled for the preparation of its basic financial statements in conformity with 
GAAP. 

The internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives 
are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of an internal control should not 
exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires significant 
estimates and judgments by management. 

The Municipality receives financial assistance in the form of grants and entitlements from the governments 
of the United States of America and the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Receipt of grants is generally 
conditioned upon compliance with several terms and conditions of the grant agreements and applicable 
laws and regulations, including the expenditure of resources for eligible purposes. As a result, the 
Municipality is also responsible for ensuring that internal controls are in place to ensure that processes 
related to these financial assistance grants and entitlements are in compliance with all applicable laws and 
regulations. 
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BUDGETARY AND FISCAL POLICIES AND JNITIATIVES 

The fiscal year of the Municipality begins on July 1. The Mayor is required by law to submit an annual 
balanced budget of revenues and expenditures of its operations pursuant ro Chapter 7 of the Autonomous 
Municipalities Law for the approval of Municipal Legislature. Appropriations made for any fiscal year shall 
not exceed the total estimated revenues, including available surplus, estimated for said fiscal year unless 
the imposition of taxes sufficient to cover said appropriations is provided by law. 

Budgetary control resides at the functions/program level within the general fund. The Municipality also 
maintains an encwnbrance accounting system as one method of maintaining budgetary control. The annual 
budgets include an estimate of revenues and other resources for the ensuing fiscal year under laws and 
regulations existing at the time the budgets are prepared. 

During the fiscal year ended on June 30, 2014, this municipal administration has taken the necessary fiscal 
initiatives and extensive budgetary controls that allows the Municipality to finish for the second year with 
a surplus in the general fund. 

During fiscal year 2014, the Municipality borrowed $85.2 million from commercial banks through the 
issuance of Series E of the 2013 Municipal General Obligation Notes amounting lo $50.3 million, $29.9 
million and S5 million respectiYely, for the purpose of providing working capital, financing capital projects 
and the financial resources needed to repay certain operating expenses. 

The Municipality continues to be focused on various efforts to increase the Municipality's recurring 
revenue base. Redevelopment strategies are planned and executed in areas where economic activity and 
residential levels have plummeted. Initiatives for these areas include mix use development as to fulfill 
commercial and residential needs. 

The objectives of these controls and initiatives were to stabilize the financial position, results of operations 
and cash flows of the Municipality while ensuring compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual 
appropriated budgets approved by the Municipal Legislature. 

More detailed information about the Municipality's budget and fiscal policies can be found in the 
accompanying management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), the notes to the basic financial statements, 
and the Budgetary Comparison Schedule presented in the Financial Section. 

@_ PROSPECTS FOR THE FUTURE 

The Municipality is cormnitted to pursue solutions to improve the competitive economic performance and 
the quality of life for its residents. The Municipality's economic development program includes initiatives 
aimed at producing more diversified and sustainable economic development. Five important elements of 
these initiatives are the following: (1) developing a world-class infrastructure, while encouraging private 
investment with innovative financial models and agile, effective evaluation processes; (2) accelerating the 
Municipality's entry into the knowledge economy by creating a center for excellence in biotechnology, 
engineering and computing; (3) promoting local enterprise and supporting local businesses by providing 
innovative financing alternatives and access to domestic and foreign markets; ( 4) transforming the 
Municipality's government, without the need to layoff or privatization, through effective consolidation of 
municipal agencies and decentralization functions to offer first-class services to all citizens in a sensible, 
effective and agile manner; and (5) refocused strategic projects related to the citizens' health. 
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CAPITAL ASSETS 

The accompanying basic financial statements include the capital assets of the Municipality. A discussion 
and more detailed information about capital assets can also be found in the accompanying MD&A and the 
notes to the basic financial statements. 

DEBT ADJ\IIINISTRA TION 

The Municipality has a number of debt issues outstanding at June 30, 2014. The Puerto Rico Municipal 
Financing Law of 1996 (Law 64-1996), limits the amount of debt service that can be incurred by the 
Municipality with respect to issued or guaranteed debt to 10 percent of the total assessed value of the 
property located within the Municipality, plus the balance of the ad valorem taxes in the debt service fund, 
for bonds payable and bond anticipation notes to be repaid with the proceeds of property taxes restricted 
for debt service. The Municipality is in compliance with the debt limitation requirements at June 30, 2014. 
See the computation of the legal debt margin in the statistical section of this report. More detailed 
information about long-term obligations can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements. 

FINAN CL;\!, ADVISOR AND FISCAL AGENT 

The principal functions of the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB) are to serve as 
financial advisor to and fiscal agent for the Municipality in connection with the issuance of bonds and notes. 
GDB is a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT 

Chapter X of the Basic Standards Regulation issued by the Puerto Rico Municipal Affairs Commissioner 
requires the Municipality to have an annual financial audit of its basic financial statements performed by 
independent certified public accountants. This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report has the intention 
to fulfill such requirements. 

HLB Parissi, P.S.C was selected to perform the independent audit of the Municipality's basic financial 
statements, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, in accordance with government auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. The goal of the independent audit was to 
provide reasonable assurance that the basic financial statements of the Municipality for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2014 are fairly stated in accordance with GAAP. The independent auditors' report on the 
accompanying basic financial statements is included in the financial section of this report. 

This space was intentionally left blank. 

v 



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The preparation of this report required the collective efforts of several municipal officials and employees 
of our Department of Finance, and our financial and management consultants. We sincerely appreciate the 
professionalism and dedication of these individuals. Due credit should also be given to the Honorable 
Carmen Yulin Cruz Soto, Mayor, for her unwavering support and commitment to better and improYed fiscal 
and administrative policies. 

This report confi.nns our c-0mmitment to maintain our basic financial statements in conformity with the 
highest standards of financial accountability. 

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN JUAN, 
COMMONWEAL ID OF PUERTO RICO 

VI 



Municipality of San Juan 
(Con11no11wealth of Puerto Rico) 
List of Principal Officials 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

ELECTED OFFICIALS 

MAYOR 
Hon. Carmen Yulfn Cruz Soto 

ELECTED MUNICIPAL LEGISLATURE 

PRESIDENT 
*Hon. Yolanda Zayas Santana 

*Hon. Carlos R. Diaz Velez *Hon. Jimmy D. Zorrilla Mercado 
*Hon. Marco A. Rigau Jimenez *Hon. Javier Gutierrez Aymat 
*Hon. Jose E. Rosario Cruz *Hon. Carlos Avila Pacheco 
*Hon. Yvette del Valle Soto *Hon. Pedro Maldonado Melendez 
*Hon. Aixa Morell Perell6 *Hon. Antonia Pons Figueroa 
*Hon. Claribel Martmez Marmolejos *Hon. Elba A. Valles Perez 
*Hon. Ivan 0. Puig Oliver *Hon. Sara de la Vega Ramos 
*Hon. AnJbal Rodriguez Santos *Hon. Adrian Gonzalez Costa 

APPOINTED OFFICIALS 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Andres R. Garcfa Martin6 

Deputy Administrator 
Marfa Burgos Figueroa 

Deputy Administrator 
Noelia Y. Rosa Jaime 

vu 

Deputy Administrator 
Ada Burgos Archilla 



{ ( ( ( ( 

Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Organizational Chart 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

I 

I 
Ma idpal LePlahlN 

\'olawlaZ.7H Saatau I 
I 

.....,,,u 

( ( ( ( ( 

I 
Citiuu 

I 

~la~·or 
Hoo. Carmen Yalia Crill Soro 

I ........ - Ciry :\dmiai11raror >--

Miuta ..... l'fpere. :\adre1 Carcia ~lartiaci 

I 

omce or ADiHCU .... Departmut of - Department of Departmeat for - Nilu A!Miu Peia Hu Ith RK.reatloa aad Commuaity 
~Mnlaa Sport.I Sodal ... 

Rom.in f..l'Xlrch P ed.ro .'\. Ro ju Denlopmear 
omce of Legal :\tr.ft Calaf.at Sara !f.:llitu 

D aclo Leda. Zaira z. Ciron Saa Jaaa Police - .-\aadon (Iaterina) Departmuat Department or 
.... Com. CaiDermo - Art, Calture a.nd Officef'or 

Calb:ro Ro~u laao"a tlo a " 'omen' s ... 
omcesofSenricu Noelia Qaintuo lntqral 

and Ciriuiu Hereada DH•elopmuu - Rupolllib.ility MuJcipal Offiet Sara 1. Beaitu 
:\Jba &rmiidu ..__ for Emerceades Edncacioaal Deli: ado 

Alan1ge:muat & P1gaa ~bulicip.aJ Systl!m Dbastu -
Administration Dr1. En~'ll Dt.partmeat of 

Office or Nazario Lago LaFootaiae Economic 
Burgos Developmut Comm11aic1tioa1 

'Carmea StrrallO Cru Office fo r aadToarinn 
Chilclru ~OmarJ. - D.e,·elopmeat Cuadrado 

Myraa Hunaads S1.aua1 -s-. ...... "" 

San Jun 
U.U,•,ersity Colltge 

- Dra. Haydtt 
Zayu Ht.raand.u 

(Iatuiaa) 

vm 

( ( ( ( ( ( 

Of&e of hteraaJ Audit 
Zulaib Fum Pa~ CPA 

....... I ; ....... ,_ ....,.A. I ' bater 
Ma ..... Al'tllma .,..x; .. .J.-. 

Department or Deput.m.ut of Office or 
Mau.gemeat and Urbaa Pla.aaiag, Operatloa1 aad. 

Ea1i roameat and - Oraameau ,_ Bade et 
Espuaua Ratz Permit1 Maria Bargo1 Rio• Jose Rivera Figueroa 

Santana 
omceor 

Departmual or Information 
Office of Permits UrbaaD~ 

,_ 
Tttbology 

Karia.a A. Jimus - aad Project E.speraua Ran 
Rn•era De\•elopmeat Rio1 

.-\da Burgos 
Archilla Offiee of Flaaace 

Offic·t oCPlanaiag (Iale.rina) Syh•ette R. ,_ 
aad Laad Use Cordero Sanchu 

Jorgt.R. Departmeat oC 
HuaaAduFll''lle Homing 1ad Offic,e of' - Urban Ad.ministration of 

Developmt.at - Haman Ruo11rc11 
Office for Orlaado Fraaoo andLaboT 

Ea\iro ameal.al \ 'arg,H Relations 
PJ1aai.ag aad Lie. Marta Y t.ra 
CompJi1a1:<t Ramiru 

Noelia Y. Rota 
Jaime (lntt.rin1) Offietof 

}1imidpaJ 
- Sttrt.l•I')' 

~lacdit.J 1. Pirez 
Couilu 



FINANCIAL SECTION 



-

- - - - --

Independent Auditors' Report 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the Municipal Legislature and Constituents 

Municipality of San Juan 
San Juan, Puerto Rico 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund informati.on of the Municipality of San 
Juan, San Juan, Puerto Rico (the Municipality) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits concained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

650 Munoz Rivera Ave Suite 502 San Juan, PR 00918-4149 • PO Box 195607 San Juan. PR 00919-5607 
Phone 787 .641.9801 • Fax 787 641.9809 • www.pariss1cpa .com 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of San Juan as of June 30, 2014, and 
the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 5 through 17 and 76 through 77 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions of the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and 
individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management 
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, 
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Office of Management and 
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, is presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information 
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
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accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with audilting standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole. 

The accompanying financial data schedules of tbe Municipality are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by tbe U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the financial data schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 29, 
2014, on our consideration of the Municipality's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compl iance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Municipality's internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

December 29, 2014 
Stamp No. E88693 was affixed 
LO the original of this report 
License No. 88Exp. December I, 2017 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonweal.th of Puerto Rico) 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Financial Highlights 

The Management of the Municipality of San Juan (the Municipality) provides 
this discussion and analysis of the Municipality's financial position and results of 
operations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. 

Since this discussion and analysis is designed to focus on the current fiscal year 
activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, we suggest reading it in 
conjunction with the accompanying basic financial statements. 

• Total assets decreased $37.5 million (3.0% decrease) during the current fiscal year and amounted 
to S l.2 billion at June 2014. 

• Total liabilities decreased $67.1 million (5.5% decrease) during the current fi scal year and 
amounted to $1. 1 billion at June 2014. 

• Total deferred inflows of resources increased $15.4 million (16.6% increase) during the current 
fiscal year and amounted to $109.2 milLion at June 2014. 

• Total net position increased $ 14.1 million (27.4% increase) during the current fiscal year and 
amounted to $32.7 billion (deficit) at June 2014. 

• Toca! revenues increased $12.8 million (1.9% increase) during the current fiscal year and 
amounted to $683.9 million for the fiscal year ended June 2014. 

• Toca! expenses increased $6.3 million (0.9% increase) during the current fiscal year and 
amounted to $665.2 million for the fiscal year ended June 2014. 

• Total fund balances of governmental funds decreased $9.7 million (4.9% decrease) during the 
current fiscal year and amounted to $ 192.4 million at June 2014. 

• Total fund balances of the general fund increased $10.5 million (97 .9% increase) during the 
current fiscal year and amounted to $2 l.2 million at June 2014. 

• During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the Municipality borrowed $85.2 million for the 
purposes of: (a) providing working capital to repay certain operating expenses and past due 
liabilities outstanding since 2012 ($50.3 million), (b) obtaining the funding needed to pay the 
fourth installment of the 2007 early retirement termination benefit plan ($29.9 million), and (c) 
financing the acquisition, construction and improvement of capital assets ($5.0 million). 

This discussion and analysis is required supplementary information to the basic financial statements and 
is intended to serve as introduction to the basic financial statements of the Municipality. The basic 
financial statements are comprised of three components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) 
fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains required 
supplementary information (budgetary schedule) and additional supplementary information (combining 
financial statements) in addition to the basic financial statements. 
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Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide users of the financial statements with a 
broad overview of the Municipality's finances using the accrual basis of accounting. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Municipality's assets and liabilities, and 
deferred inflows/outflows of resources and their difference reported as net position. Fluctuations in net 
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Municipality is improving 
or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Municipality's net position changed 
during the fiscal year. AJl changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise 
to the change occurs, regardless of the tinling of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are 
reported in the Statement of Activities regardless of when cash is received or paid. The Statement of 
Activities is focused on both the gross and net cost of various activities, which are funded by the 
government's general tax and other revenue sources. This is intended to summarize and simplify the 
users' analysis of cost of various governmental services. 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Municipality that are 
mostly supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions 
that are financed with debt that is secured by a pledge of the net revenues from rent service charge of the 
International Center. The governmental activities include general government, public safety, urban 
affairs, culture and recreation, health and welfare, urban development, economic development and 
education. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the Municipality's most significant 
funds, not the Municipality as a whole. The Municipality has two categories of funds. 

Governmental funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near term inflows 
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of expendable resources available at the end 
of the fiscal year. Such information is useful in evaluating the Municipality's near term financial 
requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government wide financial statements. By doing 
so, users of the basic financial statements may better understand the long-term impact of the 
Municipality's near term financial decisions. The governmental funds Balance Sheet and the 
governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficit) 
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental 
activities. 
Proprietary fund - Proprietary funds are used to account for activities that operate more like those of 
business enterprises. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the business-type 
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activities in the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. Like the government-wide 
financial statements, proprietary fund financial statements use the accrual basis of accounting. There are 
no reconciling items between the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund financial 
statements. The only proprietary fund operated by the Municipality is the International Center. The basic 
proprietary fund financial statements can be found immediately following the governmental funds 
financial statements. 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the government-wide financial statements and the funds financial statements. 

Required Supplementary Information 

The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information. This 
section includes a budgetary comparison schedule, which includes reconciliation between the statutory 
fund balance for budgetary purposes and the fund balance for the General Fund as presented in the 
governmental fund financial statements. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE 

Net Position 
Condensed net position information is presented below (in thousands) : 

Capital assets 
Other assets 

Total assets 

ASSEIS 

LIABILI'.IIES 
Currreot liabilities 
Noocurreot liabilities 

Total li abi lities 

DEFfRR.FD INFLOWS 0 F RES 0 URCES 

NET PO SIDON 
Net investment in capilal assets 

Restricted tor: 
Debt service 
01ber purposes 

Deficit 
Total net position 

s 

Go,'tromental 

acthities 
2014 

648,846 

523.010 
I, 171.856 

197,380 

901.272 
1,098,652 

109.236 

333.037 

s 

2013 

662,252 

546.356 
1.208,608 

248,350 

916,774 
1.165,124 

93,688 

385.430 

s 

Business-type 
activities 

2014 

51.815 
2,024 

53,839 

1,757 
53,372 

55,129 

(2,167) 

s 

2013 

52,724 
1,813 

54.537 

1,729 
53,982 

55.711 

(1.827) 

Total 
2014 2013 

s 700,661 s 714,976 

525,034 548, 169 

1.225,695 1,263,145 

199,137 250,079 
954.644 970,756 

1,1 53.781 1,220,835 

109.236 93,688 

330.870 383.603 

88.330 78,670 88.330 78,670 
16,557 20.333 16,557 20,333 

(473,956) (534,637) 877 653 (473,079) (533,984) 
s (36,032) s (50,204) s (1,290) s (1,174) s (37,322) s (51,378) 

The Municipality' s total assets amounted to $ 1 ,226 million at June 30, 2014, a decrease of $37.3 rniUion 
when compared with the prior fiscal year. The decrease in other assets of $23.1 million is mainly due to 
the decrease of unrestricted cash and cash equivalents in commercial banks and restricted cash. The 
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reason for the decrease in cash and cash equivalents is mainly because the Municipality paid its accounts 
payable and accrued liabilities on a more timely basis. 

The Municipality's total liabilities amounted to $1,153.8 million at June 30, 2014, a decrease of $67.1 
million when compared with the prior fiscal year. The decrease is mainly due to a decrease in accounts 
payable and accrued liabilities during the current fiscal year, as available cash was used to pay these 
liabilities on a more timely basis. 

The Municipality's deferred inflows of resources amounted to $109.2 m.iWon at June 30, 2014, an 
increase of $15.5 million when compared with prior year. The increase is mainly due to an increase of 
$12.0 million in unearned intergovernmental grants and contributions and $3.5 in unearned municipal 
license truces. The increase of $6.8 million (6.9% increase) in deferred inflows of resources related to 
municipal license taxes is mainly related to the increase of $8.3 million of municipal license tax 
receivables not meeting the availability criteria for revenue recognition in the general fund since were not 
subsequently collected within ninety days after June 30, 2014. In addition, there was an increase in 
unearned intergovernmental grants is due to a grant provided by a corporation of the Commonwealth. In 
2013 the grant was in process of being reassigned to another capital project and, therefore, was recorded 
as an intergovernmental payable pending approval by the granting authority. 

The largest portion of the Municipality's net position is the deficit of $473.1 rniJlion. The net position 
consist of the excess of assets and deferred outflows over related liabilities and deferred inflows that are 
not externally or legally restricted, or invested in capital assets. This deficit is the consequence of 
previous budgets which did not provide funding for incurred long-term obligations such as compensated 
absences, landfill closure and post closure costs, claims and judgments and others. Historically, such 
obligations have been budgeted on a pay as you go basis without providing funding for their future 
liquidation. Consequently, the Municipality cannot draw from its existing assets to provide services to its 
citizens and depends on its taxing ability to continue its operations. 

An additional portion of the Municipality's net position represents the net investment in capital assets 
such as land, infrastructure, buildings, equipment, among others, less any outstanding related debt used to 
acquire those assets. The Municipality uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although, the Municipality's investment 
in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay 
this debt must be provided from the Debt Service Fund, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used 
to liquidate these liabilities. The amounts restricted for debt service represent another portion of the net 
position, and these are resources subject to external restrictions for the purposes explained above. 

This space was intentionally left blank. 
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Changes in Net Position 

The condensed changes in net position information are presented below (in thousands): 

Revenues: 
Program revenues: 
Charges for services 
Operating grants and contnbutions 
Capital grants and contributions 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 
Municipal license taxes 
Sales and usages taxes 
Construction excise taxes 
Intergovernmental grants and comributions. 

not restricted 10 specific programs 
Interests on deposit 
M iscellaneous re,·enues 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 
Program expenses: 
General government 
Public safety 
Urban affairs 
Culture and recreat ion 
Health and welfare 
Urban development 
Economic development 
Education 
Interests on long-cem1 debt 
International Center 

Total expenses 

Net increase (decrease) in net position 
Net posit ion at beginning of fiscal year 
Net position at end of fiscal year 

Go\-ernmentaJ 
acthities 

2014 2013 

Business-type 
acti\i ties 

2014 2013 
Totals 

2014 2013 

s 50.100 s 52.580 s 2.529 s 2.180 s 52.629 s 54,760 
101.103 130.184 101,103 130.184 

12.100 5.051 12.100 5.051 

254.451 
124.654 
62.341 

26.056 

40.180 

6.048 
1.397 

678.430 

114.752 

60.840 
139.051 
24.640 

200.710 

6.882 
22.510 
53,965 

40.908 

664.258 

234.475 
118.402 

59.633 
14.870 

38.465 
7,422 

5.883 
666,965 

108.723 

63.405 
81.715 
23.910 

247.561 

52.388 
24.760 

19.589 

36.572 

658.623 

14,172 8.342 

(50.204) (58.546) 
s (36.032) s (50.204) 

2.904 1.967 
5.433 4,147 

5.549 4.887 

5,549 4,887 

( 116) (739) 

( I. 17 4) __ (;_43_5,:_) 
s (1.290) s (1.174) 

254,451 

124.654 
62,341 
26.056 

40.180 

6.048 
4.301 

683,863 

114,752 

60.840 
139.051 

24.640 
200.710 

6.882 

22.510 
53.965 
.t0.908 

5.549 
669.807 

14.056 
(51 .378) 

$ (37.322) 

234,475 

118.402 
59.633 
14.870 

38,465 

7.422 
7.850 

671,I 12 

108.723 

63.405 
81.715 

23.910 
247.561 

52.388 
24.760 

19.589 
36.572 
4,887 

663.510 

7,602 
(58,981) 

s (51,379) 

The Municipality's total revenues increased by approximately $ 12.7 million. Approximately, 68.4% 
(63.7% in 2013) of the Mun icipality's total revenue came from taxes, while approximately 22.4% (25.9% 
in 2013) resulted from grants and contributions, including federal aid. Charges for services provided 
approximately 7.7% (8.2% in 20 13) of the total revenues. 

Revenues from taxes increased by approximately $40. l million. The increase on tax revenues result from 
new tax collection efforts implemented in fiscal year 2014 and the effect of changes to the sales and use 
tax laws in fiscal year 2014. Revenues from construction and other local taxes increased $11.2 million 
due to the increase in construction projects mainly financed by the private sector. 

9 



-

Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Charges for services decreased by approximately $2.1 million or 3.9% when compared with the prior 
fi scal year mainly related to the decrease in fines, penalties and forfeitures, which do not follow an 
specific economic trend or level from year to year, the decrease in revenues arising from municipal 
properties leased and the overall slight decrease in the economic activity in Puerto Rico during the current 
fi scal. The decrease in fines and penalties referred to previously is closely related to the Municipality's 
increased collection efforts implemented in the current year which minimized the rate of past-due tax 
receivables subject to fines and penalties, therefore, decreasing such revenues in the current year. 

The following charts summarize the Municipality's revenues by sources for the governmental activities 
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013. 

Revenues by Source-Governmental Activities 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 

Operating Grants 
and contnbutions_ 

22.6% 

Construction and 
olherlocal taxes 

3.8% 

Charges for 
Services 7 .4% Propeny Taxes 

! 37.5% 

Municipal 
---- License Taxes 

18.4% 

Revenues by Source-Governmental Activities 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 

Operating Grants 
and contnoutions-

26.0% 

Cons11Uction and 
other local taxes 

2.2% 

Charges for 
Services 7.9% 

Sales Tax 8.9% 

10 

Propeny Taxes 
35.2% 

Municipal 
License Taxes 
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The Municipality's total expenses amounted to $669.8 million and $663.5 million for the fiscal years 
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The increase of $6.0 million in general government 
expenses (6% increase) is mainly due to the effect of Act No. 32 of June 25, 2013, which required the 
Municipality to make a new additional uniform contribution of $4.3 million to the employees' retirement 
system for the first time during the current fiscal year. The remaining increase of $1.7 million (2.0% 
increase) in general government expenses is related to the overa11 inflationary effect over operating 
expenses in comparison with the prior fiscal year. 

The increase of $57.3 million in urban affairs expenses is manly related to the decrease of $45.5 rnilJion 
in urban development expenses. During the current fiscal year the Municipality adopted the urban affairs 
acti vity for budgetary purposes and consequently, in the accompanying financial stacements. The urban 
affairs activity in the current fiscal year includes certain expenses previously reported within urban 
development expenses. The net increase in both combined activities amounted to $7.2 million (5.4% 
increase) which is mainly related to increased urban-related services rendered to citizens and the overall 
inflationary effect over operating expenses in comparison with the prior fiscal year. 

Health and welfare expenses decreased $46.9 million mainly due to the increase of $34.3 million in 
education expenses. During the current fi scal year, the Municipality reclassified certain education 
activities previously reported within health and welfare activities for budgetary and financial reporting 
purposes. In addition, the decrease in health and welfare expenses is related to closing of Las Antillas 
Municipal hospital during the current fi scal year. 

The following chart summarizes the Municipality' s program revenues compared to program expenses for 
the governmental activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013. 

5250,000 

$200,000 

SIS0,000 

$ 100,000 

SS0,000 

S-

Expenses and Program Revenues-Governmental Activities 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 (In thousands) 

• Expenses • Program Revenues 
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Expenses and Program Revenues-Governmental Activities 
for the fiscal year ended JWJ.e 30, 2013 (In tbomands) 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY'S INDIVIDUAL FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the Municipality's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Municipality's 
financing requirements. In addition, fund balance for governmental funds provide classifications that 
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the Municipality is bound to honor 
constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's governmental funds reported combined fund 
balances of $187.8 million, a net decrease of $9.7 million in comparison with the prior year. The 
combined fund balances include nonspendable fund balances amounting to $13.7 million at June 30, 
2014. This is the portion of fund balances that cannot be spent readily with cash or is legally or 
contractually required not to be spent in the other governmental funds or they are not expected to be 
converted in cash soon enough to affect the current period. There are restricted fund balances amounting 
to $190.7 million. This is the portion of fund balance that reflects resources that are subject to externally 
enforceable legal restrictions 1) to pay for specific program purposes ($40.6 million); 2) to pay for capital 
projects ($79.1 million; and 3) to pay for debt services ($71.0 million). 

Governmental funds include the General Fund, which is the main operating fund of the Municipality. As 
of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the general fund bas an accumulated fund balance of $21.2 million and $10.7 
million, respectively. Key factors in the increase of General Fund's balance are as follows: 

• Increase of $22. l million in total revenues. 
• Other financing sources and special item of $76.5 million 
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The increase of $22.1 million in total revenues was mainly due to the increase of $9.2 million, $4.1 and 
$1.5 million in construction taxes, sales and usage taxes and charges for services, respectively. 

The increase in excise tax revenues in 2014 is due to increased audit efforts implemented in fi scal year 
2014 in addition to various major private and public construction projects talcing place in San Juan. 

Intergovernmental payables decreased from $19 million to $4.5 million as a result of the Municipality's 
efforts renegotiating payment plans, prompt payments and renegotiating amounts due from prior years. 

Deferred inflows for property taxes increased from $20 million to $30 million, or 50% based on the 
Municipality's application of the availability criteria for revenue recognition. During the year, the 
Municipality estimated that more property taxes were deemed unavailable for recognition . 

The increase of $37 .7 million in expenditures was mainly due to increases in general government and 
debt service expenditures. The increase in general government results from the increase in contributions 
required for the employee retirement system. 

Other financing sources amounting to $76.5 million in the general fund result from the proceeds of long­
term debt issued of approximately $80.2 million and net transfers out of approximately $4 million. 
Included in transfers to other governmental funds are $6.4 from the debt service fund to the general fund 
as allowed by Act No. 64 of July 3, 1996, as amended. Act No. 64 allows municipalities that have interest 
earned over funds to repay general obligations bonds to transfer such interest income to the general fund 
for operating purposes. Also, there are transfers of $3.9 million from capital improvements bond fund to 
general fund as a reimbursement for certain expenses incurred by general fund on behalf of these funds, 
net from transfers amounted to approximately $12.9 million to federal programs and capital 
improvements bond fund to cover certain expenditures. 

The increase in debt sources of the general fund is caused by the payment of a credit line during the year. 

The fund balance of the debt service fund as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 amounted to $71.0 million and 
$63.7 mill,ion, respectively. The increase of $7.2 million in the fund balance of the debt service fund is 
the result of revenues from the special ad valorem tax and intergovernmental grant and contributions 
restricted for debt service and accounted for in the debt service fund of $99.2 million net of payment of 
principal and interest of $92.0 million and the above mentioned transfer to the general fund for operating 
purposes. 

In the capital improvements bond fund, cash decreased $25.8 million as funds were used in capital 
improvement projects. Interfund balances with decreased as the fund satisfied the amounts owed to the 
general fund. The decrease of capital outlay of $23 million, 46% is in line with the completion of capital 
improvement projects during 2014. 

Proprietary Fund 

The proprietary fund financial statements present the financial position, results of operations and cash 
flows of the International Center fund, which accounts for the leasing operations and maintenance of a 
real estate property. 
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At June 30, 2014, the total assets of the proprietary fund amounted to $53.8 million of which $51.8 
million represents capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, while $1.8 million represents cash in 
commercial banks. The total liabilities at year-end amounted to $55.1 million, consisting principally of 
revenue bonds payable of $53.9 million and interest payable of $1.l million. 

Revenues of the leased facilities have decreased as the former tenant declared bankruptcy, and has 
defaulted in rent payments. The Municipality is currently under negotiations with new potential tenants to 
increase the rent revenue and use of the facilities. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

The Municipality approved an original budget for the General Fund of $476.7 million. During the year, 
there was one amendment to reclassify appropriations among different activities that were identified 
during the course of the fiscal year based on current developments that affected the Municipality's 
finances. In addition, there were transfers of appropriations between the original and final budget due to 
changes in departments' budgeted expenditures. On the budgetary basis, actual revenues of the General 
Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 were $527.2 million while actual expenditures were $512.5 
million. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

The Municipality's investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 amounted to approximately 
$701.8 million and $7 15 million, respectively, net of accumulated depreciation. This investment in 
capital assets includes land, buildings, sites, improvements, equipment, intangibles, infrastructure, works 
of art, vehicles and construction in progress. Infrastructure assets are items that are oormaUy immovable 
and of value only to the Municipality, such as roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, 
lighting systems, and similar items. 

l.an d and inl>ro ve men ls 

Works ofa.rt and historical treasures 

Buildings and building inl>rovemenls 

Site improvements 

lnfras tru cture 

Equipment and vehicles 

Construction in progress 

Total 

Governmental 

acthities (in thousands) 

2014 2013 

s 123,271 s 123,271 

2,224 2,224 

220.965 236,753 

57,007 62,353 

187,692 189,049 

20,617 19,727 

37,252 28,875 

s 649,028 s 662).52 

Business-type 

acthities (m thousands) 

2014 2013 

s 18,600 $ 18,600 

33,214 34.124 

s 51,814 s 52,724 

Totals (in lhous ands) 

2014 2013 

s 141 ,871 s 141,871 

2,224 2,224 

254.179 270,877 

57,007 62,353 

187,692 189,049 

20,617 19,727 

37).52 28,875 

$700,842 $714,976 

The decrease in the Municipality' s capital assets was 1.9% under last year. Actual expenditures to 
purchase or construct capital assets from the Municipality's governmental activities for the fiscal years 
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were $29.2 million and $5 1.1 million, respectively. Depreciation charges 
from tbe Municipality's governmental and business-type activities amounted to $43.3 million and $42.0 
million for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 
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The Municipality finances a significant portion of its construction activities through bond issuances. The 
proceeds from bond issuances designated for construction activities are committed in its entirety for such 
purposes and cannot be used for any other purpose. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Municipality bas 
approximately $5.0 million and $18.7 million, respectively, of unexpended proceeds from bond issuances 
that are restricted or committed to future construction activities. 

Additional details regarding the Municipality's capital assets can be found in Note 7 to the financial 
statements. 

Debt Administration 

The Puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the issuance of general obligation municipal 
bonds and notes for the payment of which the good faith , credit and taxing power of each municipality 
may be pledged. 

Based on the estimated total net assessed valuation of real and personal property in San Juan of 
approximately $26.6 billion at June 30, 2014, the legal debt limit margin of the Municipality was $2.6 
billion at the end of the current fiscal year. The Municipality's available legal debt margin as of June 30, 
2014, was calculated by GDB to equal $2.3 billion after subtracting from the legal margin the amount of 
$436.6 million in outstanding general obligation debt as of June 30, 2014, and adding to the legal margin 
the amount in its Redemption Fund of $71.0 million as of June 30, 2014. 

The applicable law also requires that in order for a municipality to be able to issue additional general 
obligation bonds and notes such municipality must have sufficient "payment capacity." Law No. 64 of 
July 3, 1996, as amended, provides that a municipality has sufficient "payment capacity" to incur 
additional general obligation debt if the deposits in such municipality's debt service fund and the annual 
amounts collected with respect to such municipality's Special Additional Tax (as defined below), as 
projected by GDB, will be sufficient to service to maturity the Municipality' s outstanding general 
obligation debt and the additional proposed general obligation debt (payment capacity). The rating 
assigned is BBB by Standard & Poor' s Investor Services. 

The Municipality is required under applicable law to levy the Special Additional Tax in such amounts as 
shall be required for the payment of its general obligation municipal bonds and notes. In addition, 
principal of and interest on all general obligation municipal bonds and notes and on all municipal notes 
issued in anticipation of the issuance of general obligation bonds issued by the Municipality constitute a 
first lien on the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues. Accordingly, the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues 
would be available to make debt service payments on general obligation municipal bonds and notes to lhe 
extent that the Special Additional Tax levied by the Municipality, together with moneys on deposit in the 
Municipality's Debt Service Fund, are not sufficient to cover such debt service. It has never been 
necessary to apply basic taxes to pay debt service on general obligation debt of the Municipality. 

During fiscal year 2014, the Municipality issued bonds and notes amounting to $85.2 million to provide 
for construction projects and equipment needs of the Municipality, and finance the current portion of an 
early retirement termination benefit. General obligation debt includes bonds, notes and mortgage as 
shown in the table below, in thousands: 
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Gol~rnmental 

acthities 

2014 2013 
Bonds payable $ 436,591 $ 479,437 

Noces payable 442,056 401,170 

Revenue bonds 

Mortgage payable 2,622 3,062 

Total $ 881,269 $ 883,669 

$ 

$ 

Business -type 

activities 

2014 2013 
$ 

53,982 5-'.552 

53.982 $ 54,552 

$ 

$ 

Totals 

2014 2013 

-'36,591 $ 479,437 

442,056 401 ,170 

53,982 54.552 

2,622 3,062 

935,251 $ 938.221 

At June 30, 2014, the Municipality had $436.6 million of general obligation bonds outstanding. The 
following chart indicates the principal amortization of the Municipality's general obligation bonds in five­
year increments. 

Gene ral Obligation B onds 
Principal Amortization 

In F ive Years Increme nts Following Fiscal Ye ar 2014 
(In thousands) 

Fis cal Principal 
Ye ars Amortization 

2015-2019 $ 165,255 
2020-2024 92,319 
2025-2029 91,601 
2030-2034 62,591 
2035-2037 24,825 

Total $ 436,591 

As can be seen in the following chart, approximately 80.0% of the Municipality's outstanding general 
obligation bonds will be retired within the next f tfth teen ( 15) years . 

GOB Principal Amortization 
100% ..---- - ------90% .,__ ___ _ 

80% 
70% -4-----1 

60% +------' 
50% +-----
40% +-----
30% ~----

20% ------10% +-----
0% -'-----~ 

• 2037 • 2034 2029 • 20'24 • 2019 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commo11wealth of Puerto R ico) 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

The Municipality has various outstanding notes payable amounting to $442.l million at June 30, 
20 14. Those notes payable were mainly issued for the acquisition, construction or improvement of capital 
assets and for working capital purposes. These outstanding notes payable will be paid with unrestricted 
property tax revenues and financial resources arising from sales taxes recorded in the debt service 
fund. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, notes payable were issued. 

Additional details regarding the Municipality' s long-term debt can be found in Note 11 to the financial 
statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The Municipality relies primarily on property and municipal taxes as well as federal grants to carry out 
the governmental activities. Historically, property and municipal taxes have been very predictable with 
increases of approximately five percent. Federal grant revenues may vary if new grants are available but 
the revenue also is very predictable. On March 9, 2009, the Legislature of the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico approved Law No. 7, known as the Fiscal Emergency Act, for the purpose of stabilizing the financial 
condition of the central government by requiring the implementation of a cost reduction program, 
including payroll cost. The broad effect of the implementation of these measures cannot be presently 
determined at June 30, 2014. These factors were considered when preparing the Municipality's budget 
for the 2014-2015 fiscal years. 

FINANCIAL CONTACT 

The Municipality's fi nancial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, 
investors and creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality's finances and to demonstrate the 
Municipality's accounting. If you have questions about the report or need additional financial 
information, contact the Municipality's Finance Director on the 5th floor of the Municipal Tower, 160 
Chardon Avenue, San Juan, Puerto Rico 00919 or visit our website at w11w.sa11jucmciudadpatria.com. 

***** 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2014 

'-' 
....., Business -

Golernmental type - activities acti'Wties Total 

\... ASSEI'S 

'-
Cash and cash equivalents in comrrercial banks $ 137,104,109 $ $ 137,104,109 
Restricted assets: - Cash in coII11rercial banks 40,315,469 1,840,691 42,156,160 

Cash with fiscal agent 250,720,337 250,720,337 
Accounts receivable: 

Property taxes 48,039,038 48,039,038 
Municipal license taxes 9,861,697 9,861,697 
Sales and usage taxes 8,003,118 8,003,1 18 
Construction excise taxes 4,961,994 4,961,994 
lntergovemrrental grants and contributions 10,026,307 10,026,307 
Miscellaneous receivables 7,300,277 7,300,277 

~ 
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses 4,680,342 4,680,342 
Other unrestricted assets 1,998,075 1,998,075 

I,,... Internal balances (183,600) 183,600 
Capital assets not being depreciated 162,748,078 18,600,000 181,348,078 
Capital assets being depreciated, net 

of accumulated depreciatfon 486,280,428 33,214,405 519,494,833 
Total assets 1, 171,855,669 53,838,6% 1,225,694,365 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 100,879,385 100,879,385 
Accrued interests on bonds and notes 17,189,302 1,147,116 18,336,418 
Intergovernrrental payables 4,514,064 4,514,064 

\...-
Noncurren t liabilities: 

Due within one fiscal year 74,797,171 610,000 75,407,171 

'- Due in rmre than one fiscal year 901,271,868 53,371,940 954,643,808 

\,,,,.. Total liabilities 1,098,651,790 55,129,056 1,153,780,846 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF ~OURCES 
Municipal license taxes 97,235,960 97,235,960 
Intergovemrrental grants and contributions 12,000,000 12,000,000 

Total deferred inflows of resources 109,235,960 109,235,960 

NErPOSIDON 
Net investirent in capital assets 333,037,011 (2, 167 ,535) 330,869,476 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 88,329,858 88,329,858 
Other purposes 16,557,413 16,557,413 

Unrestricted (deficit) (473,956,363) 877,175 (473,079, 188) 
Total net pos ition $ (36,032,081) $ (1,290,360) $ (37,322,441) 

See notes to basic fmancial statemems. 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Statement of Activities 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Net revenues (expenses) and changes in net 
Program revenues posi tion 

Operating Capital 
Charges for gran ts and grants and G<>vcmmentnl Business-type 

Functions/Programs Expenses services con tri bu ti ons con tributions aclivities activi ties Tota.I 

Govemmenra/ activities: 
General government $ I 14.752.658 $ 3,203,678 s 9,689.347 $ $(101,859,633) $ (101,859.633) 

Public safety 60.840.546 985.799 3.203.561 (56.65 1.186) (56,651. 186) 

Urban affairs 139.050,823 40,673 28,769,650 ( 110,240,500) ( I I 0,240,500) 

Culture and recreation 24.639,844 1,180,781 1, 102.775 (22.356,288) (22,356.288) 
Health and welfare 200.7 10,231 32.717,879 14,424.119 (153,568,233) ( 153.568,233) 

Urban developmen1 6.881,842 2.315.772 158.816 12,099,640 7.692.386 7.692.386 
Economic development 22,509,693 6.006.089 4.781.665 ( 11.721.939) (11 ,721,939) 
Education 53,964,694 3,649,766 33,570,385 (16,744,543) ( 16,744,543) 

Tn1eres1s on long-term debt 40,907,845 5,403.085 (35.504,760) (35,504,760) 

Total governmental activities 664,258, 177 50,100,437 101,103,403 12,099,640 (500,954,697) (500,954,697) 

Busi11ess-iype activities: 
International Center 5,549.213 2,528,865 (3,020,348) (3,020,348) 

Total $ 669.807.390 s 52,629.302 s 101,103,403 $ 12,099,640 (500,954,697) (3,020,348) (503,975.045) 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 254,451,248 254.45 1.248 
Municipal license taxes 124,654.089 124,654.089 
Sales and usage taxes 62.34 1,300 62,341,300 
Construction excise taxes 26.055.341 26.055.34 1 
Intergovernmental !lJ"anls and contributions, 

not restricted to specific programs 40. 180.055 40,180.055 

Interests on deposits 6,048.121 6,048,121 
M isceUancous revenues 4,300,997 4,300,997 
Transfers (2,904,232) 2,904,232 

Total general revenues 515, 126,919 2,904,232 5 18,031, 15 I 
Net increase (decrease) in net position 14.1 72,222 (11 6, 116) 14.056,106 
Net position at beginning or fiscal year (50,204,303) ( I, 174,244) (5 1,378.547) 
Net posit ion nt end of fiscal year $ (36,032,08 1) $ ( 1,290,360) $ (37,322.44 1) 

See notes lo basic financial statements. 
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~ Municipality of San Juan 
\..,. (Common wealth of Puerto Rico) 

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 
\..,. June 30, 2014 

Deli Cap tal Other 
'-' General s enice imir~mcnts g~rnmental 

fund fund bond fund funds Total ,_ 
ASS EIS 

Cash and cash equivalents in conmercial banks s 137,104,1()1) s s s s 137,104,100 
Accounts receivable: - Propeny taxes 30,674,442 17,364.596 48,039,038 

Municipal license taxes 9,861,697 9,861,697 - Sales and usage taxes 7,138,427 864.691 8,003,1!8 
Construction elltise tues 4,961,994 4,961.994 - Intergovernmental grants and contribut io ns 1,548.517 18,IXXJ 8,459,790 10,026,307 
Due from other governmental funds 23.895,700 8,511,523 32.407,283 - Miscellaneous receivables 6.9&5.370 6,525 308,382 7,300;m 

"-' 
Loans receivable, net or allowance for loan losses 4,680,342 4,680,342 
Otherunresoicted assets 1.147,545 &50.530 l,9'18,075 
Resoicted assets : 

Cash io comnercial. banks 9,020,854 8,638,338 22,6S6,2n 40,315,469 

"-' Cash with fiscal agent 5,055,412 147,940,089 85,240,167 12,484,669 250, 720,337 
Total assets s 237,394,127 s 166,175,901 s 93,896,505 s 57,951,513 $ 555,418,046 

"-' 
LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities s 64.689,520 s s 7,792,054 s 10,060,637 s 82,542,21! 

\..,. Intergovernmental payables 4.514,064 4,514,064 
Due to other governmental funds 6,307,316 7,049,516 19,050,451 32,407,283 

'- Due to propietary fund 183,000 183,000 
Bonds payable 38,198,IXXJ 38, 198,IXXJ 

'-" Notes payable 16.170.IXXJ 16.170,IXXJ 
Interests payable 17.170.727 18,575 17,189,302 

Total liabilities 69,387,184 n ,846,043 14.841,570 29,129,663 191,204,460 

,_ 
DEFERRED INF1..0WS OF RESOURCES 

\-; 
Propeny taxes 30,674,442 17,364,596 48,009.038 
Municipal license taices 105,507,217 105,507,217 

._. Sales and usage taxes 2,618,850 2,618,850 
Cons rruction elltise taies 4,416,389 4,416,389 - Charges for services 1,825,006 1,825,006 
lmergovemrrental grants and conLnbutions 1.789,983 12,264,437 14,054,420 

Total deferred inflows of resources 146.831,887 17364,596 12,264,437 176,460,920 

nND BALANO'S 
Non spendable 8.197,061 5,530,872 13,727,933 
Restricted 14,076,266 70,965.262 79,054.935 26,573,561 190,670,024 

'-' 
Deficit (1 ,()1)8,271) (15,547,020~ (16,645,291) 

Tot11J fund balances 21,175,056 70,965,262 79,054,935 16,557,413 187,752,666 

'- Total liabilities , deferred inflows 
of resoun::es and fund balances s 237,394. 127 $ 166.175,901 s 93.896.505 $ 57.951.513 s 555.418.046 

'-' 
\,,..; 

See notes to basic financial statements. 

"-' 
'-' 

~ 

~ 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2014 

Total fund balances as reported in the balance sheet - governmental funds . 

Capital assecs, nee, used in governmental activities are not considered current available financia.I 

resources and, therefore, are not reported as assecs in ihe governmental funds fmancial statements. 

The following unavailable revenue streams are considered revenues for government-wide reporting in 

the stacemem or activities wbili are reported as deferred inflows of resources in the governmental 
funds : 

Property taxes 
Municipal license taxes 
Sales and usage taxes 
Construction excise taxes 
Charges for services 
lntergovemmenial grants and contn"butions 

Total 

The following long-term liabilities are not due and payable (mature) in the current period and, 
therefore. are not reported as liabilities in tbe governmental funds : 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Bonds payable 
Mortgage payable 
Notes payable 
Compensated absences 
Pension-related debt 
Claims and judgments 
Self-insurance claim liability 
Estimated liability for municipal solid waste landfill postclosure care costs 

Total 

Total net position of governmental activities 

See notes to basic financial statements. 
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$ 187,752,666 

$ 

649,028,506 

48,039,038 
8,271,257 
2,618,850 
4,416,389 
1,825,006 
2,054,420 

67,224,960 

(18,337,174) 
(398,393,000) 

(2,622,369) 
(425,885,n&) 
(60,918,484) 
(3,690,106) 
(4,303,978) 

(10.423,434) 
( 15,463,890) 

(940,038,213) 

(36,032,08 I) 



Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Governmental Fwuls 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Debt Capital Other 
General senice impr-o~-ements gowmme.ntal 

fund fund bond fu nd funds Total 
REVENUES: 

Property taxes s 151,988,766 $ 89,434,469 s s $ 241,423,235 

""' Municipal license taxes 121,433.922 121,433,922 

Sales and usage taxes 51 ,613,412 9,709,193 6l,322,605 - Consuu:t ion excise taxes 22,868.15 1 22,868,151 

Oiarges for services S0.038.095 9.728 50,047,823 

lnterests on deposi1s 985,104 103,914 4,120.857 838,246 6,048,121 

Intergovernmental grants and oon1ributions: 
Federal 111 ,375,440 111,375,440 
Local 40,180,055 540,200 813,674 41 ,533,929 

MisceUaneous revenues 3,338,877 25,721 936,399 4,300,997 
Total revenues 442,446,382 99,247,576 4,686,778 113.973,487 660.354,223 

EXPE'WTilJ RES: 
Qirrent: 

General government I 06,988,288 9,727,722 116,716,010 
Pubhc safely 53,947,062 2,994,590 56,941 ,652 
Urban affairs 78,375,631 4,629,043 44,028,386 127,033,060 
Oilture and recreation 14,106,253 1,261,275 15,367.528 
Health and welfare 182.278.822 14,537,718 J 96.816,540 
Urban devrlopmenl 7,039,058 158,816 7,197,874 
Economic development 12,219,592 4,643.083 16,862,675 
EWc:a1ion 14,556,319 38,053,039 52,609,358 

Capital outlays 26,538,942 2,629,307 29,168,249 
Debt service: 

Principal 30,859,664 54,368.000 4,344.312 89,571 ,976 
Interests 8,089,349 34,2 16,614 1.738.363 44,044.326 

Total expendi1 ures 508,460,038 88,584.614 31,167,985 124,116,611 752,329.248 

EXCESS (DIDC IENCV) OF REVENUES 
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (66,013,656) 10,662,962 (26,4S 1,207) (10,143,124) (91,975.025) 

0 1HER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Proceeds from issuance of notes 80,185,000 5,035,000 85,220,000 
Transfers from other governmental funds 12,103,415 2,981 ,509 4,709,280 13,591.370 33,385,574 
Transfers to other governmental funds ( 12,897.495) (6,391 .526) (6.872.258) (7.224,295) (33,385,574) 
Transfers to propie1ary fund (2,904,232) (2,904,232) 

Total other financing sources (uses), ne1 76,486,688 (3,410.0l7) 2,872,022 6.367.075 82,315,768 

ND' INCRFASE (DEC RF.AS Fl IN FUND BALANCES 10,473,032 7,252,945 (23,609.185) (3,776.049) (9.659.257) 

FUND BALANCES ATBf.CINNING Of FISCAL YEAR 10,702,024 63.712,317 I 02.664, l 20 20,333.462 197 ,411.923 

RJND 8A1"NC'5 AT"'" 0 F FISCAL YEA~ ~ 21, l 7S,OS6 S 70,96<,262 s 79,054.935 s 16.557.413 s 187,752.666 

\... S.. 001~ lO b•k fmMcioJ U•-" ~ ~~~ 
..... 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Reconciliation of the Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Net decrease in fund balances as reponed in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in 

fund balances - governmental funds. 

Anx>unts for governmental act:ivites reponed in the governmental funds flllllncial statements differ 
from the amounts reported in the statement of activities for the following reasons: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the 
cost of those assets is capitalized allocated over their estimated useful lives through depreciation 
expense. The following is the excess of capital outlays over depreciation expense: 

Capital outlays expenditures - capilalizable assets 
Depreciation expense 

Total 

The proceeds from issuance of notes payable provide currem available fmancial resources and, 
accordingly, are recorded as other financing sources in the governmental funds. However, such 
proceeds increase the outstanding balance of notes payable in the statement of net position. 

The repaymen! or deductions of the following long-term obligations are recorded as expenditures in the 
governmental funds, however, are recorded as reductions of their respective liabilities in the statement 
of net position: 

Bonds and notes payable 
Mortgage payable 

Total 

The following is the net change in deferred inflows of resources of revenue streams that are reponed 
as revenues for government-wide reponing in the statement of activities while are deferred in the 
govemmental funds as considered unavailable under the modified accrual basis of accounting: 

Property taxes 
Municipal li:ense taxes 
Sales and usage taxes 
Construction excise taxes 
Charges for medi:al services 
Intergovernmental grants and contributions 

Total 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current available 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. Those 
expenses are related to the net change in the following assets and long-term obligations: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Accrued christmas bonus 
Accrued interests payable 
Self-Insurance claim liability 
Pension-related debt 
Claims and judgments 
Estimated liabilities for municipal so!Ki waste landfill 

postclosure care cost 
Compensated absences 

Total 

Net increase in net position-govenunental activities 

See notes to basic financial statements. 
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(9,659,257) 

29.168,249 
(42,392,104) 
( 13,223,855) 

(85,220,000) 

89,132,664 
439,312 

89,571,976 

13,028,013 
3,220,167 
1,018,695 
3.187,190 

52,614 
473,729 

20,980.408 

( 1,303,068) 
109,477 

3,136,481 
(5, 141,626) 
4,820,947 
9,858,335 

736,376 
~493,9722 

I 1,722,950 

l 4p2,2.22 



Municipality of San Juan - (Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund - June 30, 2014 -

\,,..; International 
Center 

ASSEl'S 
Current assets: 

Restricted cash in coilllrercial banks $ 1,840,691 - Due from general fund 183,600 

Total current assets 2,024,291 

Noncurrent assets: 
Capital assets not being depreciated 18,600,CXX> - Capital assets being depreciated, net 33,214,405 

...... Total noncurrent assets 51,8l4,405 

Total assets $ 53,838,696 -
...... LIAB Il..JI'IES 

...... Current liabilities: 

'-
Accrued interest payable on revenue bonds $ 1,147,116 

...... Non current liabilities: 

...... Due within one year 610,CXX> 

Due in rrore than one year 53,371,940 ..... 
Total noncurrent liabilities 53,981,940 

._. 
Total liabilities 55,129,056 

NEfPOSIDON ...... 
Net investment in capital assets (2, 167,535) 

..._, 
Unrestricted 877,175 

...... Deficit $ ( l ,290,360) 

""' 
...... See notes to basic financial s tatements. 
\,,,... 

...... 
...... 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Fund 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Operating revenues - rental income 

Operating expenses: 

Genera~ maintenance and administrative 

Depreciation expense 

Total operating expenses 

Net operating loss 

Non-operating revenue (expenses): 

Interests on revenue bonds 

Transfers from general fund 

Net change in deficit 

Deficit at beginning of fiscal year 

Deficit at end of fiscal year 

See notes to basic financial statements. 
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Inte rnational 
Center 

$ 2,528,865 

2,344,981 
910,000 

3,254,981 

(726,116) 

(2,294,232) 
2,904,232 
(116,116) 

(1,174,244) 

$ ( l ,290,3(i()) 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Common wealth of Puerto Rico) 
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATINGACTMTIES: 

Collections from tenants 
Other collections 

Payments to suppliers 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTMTIES: 

Transfers from general fund 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPIT ALAND RE.LA TED 

FINANCIAL ACTMTIES: 
Debt service on capital-related revenue bo nds: 

Principal paid 

Interests paid 
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities 

NET INCREASE IN RESTRICTED CASH IN 

COMMERCIAL BANKS 

RESTRICTED CASH IN COMMERCIAL BANKS AT 

BEGINNING OF FISCAL YFAR 

RESTRICTED CASH IN COMMERCIAL BANKS AT 
FND OF FISCAL YEAR 

Reconciliation ofoperating loss to net cash provided by operating actitivities: 

Operating loss 
Adjustment to reconcile net operating income to net 

cash provided by operating activities -depreciation expense 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

See notes to basic financial statements. 
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International 
Center 

2,527,065 
1,800 

(2,344,981) 
183,884 

2,720,632 

(570,000) 
(2,306,345) 
(2,876,345) 

28,171 

1,812,520 

1,840,691 

(726,116) 

910,000 

183,884 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

1. 

2. 

GOVERNMENT AND FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY 

a. Governme1Zt Background Information 

The Municipality of San Juan (the Municipality), founded in 1521, is the largest municipality 
and capital city of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Commonwealth). The 
Municipality has full legislative, fiscal and all other governmental powers and responsibilities 
expressly assigned by Law No. 81 of August 30, 1991, as amended, known as Autonomous 
Municipalities Law of Puerto Rico, as amended (Law No. 81). The Municipality is governed 
by a Mayor and a seventeen-member Municipal Legislature whom are elected for a four-year 
term . 

The Municipality provides services to its citizens related to public safety, urban affairs, 
culture and recreation, health and welfare, urban development, education, economic 
development, and other general services to its citizens. 

b. Basis of Presentation and Financial Reporting Entity 

The accompanying basic financial statements present the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Municipality, as of June 30, 2014, the respective changes 
in financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, 
and the cash flows of the proprietary fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP) , as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

Accordingly, the accompanying basic financial statements include all departments, agencies 
and municipal operational units that are under the legal and administrative control of the 
Mayor, and whose financial resources are under the legal custody and control of the 
Municipality's Finance Director. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Municipality's basic financial statements consist of: (1) the management' s discussion and 
analysis (MD&A), a narrative that introduces the basic financial statements and provides an 
analytical overview of the Municipality's financial activities, (2) the government-wide financial 
statements, (3) the governmental and proprietary fund financial statements, (4) the notes to the 
basic financial statements, and (5) the required supplemental budgetary comparison schedule of 
the general fund and the related notes to the budgetary comparison schedule. 

a. Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (GWFS) consist of the statement of net position 
and the statement of activities, which report information on all activities of the Municipality. 

The focus of GWFS is on the operational accountability of the Municipality as a single 
economic unit and not on compliance with budgets, regulatory requirements or on the use of 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

available or currently expendable financial resources (referred to as fiscal accountability). 
Operational accountability is the Municipality's responsibility to report to the extent to which 
it has met its operating objectives efficiently and effectively, using all resources available for 
that purpose. It focuses on the Municipality's principal operating objective, which is to 
provide services to its citizens. 

The accompanying statement of net position provides short-term and long-term information 
about the Municipality's financial position by presenting all of the Municipality's assets, 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between these three items 
reported as net position. This statement assists management in assessing the level of services 
that can be provided by the Municipality in the future and its ability to meet its obligations as 
they become due. In addition, this statement reports the extent to which the Municipality has 
invested in capital assets and discloses legal and contractual restrictions on resources. 

Net position is classified in the accompanying statement of net position within the following 
three categories: 

I) Net Investment in Capital Assets - This component of net position consists of capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of 
bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowing that are attributed to the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent related 
debt proceeds or deferred inflows of resources at year end, the portion of the debt or 
deferred inflows of resources attributable to the unspent amount is not included in the 
calculation of this component of net position. Rather, that portion of the debt or 
deferred inflows of resources is included in the same net position component 
(restricted or unrestricted) as the unspent amount. 

2) Restricted Net Positi.on - This component of net position consists of restricted assets 
reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. 
Generally, a liability relates to restricted assets if the asset results from a resource 
flow that also results in the recognition of a liability or if the liability will be 
liquidated with the restricted assets reported. Restricted assets result when constraints 
placed on those assets use are either, externally imposed by creditors, grantors, 
contributors, and the like, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation . 

The Municipality has reported the following types of restricted net position in the 
accompanying statement of net position as of June 30, 2014: 

a. Debt service - Represent net resources restricted by bond indentures, debt 
covenants or certain laws and regulations to cover the debt service payments of 
bonds and notes payable. 

b. Other purposes - Represent net resources externally restricted by grantors, 
contributors, creditors or certain laws and regulations to cover specific program 
purposes related to certain federal and state grants and contributions. 
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3) Unrestricted Net Position - Generally, this category consists of the excess of assets 
and deferred outflows of resources over related liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources that are neither externally nor legally restricted, neither invested in capital 
assets. However, at June 30, 2014, this net position category has a negative balance 
of $473 million because liabilities and deferred inflows of resources exceeded the 
related assets. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
Municipality's policy to generally use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted 
resources as they are needed. 

The accompanying statement of acti vities presents the Municipality's results of operations by 
showing how the Municipal ity's net position changed during the fiscal year. This statement 
presents the cost of each function/program as well as the extent to which each of the 
Municipality's functions, programs or other services either contributes to or draws from the 
Mun icipality's general revenues. 

A function/program describes a group of activities that are aimed at accomplishlng a major 
service or regulatory responsibility. The functions/programs reported in the accompanying 
basic financial statements are: general government, public safety, urban affairs, culture and 
recreation, health and welfare, urban development, economic development and education. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which program revenues offset direct 
expenses of a given function/program or segments. Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function, segment or operational unit. This statement reports 
revenues in two broad categories: program revenues and general revenues. 

Program revenues are generated directly from a program itself or may come from parties 
outside the Municipality's taxpayers or citizens. ln the statement of activities, program 
revenues reduce the costs (expenses) of the function/program to arrive at: the net cost of the 
function/program that must be financed from the Municipality's general revenues or the net 
program revenue that contributes to the Municipality's general revenues. The accompanying 
statement of acti vities reports the following categories of program revenues for the fi scal year 
ended June 30, 201 4: 

I ) Charges for Services - These revenues generally consist of exchange or exchange­
like transactions involving charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or 
directly benefit from the goods, services or privileges provided, or are otherwise 
directly affected by the services. These revenues include fees charged for specific 
services, charges for licenses and permits. and fines and forfeitures, among others. 

2) Program-Specific Operating atid Capital Grants and Contributions - These 
revenues consist of transactions that are either mandatory or voluntary non-exchange 
transactions with other governments, organizations, or individuals that restrict the 
resources fo r use in a particular program. Operating grants and contributions consist 
of resources that are required to be used to finance the costs of operating a specific 
program or can be used either for operating or capital purposes of a specific program. 
Capital grants and contributions consist of revenues or resources that are restricted 
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for capital purposes - to purchase, construct or renovate capital assets associated with 
a specific program. Restricted operating and capital grants and contributions are 
program revenues because they are specifically attributable to a program and reduce 
the net expense of that program to the Municipality. They are reported net of 
estimated uncoUectible amounts. 

General revenues are the default category for revenues. It includes all revenues and gains 
that do not meet the definition of program revenues. Property taxes, municipal license taxes, 
sales and usage taxes, construction excise taxes, intergovernmental grants and contributions 
not restricted to specific programs, interest income and other miscellaneous income are 
reported as general revenues. All general revenues are reported net of estimated uncollectible 
amounts. 

The effects of all inter-fund governmental actlVltles have been eliminated from the 
accompanying statements of net position and activities. Residual balances outstanding 
between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported as internal 
balances. 

b. Governmental Fund Financial Statements 

The governmental fund financial statements (GFFS) (the balance sheet and the statement of 
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances) provides information about the 
financial position and changes in fund balances of the Municipality's governmental funds by 
presenting sources, uses and balances of current financial resources. The accompanying 
GFFS segregate governmental funds according to their intended purpose and are used in 
demonstrating compliance with legal, financial and contractual provisions. 

The focus of the GFFS is on major governmental funds, which are determined using a 
predefined percentage of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, revenues or expenditures of either tbe fund category or the governmental and 
proprietary funds combined. Accordingly, the Municipality presents its governmental funds 
between major and non-major categories. Major individual governmental funds are reported 
individually as separate columns, while data from all non-major governmental funds are 
aggregated into a single column. 

Tbe Municipality reported the following major governmental funds: 

1) General Fund - Is the Municipality's main operating fund and is used to account for 
and report all financial resources of governmental activities, except for those required 
to be accounted for in another governmental fund. 

2) Debt Service Fund - The debt service fund is used to account for and report for the 
accumulation of financial resources that are restricted for, and the payment of, 
principal and interest for: (1) bonds payable for which debt service payments are 
legally mandated to be accounted for in a debt service fund and (2) certain special 
long-term obligations for which the Municipality is being accumulating financial 
resources in advance to pay principal and interest payments maturing in future years. 
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3) Capital Improvements Bond Fund -The capital improvements bond fund is used to 
account for the financial resources arising mainly from bonds and notes issuance 
proceeds used in the acquisition, construction or improvement of major capital assets. 
The most significant transactions of this fund are related to the proceeds on the 
issuance of bonds and capital outlays. 

Nonmajor governmental funds are reported within a single column and include several 
special revenue funds. These funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources that are legally restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes 
other than debt service or capital projects. 

The Municipality report fund balance amounts based on the extent to which the Municipality 
is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of resources in the governmental funds. 
The classifications are as follows: 

1) Nonspendable - Amounts that are not in a spendable form or contractually required 
to be maintained intact. 

2) Restricted - Amounts that are legally restricted by outside parties, constitutional 
provisions, enabling legislation. 

3) Unassigned - Represent the residual classification for the Municipality's general 
fund and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In 
other funds, the unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit balance 
resulting from overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been 
restricted, committed, or assigned. 

In situations when expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in 
multiple fund balance classifications, the Municipality uses restricted resources first, and then 
unrestricted resources. 

c. Proprietary Fund Financial Statements 

The proprietary fund financial statements consist of the statement of net position, the 
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and the statement of cash flows -
proprietary fund. These statements present the financial position, results of operations and 
cash flows of the International Center fund, which accounts for the leasing operations and 
maintenance of a real estate property originally acquired through the issuance of revenue 
bonds. 

d. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

1) Government-wide Finaflcial Statements - The government wide financial 
statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Revenues from property tax, municipal license tax and sales and usage tax are 
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recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Grants and similar items 
are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met. 

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange 
and exchange-like transactions are generally recorded when the exchange takes place. 
Certain exchange-like transactions which include license fees, charges for services, 
rental of facilities, sales of real estate and capital assets, and other miscellaneous 
revenues, which are recorded as revenues when collected because they are generally 
not measurable until actually received. 

Derived tax revenue, such as (municipal license taxes, sales and usage taxes and 
construction excise taxes) result from assessments the Municipality places on 
exchange transactions, receivables and revenues are recorded when the underlying 
exchange occurs. 

Imposed non-exchange revenue transactions (such as property taxes), result from 
assessments made by the Municipality on non-governmental entities, including 
individuals, other than assessments on exchange transactions. Receivables are 
generally recorded in the period when an enforceable legal claim bas arisen. 

Property taxes, municipal license, sales and usage taxes, and construction excise 
taxes are generally recorded as revenues (net of amounts considered not collectible) 
in the fiscal year when resources are required to be used or the first fi scal year that 
the use of the resources is permitted. 

Intergovernmental grants and contributions receivables and revenues are generally 
recorded when all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
For the majority of grants, the Municipality must expend resources on the specific 
purpose or project before the provider reimburses any amounts. Revenue is, 
therefore, generally recognized as qualifying reimbursable expenditure is incurred. 

Donations and certain grants and entitlements from legislative or contractual 
agreements, other than exchanges, willingly entered into by two or more parties. 
Receivables and revenues are generally accounted for in the same manner as 
Intergovernmental grants. Events that are neither exchange nor non-exchange 
transactions are recorded when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the 
amount of loss is reasonably estimable. 

Any revenue collected in advance that are restricted for use in the following fiscal 
year are recorded as deferred inflows of resources. 

All general capital assets and unmatured long-term liabilities are recorded only in the 
government wide statement of net position. The measurement focus and the basis of 
accounting used in the accompanying Government-wide financial statements differ 
significantly from the measurement focus and basis of accounting used in the 
preparation of the accompanying governmental fund financial statements. Therefore, 
the Municipality presents reconciliations, as detailed in the accompanying table of 
contents, to better identify the relationship between these statements. 
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2) Governmental Fund Financial Stateme11ts - The governmental fund financial 
statements use the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are generally recognized as soon as they are 
both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they 
are collectible within the current fiscal year or soon enough thereafter to pay 
liabilities of the current fiscal year. For this purpose, the Municipality generally 
considers most revenues (municipal licenses taxes, construction excise taxes, sales 
and usage taxes, intergovernmental grants and contributions and certain charges for 
services) to be available if collected within ninety (90) days after year end, except for 
property taxes for which the availability period is generally sixty (60) days. Revenue 
sources not meeting this availability criterion or collected in advance are recorded as 
unearned revenues within deferred inflows of resources. 

The principal revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual include property 
taxes, municipal license taxes, sales and usage taxes, construction excise taxes and 
intergovernmental grants and contributions. These principal revenue sources meet 
both measurability and availability criteria in the accompanying governmental funds 
financial statements, except for amounts recorded as deferred inflows of resources. 

In a manner similar to the government-wide financial statements, but subject to, and 
limited by, the availability criteria discussed above, all revenues, expenses, gains, 
losses, assets and Jjabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions 
are also generally recorded when the exchange takes place. Accordingly, fees for 
licenses and permits, most charges for services and miscellaneous revenues are 
recorded as revenues when collected because they are generally not measurable until 
actually received. 

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses and assets resulting from non-exchange 
transactions are recorded in a similar manner to the GWFS, using the previously 
discussed criteria set forth by GASB 33 for non-exchange transactions, but subject to, 
and limited by, the availability criteria discussed above. Accordingly, property tax 
and municipal license tax, sales and use tax and construction excise tax receivables 
are also generally recorded in the fiscal year when an enforceable legal claim has 
arisen while their respective tax revenues (net of amounts considered not collectible) 
are also generally recorded in the fiscal year when resources are required to be used 
or the first fiscal year that the use of the resources is permitted. Receivables and 
revenues from federal and state grants and contributions, donations and entitlements 
are also generally recorded when all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider 
have been met (generally, as qualifying reimbursable expenditures are incurred for 
expenditure-driven grants). 

Interests on deposits are recorded when earned as these revenues are considered both 
measurable and available at year end. 

The Municipality generally accrues a governmental fund liability and expenditure in 
the period in which the Municipality incurs the liability, to the extent that these 
l iabilities are normally expected to be liquidated in a timely manner and in full with 
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current available financial resources. Following are certain exceptions to the 
modified accrual basis of accounting: 

a. Principal and interest on bonds and notes payable are recorded as expenditures as 
of year-end when resources have been segregated for their payment when due. 
Amounts due on July 1 have been recognized as liabilities at June 30 in the debt 
service fund. 

b. Compensated absences, pension-related debt, claims and judgments, estimated 
liability for municipal solid waste landfill post-closure care cost and other long­
term liabilities are recorded only when they mature (when payment is due). 

c. Certain accrued liabilities not due and payable (unmatured) or not normally 
expected to be liquidated in full and in a timely manner with available and 
expendable financial resources, are recorded in the accompanying statement of 
net position. Such liabilities are recorded in the governmental funds (except debt 
and related interest in the debt service fund) when they mature and consist of 
mortgage and notes payable, compensated absences, pension-related debt, claims 
and judgment, landfill obligation and other long-term liabilities. 

3) Proprietary Fund Financia.l Stateme11ts - The proprietary fund financial statements 
are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis 
of accounting. Accordingly, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when incurred, regardless of when cash is received or paid. The statement 
of revenue, expenses and changes in net position distinguish operating revenues and 
expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally 
result from providing ser vices and producing and delivering goods in connection with 
a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. The 
major operating revenue of the Municipality's proprietary fund is from rent charges 
collected by the International Center fund from its warehousing and leasing facilities. 

e. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 

Budgetary Control 

The Municipality prepares its annual budget for all of its operations and activities. Such 
legally adopted budget is based on expected expenditures by the program and estimated 
resources by source. The annual budgets are developed using elements of performance-based 
program budgeting and zero-based budgeting, and include estimates of revenues and other 
resources for the ensuing fiscal year under laws and regulations existing at the time the 
budgets are prepared. 

The Mayor must submit, for the fiscal year commencing on the next July 1, an annual 
budgetary resolution project (the Project) to the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs of the 
Commonwealth (the Commissioner) and the Municipal Legislature no later than May 10 and 
May 15, respectively. The Commissioner preliminary verifies that the Project complies with 
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all the applicable laws and regulations and may provide comments and suggestions to the 
Mayor on or before June 13. 

The Municipal Legislature has 10 business days, but not later than June 13, to discuss and 
approve the Project with modifications. The Municipal Legislature may amend the budgets 
submitted by the Mayor but may not increase any items so far to cause a deficit without 
imposing taxes or identifying other sources of revenue to cover such deficit. After the 
Municipal Legislature modifies and preliminarily approves the Project, the modified Project 
is sent back to the Mayor for his approval or rejection within 6 days. The Mayor may 
decrease or eliminate any line item but may not increase or insert any new line item in the 
budgets. The Mayor may also veto the budgets in their entirety and return it to the Municipal 
Legislature with his objections. If the Mayor rejects the Project, the Municipal Legislature 
will have up to 8 days to adopt or reject the reconunendations or objections of the Mayor. 
The approved Project is sent again to the Mayor, which then would have 3 days to sign and 
approve it. 

If the budgets are not adopted prior to the end of the deadlines referred to above, the annual 
budgets for the preceding fiscal year, as approved by the Legislature and the Mayor, are 
automatically renewed for the ensuing fiscal year until the Municipal Legislature and the 
Mayor approve new budgets. This permits the Municipality to continue doing payments for 
its operations and other purposes until the new budgets are approved. 

The annual budget may be updated for any estimate revisions as well as fiscal year-end 
encumbrances, and may include any additional information requested by the Municipal 
Legislature. The Mayor may request subsequent amendments to the approved budgets, which 
are subject to the approval of the Municipal Legislature. 

The Municipality's Departments of Finance and Budget have the responsibility to ensure that 
budgetary spending control is maintained. For day-to-day management control purposes, 
expenditures plus encumbrances may not exceed budgeted amounts at the expenditure-type 
level of each cost center (activity within a program within a fund). The Mayor may transfer 
unencumbered appropriations within programs and among funds. The Municipal Legislature 
may transfer amounts among programs within and among funds. 

The legal level of budgetary control (i .e., the level at which expenditures may not legally 
exceed appropriation) is at the functions/program level (general government, public safety, 
urban affairs, culture and recreation, health and welfare, urban development, economic 
development, education, capital outlays and debt service) within the general and debt service 
funds, respectively. 

Under the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, the appropriations made for any fiscal 
year shall not exceed the total revenue, including available surplus, estimated for said fiscal 
year unless the imposition of taxes sufficient to cover said appropriations is provided. 

Budgetary Accounting 

The Municipality's annual budget is prepared using the budgetary (statutory) basis of 
accounting, which is not in accordance with GAAP. According to the budgetary basis of 
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accounting, revenue is generally recorded when cash is received. Borrowings may be used to 
finance budgetary excess of expenditures over revenues. 

The Municipality uses encumbrance accounting to record the full amount of purchase orders, 
contracts and other commitments of appropriated resources as deductions from the 
appropriation prior to actual expenditure. In the governmental funds, encumbrance 
accounting is a significant aspect of budgetary control. Accordingly, expenditures are 
generally recorded when the related expenditure is incurred or encumbered. Available 
appropriations and encumbrances are established to lapse one fiscal year after the end of the 
fiscal year. Amounts required to settle claims and judgments against the Municipality, and 
certain other liabilities, are not recognized until they are encumbered or otherwise processed 
for payment. Unencumbered appropriations and encumbrances lapse at fiscal year-end. 
Other appropriations, mainly capital projects appropriations, are continuing accounts for 
which the Municipal Legislature has authorized that an unspent balance from the prior year 
be carried forward and made available for current spending. 

The accompanying supplemental budgetary comparison schedule - general fund provides 
information about the general fund's original budget, its amendments, and the actual results 
of operations of the general fund under the budgetary basis of accounting for the ensuing 
fiscal year. 

At June 30, 2014, the Municipality has outstanding encumbrances In the general fund 
amounting $36. l million. 

f Assets, liabilities and net position 

I) Cash Equivalents 

Cash equivalents consist of short-term, highly liquid investments in money market 
accounts that are readily convertible to cash and have original maturities of three month 
or less. 

2) Receivables a11d Payables 

Receivables consist of all revenues earned but not collected at year-end. These accounts 
receivable are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which are 
determined based upon past collection experience, historical trends, current economic 
conditions and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. Intergovernmental grants and 
contributions receivables represent amounts owed to the Municipality for reimbursement 
of expenditures incurred pursuant to federally funded programs. 

3) Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses 

Loans receivable amounting to $4.7 million are stated at their unpaid principal balances, 
net of the allowance for loan losses and deferred loan fees. Loan fees are recognized as 
income over the contractual term of the loan using the effective interest method. The 
carrying amount of loans receivable is reduced by an allowance for loan losses which is 
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maintained at a level that the Municipality considers adequate to absorb credit losses 
inherent in the loan portfolio. 

The amount of the allowance is based on an evaluation of the coUectability of the loan 
portfolio, including the nature of the portfolio, credit concentrations, trends in historical 
data, specific impaired loans, economic conditions and other risks inherent in the loan 
portfolio. The allowance is increased by a provision for loan losses, and reduced by 
charge-offs, net of recoveries. 

Interest income is recognized over the term of the loan and is calculated using the 
effective interest method. Interest income generally is not recognized on specific 
impaired loans unless the likelihood of further loss is remote. Interest payments received 
on such loans are applied as a reduction of the loan principal balance. Interest income on 
other impaired loans is recognized only to the extent of interest payments received. 

The Municipality considers a loan impaired when based on current information or factors 
(such as payment history, value of collateral, and assessment of the customer's current 
creditworthiness), it is probable that the principal and interest payments will not be 
collected according to the loan agreement. 

Loans are placed on nonaccrual status when, after considering economic and business 
conditions and collection efforts, that the loans are impaired or collection of interest is 
doubtful. UncoUectible interest previously accrued is charged off, or an allowance is 
established by a charge to interest income. Interest income on nonaccrual loans is 
recognized only to the extent that cash payments are received. 

4) Other Unrestricted Assets 

Other unrestricted assets consist principally of prepaid insurance, medical supplies 
inventories used in providing health care services to patients, and office supplies held for 
consumption that are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or 
market. Supplies inventories and prepaid insurance are capitalized at the time of 
purchase for the entire amount of the purchase/prepayment and are charged to 
expense/expenditure as consumed in the governmental fund financial statements and the 
statement of activities, respectively. 

5) Capital Assets 

Capital assets used in governmental activities include land, works of arts, construction in 
progress, buildings and building improvements, site improvements, infrastructure, 
equipment and vehicles and intangible assets. These assets are capitalized and reported 
in the accompanying government-wide statement of net position and the statement of net 
position - proprietary fund. Infrastructure assets are generally stationary in nature and 
include roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems and other similar assets. 

For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality defines capital assets as assets with an 
individual cost of $5,000 or more at the date of acquisition, construction or improvement, 
and with useful lives extending beyond one year. AU assets with individual costs under 
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$5,000 or with useful lives not exceeding one year, are charged directly to expense in the 
government-wide statement of activities. In the governmental funds, all capital assets are 
recorded as expenditures in the acquiring fund. 

In the government-wide statement of net position and the statement of net position -
proprietary fund, all capital assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if 
actual cost was unavailable, except for donated capital assets, which are recorded at their 
estimated fair value at the date of donation. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized in the govemment­
wide statement of net position and the statement of net position - proprietary fund as 
projects are constructed. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add 
value to the asset or materially extend capital asset lives are not capitalized. 

Depreciation and amortization expense is recorded only in the government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements. However, there is no depreciation or amortization 
recorded for land, work of art and construction in progress. Depreciable capital assets are 
generally depreciated or amortized over their estimated useful lives under the straight­
line method, except for machinery and equipment held under capital leases which is 
depreciated over the shorter of its estimated useful life or the lease term. The estimated 
useful Jives of major capital asset categories are: 

Description 

Buildings 
Building and site improvements 
General infrastructure 
Intangible assets (computer software) 
Licensed vehicles 
Machinery and equipment 
Machinery and equipment 

held under capital leases 

40 
15 
40 
IO 
5 

3 to 5 
Shorter of 5 years 

or lease term 

For capital leases in governmental fund financial statements, the Municipality presents 
the net present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the capital lease 
recorded simultaneously as expenditures and as other financing sources. Minimum lease 
payments are recorded as expenditures. 

The Municipality periodically evaluates its capital assets to consider events or changes in 
circumstances that may give rise to asset impairment. Among the factors considered by 
management as part of its evaluation are: physical damages to an asset where action 
would be needed to restore lost service utility, changes in laws, regulations, or other 
environmental factors that may negatively affect service utility, technological 
developments that may negatively affect service utility, changes in the manner or 
duration of use of a capital asset that may negatively affect its service utility, and 
stoppage of construction or development of an asset. 
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An impairment loss would be reported in the government-wide statement of net position 
or the statement of net position - proprietary fund net of any realizable insurance 
recovery. For impairment losses recoverable through disaster assistance programs 
sponsored by higher levels of government (such as the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency - FEMA), the loss would be reported separately from the grant awarded for 
recovery purposes. 

Any impairment adjustment to the carrying value of a capital asset would be treated as a 
proportionate reduction of both the reported value of the asset and its accumulated 
depreciation, based on the notion that the impairment represents the effective retirement 
of a portion of the asset. 

6) Deferred Inflows o(Resources 

In governmental funds :financial statements, deferred inflows of resources arise when one 
of the following situations occur: 

a. Potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for 
revenue recognition in the current period (unavailable revenue). As previously 
discussed, available is defined as due (or past due) at June 30 and collected within 
sixty (60) days for property taxes and ninety (90) days for aU over revenue streams 
thereafter to pay obligations due at June 30. In subsequent periods, when both 
criteria are met, the liability for unearned revenue is removed and revenue is 
recognized. 

b. The Municipality receives resources before it has a legal claim to them. In 
subsequent periods, when the revenue recognition criterion is met, the liabijjty for 
unearned revenue is removed and revenue is recognized. 

Deferred inflows of resources in government wide and proprietary funds financial 
statements arise only when the Municipality receives resources before it has a legal claim 
to them. 

7) Long-term Obligations 

The long-term liabilities reported in the accompanying statements of net position include 
bonds payable, notes payable, accrued compensated absences, pension-related debt, 
claims and judgments, estimated liability for municipal solid waste landfill post-closure 
care costs and other long-term liabilities. 

Principal and interest payments on bonds due on July 1 are recorded as governmental 
fund liabilities in the debt service fund when resources are available. In governmental 
fund financial statements, face amount of debt issued (gross debt reported) is reported as 
other financing sources when issued. 
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8) Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences include paid time off made available to employees in connection 
with vacation, sick leave and compensatory time. The liability for compensated absences 
is reported in the statement of net position. A liability for compensated absences is 
reported in the fund financial statements only when payment is due. 

The liability for compensated absences recorded in the accompanying statement of net 
position is limited to leave that is attributable to services already rendered and is not 
contingent on a specific event. The liability includes salary-related costs, which are 
directly and incrementally related to the amount of salary paid to the employee (such as 
employer's share of Social Security taxes and Medicare taxes). 

The vacation policy of the Municipality provides for the accumulation of regular 
vacations at a rate of 2.5 days per month (30 days per year) per employee up to a 
maximum of 60 days. Employees accumulate regular sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per 
month (18 days per year) up to a max.imum of 90 days. All vacation and sick leave days 
accumulated by employees in excess of 60 days and 90 days, respectively, are paid to 
employees each year, if not used. 

Upon termination of employment, an employee receives compensation for all 
accumulated unpaid regular vacation leave at the current rate. In the case of regular sick 
leave, if the employee terminates his or her employment before reaching 10 years of 
services, such regular sick leave is not paid to the employee, if not consumed. After 10 
years of services, any regular sick leave balance is paid to the employee. Accumulated 
vacation time is fully vested to the employee at any time. 

9) Leases 

The Municipality classifies its lease agreements either as operating or capital leases. The 
Municipality classifies a lease agreement as a capital lease if at its inception the lease 
meets one or more of the following four criteria: 

a. By the end of the lease term, ownership of the leased property is transferred to the 
Municipality. 

b. The lease agreement contains a bargain purchase option. 

c. The lease term is substantially equal (75 percent or more) to the estimated useful life 
of the leased property. 

d. At the inception of the lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments, with 
certain adjustments, is 90 percent or more of the estimated fair value of the leased 
property. 

Although the Municipality is prevented legally from entering into obligations extending 
beyond one fiscal year, most capital lease agreements entered by the Municipality contain 
fiscal funding clauses or cancellation clauses that make the continuation of the 
agreements subject to future appropriations. Leases that meet at least one of the 
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aforementioned four criteria and have a fiscal funding or a cancellation clause are 
generally recorded as capital leases. Otherwise, these are recorded as operating leases. 

In government wide and proprietary fund financial statements, the obligation under 
capital leases is recorded at the lesser of the estimated fair value of the leased property or 
the present value of the minimum lease payments, exc1uding any portion representing 
executory costs and profit thereon to be paid by the lessor. A portion of each minimum 
lease payment is allocated to interest expense and the balance is applied to reduce the 
lease obligation using the effective interest method. 

10) Accounting for Pension Cost and Post-Employment Benefits 

The Municipality participates in a multiple-employer cost-sharing plan. Accordingly, 
pension costs recognized in the accompanying basic financial statements are equal to the 
statutorily required contributions, with a liability recorded for any unpaid required 
contributions. 

11) Claims and Judgments 

In government wide and proprietary funds financial statements, the Municipality 
recognizes an expense and a liability for claims and judgments only when it is probable 
tbat a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The 
liability for claims and judgments includes all claim adjustment expenses that are 
incremental (directly related to individual claims). In governmental fund financial 
statements, an expenditure and a liability is recognized only as liabilities come due for 
payment. 

12) Estimated Liability for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Post-closure Care Costs 

The Municipality recognizes landfill post-closure costs as an expense and a liability 
throughout the period that the Municipality benefited from the landfill operations while it 
was still in use. The landfill closed in fiscal year 2000, therefore the liability for post­
c1osing care costs was completely recognized in fiscal year 2000 immediately prior to the 
landfill' s closing date. 

The estimated liability for solid waste landfill post-closure care costs includes an estimate 
of all costs to be incurred after year-end under the accrual basis of accounting. Tbe 
estimates of post-closing care costs were made using current costs (costs that would be 
incurred if the closing date of the landfill would have been at year-end). The liability is 
adjusted annually to reflect the effects of inflation, advances in technology, changes in 
regulations or similar changes. 

In governmental funds financial statements, an expenditure for landfill post-closure care 
costs is recognized only at the point where related liabilities normally would be expected 
to be liquidated with current expendable financial resources. 
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13) Inter-fund Transactions 

The Municipality has the following types of inter-fund activities: 

a. lnter-(u.nd loans - Represent amounts provided with a requirement for repayment, 
which are recorded as "due from" in the lender governmental fund and "due to" in 
the borrower governmental fund. For amounts not expected to be collected within a 
reasonable period of time, inter-fund receivables/payables are reduced to the 
estimated realizable value and the amount that is not expected to be repaid is reported 
as an operating transfer from the governmental fund that made the loan. 

b. Inter-fund transfers - Represent flows of assets without equivalent flows of assets in 
return and without a requirement for repayment. These are reported as other 
financing sources in the governmental fund making transfers and as other financing 
sources in the governmental fund receiving transfers. 

c. Inter-fund reimbursements - Represent repayments from the governmental fund 
responsible for particular expenditures or expenses to the governmental fund that 
initially paid for them. Inter-fund activity has not been eliminated. 

14) Risk Financing 

The Municipality carries commercial insurance to cover property and casualty, theft, tort 
claims and other losses. Insurance policies are negotiated by the Puerto Rico Treasury 
Department and costs are allocated among all the municipalities of Puerto Rico. The 
Department of Treasury pays the insurance premiums on behalf of the Municipality and 
then is reimbursed each year through monthly equal payments made by the Municipality. 

The Municipality carries insurance coverage for death and bodily injuries caused by 
automobile accidents. This insurance is obtained through the Automobile Accidents 
Compensation Administration (AACA), a component unit of the Commonwealth of 
Puerto Rico. 

The Municipality obtains workers' compensation insurance coverage through the State 
Insurance Fund Corporation (SIFC), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico. This insurance covers workers against injuries, disability or death because of work 
or employment-related accidents, or because of illness suffered as a consequence of their 
employment. 

The Municipality obtains unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability, and 
drivers' insurance coverage for its employees through various insurance programs 
administered by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico's Depanment of Labor and Human 
Resources (DOL). These insurance programs cover workers against unemployment and 
provide supplementary insurance coverage for temporary disability, or death because of 
work or employment-related accidents or because of illness suffered as a consequence of 
their employment. Unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability and 
drivers' insurance premiums are paid directly to DOL on a cost reimbursement basis. 
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The Municipality also obtains medicaJ insurance coverage from severaJ heaJth insurance 
companies for its employees. Different heaJth insurance coverage and premium options 
are negotiated each year by the Department of Treasury on behalf of the MunicipaJity. 

The current insurance policies have not been canceled or terminated at year-end. 
Premiums are paid on a monthly basis directly to the insurance company. In the past 
three years, the Municipality has not settled claims that exceeded insurance coverage. 

Cost of insurance aJlocated to the MunicipaJity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 
amounted to approximately $5.0 million. The current insurance policies have not been 
cancelled or terminated. Workers' compensation insurance covering aJl municipal 
employees for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 amounted to approximately $6.1 
million. 

The Municipality establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of 
claims (including future claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported but not 
settled, and of claims that have been incurred but not reported. The length of time for 
which such costs must be estimated varies depending on the coverage involved. 
Estimated amounts of salvage and subrogation and reinsurance recoverable on unpaid 
claims are deducted from the liability for unpaid claims. Because actual claims costs 
depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legaJ liability, and 
damage awards, the process used in computing claims liabilities does not necessarily 
result in an exact amount. Claims liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety 
of actuarial and statistical techniques to produce current estimates that reflect recent 
settlements, claim frequency, and other economic and social factors. A provision for 
inflation in the calculation of estimated future claim costs is implicit in the calculation 
because reliance is placed both on actual historicaJ data that reflect past inflation and on 
other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience. 
Adjustments to claims liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the periods in 
which they are made in the statement of activities. Effective July 1, 2014, the 
Municipality discontinued the self-insurance program and acquired private insurance to 
cover these risks. 

15) Direct Charges 

Pursuant to and determined by an internal cost allocation plan, certain costs initially 
borne by the general fund are then billed as direct charges to other funds. Revenues from 
these charges are accounted for in the government-wide statement of activities as general 
government and in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund baJances 
as charges for services in the general fund. The corresponding expenses appear as 
function/program costs in the Statement of Activities. 

16) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the accompanying financial statements in conformity with GAAP 
requires management to make significant estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and deferred outflows and liabilities and deferred inflows, the 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements, 
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3. 

and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

DEPOSITS 

At June 30, 2014, the carrying amounts and the respective bank balances of the Municipality's 
deposits are as fo1lows: 

Carrying amounts of deeosits 
Debt Capital Other 

General service improvements go1·ernmen1al 
rund fund bond fond funds Total 

Unru1ricted: 
Cash in commercial banks: 

Cash equivalents s 108,930,213 s s $ s 108.930,213 
Other demand deposi15 28,173.896 28,173,896 

Rutricted: 
Cash in commercial banks 9,020,854 8,638,338 22,656.277 40,315,469 
Cash with fiscal agent 5,055,412 147.940,089 85,240,167 12,484,669 250.720,337 

Totals s 151 ,180,375 $ 147,940,089 s 93,878,505 s 35,140.946 s 428,139,915 

Bank balanttS of de~its 

Debt Capital Other 
General stni.ct improvements gonrruncntal 

fund fund bond fund funds Total 
Unr.stricttd: 

Cash in commercial banks: 
Cash equivalents s 108.930.213 s s s s 108,930,213 
Other demand deposits 38,555, 160 38,555,160 

Restricted: 
Cash in commercial banks 15,000,7.U 8,638,338 22,054,270 45,693,352 
Cash with fisClll agent 5,081,791 147.940.089 85,230.170 12.484.669 250,736,719 

Tows s 167,567.908 $ 147.940.089 s 93.868.508 s 34,.538.939 s 443,915,444 

Custodia] credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the Municipality's 
deposits may not be recovered. Under the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, public 
funds deposited by the Municipality in commercial ban.ks must be fully collateralized for the 
amounts deposited in excess of the federal depository insurance generally provided by the Federal 
Deposits Insurance Corporation (FDIC). All securities pledged as collateral are held by agents 
designated by the Secretary of the Treasury of the Government of Puerto Rico, but not in the 
Municipality's name. Deposits maintained in GDB are exempt from the collateral requirement 
established by the Commonwealth and thus represent a custodial credit risk. 

The Municipality's deposits consist principally of unrestricted and restricted demand deposits in 
the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB), as fiscal agent, and various 
commercial banks. The deposits include cash equivalents of $108.9 million in the general fund 
that are held in commercial banks at year-end. 

Cash equivalents and other unrestricted deposits in the general fund are available to meet general 
operating requirements of the Municipality, including the payment of short-term obligations of 
the general fund, most of them which are budgeted. 

The Municipality maintains an internal cash management pool in which several funds participate 
on a dollar equivalent and daily transaction basis. At June 30, 2014, the pool cash account in 
commercial banks had a balance of $28.2 million of which $11.3 million, $2.6 million and $14.3 
million have been recorded in the general fund, capital improvement bond fund and other 
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governmental funds, respectively. The balance in the pooled cash account is available to meet 
current operating requirements and any unrestricted excess, if any, is generally invested in 
certificates of deposit with commercial banks. Any deficiency in the pooled cash account is 
assumed by tbe general fund and covered through future budgetary appropriations. 

Restricted cash in commercial banks of $9.0 million in the general fund consist of unspent 
proceeds of borrowings made through the issuance of Series A, B and C of the 2013 Municipal 
General Obligation Notes that are restricted for the payment of certain operating expenses and 
other working capital purposes. 

Restricted cash with fisca] agent of $5. 1 mil)jon in the general fund consists of collections of 
former hotel municipal taxes that are available for the operation of various municipal programs 
and intergovernmental grants and contributions from the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority 
(PREPA) amounting to $2.7 million and $2.0 million, respectively, that are restricted for the 
maintenance and repairs of the municipal electrical infrastructure, and unspent proceeds of $0.4 
million related to borrowings made in previous fiscal years for the payment of certain operating 
expenses. 

Restricted cash with ftscal agent in the debt service fund consist of property tax and sales and 
usage tax collections amounting to $ 130.1 million and $17.9 million, respectively, that are 
available for the debt service payments of bonds and certain general obligations notes. 

Restricted cash in commercial banks and with fiscal agent in the capital improvements bond fund, 
amounting to $8.6 and $85.2 million, respectively, consist of unspent bonds and notes proceeds 
that are restricted for the acquisition, construction or improvements of major capital assets 
financed with public debt. 

Restricted cash in commercial banks of other governmental funds amounting $22.7 million 
consist of intergovernmental operating and capital grants contributions received from the 
Commonwealth and the federal government of the United States of America that are available for 
the operations of several operating grants programs. 

Restricted cash with fiscal agent of other governmental funds amounting $12.5 million consist of 
intergovernmental capital grants and contributions from the Commonwealth amounting to $12.0 
million that are restricted for general infrastructure projects. 

The restricted cash in commercial banks of the proprietary fund and a book balance of $1.8 
million and a bank balance of $83 thousand are restricted for the payment of the fund 's revenue 
bonds. 

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

a. Property Taxes 

The Municipality is authorized to impose and collect property taxes from any natura] or legal 
person that, at January 1 of each calendar year: (1) is engaged in trade or business and is the 
owner of personal or real property used in trade or business or (2) owns residential real 
property with a value in excess of $15,000 (at 1957 market prices). 
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Personal property truces is a derived true using the book value of personal property assets 
owned by the trucpayer at January 1 (lien; levy date) and reporting such taxable value through 
a personal property tax return filed on May 15 (due date and collection date) subsequent to 
the assessment date. 

The total personal property tax rate in force at June 30, 2014 was 8.53 percent (of which 
trucpayers pay 8.33 percent and the remaining 0.20 percent is paid by the Commonwealth, as 
a subsidy). 

Real property truces are assessed every January 1 (lien; levy date) and are based on estimated 
current values of the property, deflated to 1957 market prices. Real property truces are due 
and collectible on January J and July of every fiscal year. The total real property true rate in 
force at June 30, 2014 was 10.53 percent (of which 10.33 percent is paid by trucpayers and the 
remaining 0.20 percent is also paid by the Commonwealth, as a subsidy). 

Residential real property occupied by its owner (not engaged in trade or business) is exempt 
from property truces only on the first $15,000 of the assessed value (at 1957 market prices). 
For exempt amounts, the Commonwealth pays the basic true ( 4.00 percent and 6.00 percent 
for personal and real property, respectively), except for property assessed for less than $3,500 
(at 1957 market prices), for which no payment is made. 

Included within the total personal and real property tax rates, there is a portion of the tax rate 
in the amount of 3.50 percent that is restricted for the Municipality's debt service 
requirements on bonds and certain notes. Such amounts are recorded in the Municipality's 
debt service fund. 

On July 10, 2009, the Legislature of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico approved Law No. 37 
for the purpose, among others, to: (1) increase the real property assessed value by ten times; 
(2) decrease the real property tax rate by ten times; and (3) increase the exempt portion of real 
property tax from the first $15,000 of the assessed value to $150,000. These provisions are 
effective only for fi scal years 2012, 2013 and 2014. 

b. Municipal License Taxes 

The Municipality imposes a municipal license tax on all businesses that operate within the 
Municipality, which are not totally or partially exempt from the tax pursuant to the Industrial 
Incentives Acts of the Commonwealth. This is a derived tax based on the business volume in 
gross sales as shown in the tax return that is due five working days after April 15 of each 
year. Entities with sales volume of $3 million or more must include audited financial 
statements together with the tax return. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the tax 
rates were as follows: 

• Financial business - 1.50% of gross revenues 
• Other organizations - 0.20% for annual revenues up to $1,000,000, and 0.50% over such 

volume. 
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This tax is due in two equal installments on July 15 and January 15 of each fiscal year. A 
discount of 5% is allowed when full payment is made on or before five working days after 
April 15. Municipal license tax receivable represents filed municipal license tax returns that 
were uncollected as of June 30, 2014. Municipal license taxes collected prior to June 30, 
2014 but pertaining to the next fiscal year are recorded as deferred inflows of resources. 

c. Sales and Usage Taxes 

The Municipality imposes a municipal sales and usage tax within the territorial limits of the 
Municipality. This is a derived tax applied to the sale price of a taxable item or on the 
purchase price of all usage, storage or consumption of a taxable item. It is collected on a 
monthly basis through a tax return that is due ten calendar days after the end of each month. 
The municipal sales and usage tax rate was one point five percent (1.5%) until June 30, 2014. 

A portion of the sales tax amounting to zero point two percent (0.2%) is restricted for the 
payment of long-term debt and is recorded in the debt service fund. The remaining portion 
of one point three percent (1.3%) is recorded in the general fund since it was available for 
general operating purposes. 

d. Construction Excise Taxes 

The Municipality imposes and collects municipal construction excise taxes to most natural 
and legal persons and any governmental instrumentality that carry out activities related to 
construction, expansion, major repairs, relocations, alterations and other types of permanent 
improvements to residential, commercial and industrial buildings and structures within the 
territorial area of the Municipality. The tax is also applicable to infrastructure projects, the 
installation of machinery, equipment and fixtures, and other types of construction-related 
activities. 

The construction excise tax is a derived tax imposed at a five percent (5%) over the cost of 
the project, net of certain exemptions such as the costs associated with the acquisition of land, 
project design and other engineering fees, licenses and permits, legal and accounting fees, 
and most marketing and advertising costs. The tax is paid by the taxpayer at the beginning of 
the project. 

All single-family residential construction projects not related to housing development 
projects, condominiums, or any similar projects, are exempt from construction excise taxes 
for the first $100,000 of the project construction costs. In addition, all single-family 
residential improvement projects are exempt from construction excise taxes for the first 
$25,000 of the project improvement costs. All projects carried out on buildings and 
structures classified as historical treasures by the Puerto Rico Planning Board have an 
exemption of three point seventy five percent (3.75%) in the tax rate applicable to 
construction excise taxes. 

This space was intentionally left blank. 
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e. Intergovernmental R eceivables 

The composition of intergovernmental receivables in the general fund at June 30, 2014 is: 

Capital Other 
General improveme.nts governmental 
Fund bond fund rund Total 

State and local intergovernmental entities: 
Puerto Rico Treasury Departme111 -

Employees' Christmas bonus cost reimbursement $ 1,548,517 s $ $ 1,548,517 
Other entities 18,000 18,000 

Tola! state and local intergovernmental entities 1,548,517 18,000 1,566,517 

Federal grants and contributions: 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Devewpme111 - Community Services Block 
Grants Cluster 1,390,298 1,390,298 

U.S. Deparrmelll of Healrh and Human Sen•ices: 
HIV Emergency Relief Project Program l ,050,742 1,050,742 
Head Start Program 889,843 889,843 
Cancer Control Program 248,516 248,516 
Risk Reduction Program 234.413 234,413 

U.S. Deparrme11t of Eiousi11g a11d Urba11 Development: 
Community Development Block Grant Program 813,084 813,084 

Housing Opportunities for Persons 
with AIDS Program 335,294 335,294 

U.S. Deparrment of l.Abor • Workforce Investment 

Act Cluster 784,678 784,678 

U.S. Departmelll of Homeland Security - State Homeland 
Security Program 292,601 292,601 

Other federal grantors on various programs 2,420,321 2.420,321 

Total federal grants and contributions 8,459,790 8,459.790 

Total intergovernmental receivables $ 1,548,517 $ 18,000 $ 8.459,790 $ 10,026,307 

Intergovernmental receivables in other governmental funds represent principally 
uncollected reimbursements of expenditures incurred under grants and contributions from 
the federal and local governments. 

f. Miscellaneous Accou11ts Receivable 

Miscellaneous accounts receivable as of June 30, 2014, are as follows: 

Debt Other 
General service govenuneotal 

fund fund funds Total 

Medical services receivable $ 6,687,026 $ $ $ 6,687,026 
Or.her miscellaneous 298,344 6,525 308,382 613,251 

Total miscellaneous accounts receivable $ 6,985,370 $ 6,525 $ 308,382 $ 7,300;J.77 
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5. LOANS RECEIVABLE 

Loans receivable of the Independent Capital Fund, a nonmajor special revenue fund, consist of 
the outstanding balances of various credit facilities granted under a revolving loan program to 
private small businesses in the aggregate amount of $4.7 million, net of an allowance for loan 
losses of $5.2 million. The majority of these loans are collateralized or guaranteed by either first, 
second and third mortgage notes on real estate and/or chattel mortgage over machinery and 
equipment. 

6. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

Interfund receivables, payables and transfers are summarized as follows: 

Due from other go\l?rnmental funtk 

Due to other 
go\l?rnmental funtk 

Debt service fund 
Capital ~roveirencs bond fund 
Other govemm:ntal funds 

Totals 

Transfers to other 
gowrnmental funm 

O:neral fund 
Debt service fund 
Capital itq>roveirencs bond fund 
Ocher govemrrencal funds 

Totals 

s 

$ 

s 

s 

Gener al 
fund 
6,307,316 
7,049,.516 

10,538,928 
23,895,760 

General 
fund 

6.391,526 
3.890.749 
1,821,140 

12,103,415 

Other 
gO\l?mmentaJ 

funtk Total 
s $ 6,307,316 

7,049,.516 
8,511,523 19,050,451 

s 8,511.523 $ 32,407,283 

Transfers from other go,ernmental funtk 

Debt Capital Other 
senice impro\ements go~rnmental 

fund bond fund Cuntk 
$ $ 4,709,280 s 8,188,215 

2,981,509 
5,403.155 

s 2,981,509 s 4,709,280 s 13.591,370 

Total 
s 12.897,495 

6,391,526 
6,872,258 
7,224.295 

s 33.385.574 

The principal purposes of interfund receivables and payables among governmental funds are: 

• Recognize the outstanding balance of $10.5 million of short-term loans granted by the 
general fund to other governmental funds to temporarily finance the payroll and other 
operating costs of several federal and state funded programs. 

• Recognize the outstanding balance of $8.5 million of short-term loans among other 
governmental funds to finance the operation of several programs. 

• Recognize the outstanding balance of $7 .0 million of advances granted by the general 
fund to the capital improvements bond fund to finance the costs of the acquisition, 
construction and improvement of several major capital assets. These advances are not 
expected to be repaid within one fiscal year after year-end. Accordingly, at June 30, 2014 
the general fund reported nonspendable fund balance amounting to $7 .0 million to 
properly disclose that these interfund receivables are not considered current available 
financial resources of the general fund at June 30, 2014. 
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• Recognize in the debt service fund the excess cash in fi scal agent of $6.3 million due to 
the general fund pursuant to provisions of Act. No. 19, referred to below. 

The principal purposes of inter-fund transfers among governmental funds are: 

• Make a routinely transfer of resources, amounting to $8.2 million, from the general fund 
to other governmental funds, to cover the operating costs of several federally and state 
funded programs. 

• Recognize in the capital improvements bond fund the commitment of $4.7 million by the 
general fund to provide the financial resources to cover the cost of the acquisition, 
construction and improvement of various maj or capital assets. 

• Make a routinely transfer of interest income amounting to $3.9 million from the capital 
improvements bond fund to the general fund, as permitted by law. This interest income 
was earned by the deposits held in the capital improvements bond fund and was 
transferred to the general fund. 

• Recognize in the general fund the nonroutinary residual equity transfer of $ 1.8 million 
from the Department of Justice fund, the Department of Labor fund, the Department of 
Health and Human Services fund, the Department of Housing and Urban Development 
fund, and the miscellaneous special revenue fund. 

On January 24, 2014, Act No. 19, known as Municipal Finance Corporation Acr, was enacted to, 
among other things, allow the Municipality to withdraw from its debt service fund all deposits 
he ld in excess of the debt service requirements on certa in bonds and notes previously guaranteed 
with a portion of the municipal sales and usage taxes. On June 30, 20 14, the management of the 
Munic ipality opted to withdraw all excess cash in the debt service fund as permitted by Act No. 
19. The excess restricted deposits amounted to $6.4 million as determined by GDB at June 30, 
20 14. A transfer and a related receivable/payable of $6.4 million for such purposes was recorded 
from the debt service fund to the general fund at June 30, 2014. 

On June 30, 2014, the management of the Municipality opted to withdrawal excess cash in the 
capital improvements bond fund as permitted by law. The excess restricted deposits amounted to 
$3.0 million as determined by GDB. A transfer of $3.0 mi llion for such purposes was recorded 
from the capital improvements bond fund to the debt service fund at June 30, 20 14. 

The proprietary fund has a due from the gene ral fund of $ 184 thousand that represents deposits 
from tenants accounted for in the general fund. During the year, the general fund transferred $2.9 
million for the proprietary fund to be used for the debt service requirements at July I, 20 14. 

This space was inte111io11ally left blank. 
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7. CAPITAL ASSETS 

....... The composition and activity of capital assets for the fiscal year were as follows: 

'-
Balance at Balance at 

'-' beginning of end of 

i..... 
fi scal year Reclassifications Increases fiscal year 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 123,271,319 s $ s 123,271,319 
Works of an 2,224,365 2,224,365 
Construction in progress 28,874,766 (5,263,821) 13,641 ,449 37,252,394 .._ 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 154,370,450 (5,263,821) 13,641,449 162,748,078 

'-
Capital assets, being depreciated: 

\....: Buildings and building improvements 446,175,115 281,713 2 ,2 18,230 448,675,058 
Site improvements 183,75l ,196 1,983,091 185,734,287 - lnfraslructure 279,320,463 4,982,108 4,078,139 288,380,710 

'- Equipment and vehicles 49,177,372 7 ,247,340 56,424,712 
Intangible 3,825,426 3,825,426 

"- Total capital assets being depreciated 962,249,572 5,263,821 15,526,800 983,040,193 

...... 
Less: accumu/aced depreciation for: - Buildings and building improvements (209,421 ,806) (3,521) (18,288,695) (227,714,022) 

Site improvements (121,398,518) (7,328,949) ( 128,727,467) 

Infrastructure (90,271,422) 3,521 (10,417,447) ( I 00,685,348) 
Equipment and vehicles (29,450,489) (6,357,013) (35,807,502) 

Intangible (3,825.426) (3,825,426) 

Total accumulated depreciation (454,367,661 ) (42,392,104) (496,759,765) 

Total capital assets being dep reciated, net 507,881,91 1 5,263,821 (26,865,304) 486,280,428 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 662,252,361 $ s ( 13,223,855) s 649,028,506 

....... Business-type Activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated - land $ 18,600,000 $ $ s 18,600,000 -

'-" 
Capital assets , being depreciated -building 

and building improvements 36,400,000 36,400,000 

"-
Less: accumulated depreciation for building 

and building improvements (2,275.595) (910,000) (3, 185,595) 

Total cap ital assets being depreciated, net 34,124,405 (910,000) 33,214,405 

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 52,724,405 s $ (910,000) s 51,814,405 

The buildings and building improvements of the business-type activities are leased under an 
operating lease agreement to various tenants. 

- The main tenant of the facilities declared bankruptcy during March 2014 and has defaulted in its 
.._, lease payments to the Municipality. This situation caused the Municipality to transfer $2.9 

million from the general fund to cover the debt service requirements of the proprietary fund. The - Municipality is actively negotiating with current and possible alternative tenants to solve this 

'- situation. 
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the MunicipaJjty as follows: 

Governmental activities: Amount 
General govern.rent $ 5,225,452 
Public safecy 3,108,629 
Urban affairs 11,017,260 
Culture and recreation 9,790,623 
Health and welfare 5,773,937 
Urban developrrent 327,938 
Economic developrrent 5,570,540 
Education 1,577,726 

Total depreciation expense $ 42,392,104 

Business-type activities: Amount 
International Center $ 910,000 

8. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

9. 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at year-end are as follows: 

Governmental funds 
Capital 0 the r 

General improvements governmental 
fund bond fund funds 

Accounts payable to suppliers $ 58,745,408 $ 7,792,054 $ 

Compensated absences, due 
and payable 689,030 

Payroll-related accrued liabilities 5,255,082 
Total $ 64,689,520 $ 7,792,054 $ 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL PAYABLES 

Intergovernmental payables at year-end are as follows: 

Puerto llico Aqueduct and Sewer ' v 

Puerto Rico Government Empl· ~ ~nt System 

Total Y~' 

&~~,; 
·l/~ ~ 

52 

10,060,637 

10,060,637 

.:ft blank. 

$ 

$ 

Total 

76,598,009 

689,030 
5,255,082 

82,542,211 

Statement of 
net position -

governmental 
activities 

$ 94,935,273 

689,030 
5,255,082 

$ 100,879,385 

General 
fund 

$ 1,873,120 
2,640,944 

$ 4,514,064 
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'-
10. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

- Deferred inflows of resources are as follows at June 30, 2014: 

'-' 
S tatement - of net 

Debt Other Total position · 
\.,... 

Gene ral senice go\'emmental go\unmental go\'emmeotal 

'-
fund fund funds funds acti ,ities 

Unavailable revenues: 
.._ Proper! y taices s 30,674,442 s 17,364,596 s s 48,039.038 s 

M unicipal license taxes 8,27 1,257 8.271,257 
Sales and usage taxes 2,618,850 2,618,850 
Construction excise taxes 4.416,389 4,416.389 
Charges for services 1,825,006 1,825,006 
Intergovernmental grants and comributions 1,789,983 264,437 2,054,420 

Total unavailable revenues 49,595,927 17,364,596 264,437 67,224.960 

Untamed revenues: 
M unicipal license taxes 97.235.960 97,235,960 97.235,960 
Intergovernmental grants and contributions 12,000,000 12,000,000 12.000.000 

'- Total unearned revenues 97,235,960 12.000.000 109,235,960 109,235,960 

\,,.< Total deferred inOows of resources s 146,831 ,887 s 17,364,596 s 12,264,437 s 176,460,920 s 109,235,960 

'- 11. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

Long-term obligations activity for the fi scal year ended June 30, 2014 is as fo llows: 

Balance at Balance at 
beginning ol end or fiscal Due~thin 

Go•ernmental activities: fiscal year Inc.re as es Decreases year one fiscal year 

Bonds payable s 479,437.000 s s ( 42.846,000) s 436,591,000 s 36,808,000 
Mortgage payable 3,061,681 (439,312) 2.622.369 478,143 
Notes payable 401,170,329 85,220,000 (44,334,551) 442.055,778 25,223,022 
O:>rqiensated absences 60,424,513 8,355.495 (7,861.524) 60,918,484 7,861,524 
Pension-related debt 8,511,053 (4,820,947) 3,690,106 3,690,106 
Oaims and judgments 14,162,313 1.045,755 (10,904.090) 4,303,978 
Eslirnued liability for nunicipal 

solid waste landfill 
postclosure care costs 16,200,266 {736,376) 15,463,890 736.376 - Self insurance clairm liability 5,281.808 5.388,754 (247,128) 10,423,434 

Total govemrrental activities 
loog-tenn liabilities s 988,248,963 s 100,010,004 s (112.189.928) s 976,069,039 s 74,797,171 

B usines1=fl'.ee a£ti•ities: 
Revenue bonds payable and - total b!lsinesH ype activities 

non-current liabilities s 54,551,940 s s (570,000) s 53,981.9-IO s 610.lXXl 

The Municipality liquidates certain notes payable, compensated absences, claims and judgments, 
solid waste landfill post-closure costs and any other long-term liabilities other than bonds, with 
resources from its general fund. 
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Governmental Activities 

a. Debt Limitation 

The Municipal Legislature is legally authorized to approve the issuance of debts of the 
Municipality. Nevertheless, the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
also provide that: 

1) Direct obligations of the Municipality (evidenced principally by bonds and bond 
anticipation notes) are backed by the full faith, credit and trucing power of the 
Municipality; and 

2) Direct obligations are not to be issued by the Municipality if the amount of the 
principal of, and the interest on, such bonds and bond anticipation notes (and on all 
bonds and notes issued thereafter) which are payable in any fiscal year, together with 
any amount paid by the Municipality in the preceding fiscal year on account of bonds 
or bond anticipation notes guaranteed by the Municipality, exceed IO percent of the 
total assessed value of the property located within the Municipality plus the balance 
of the ad valorem taxes in the debt service fund, for bonds payable and bond 
anticipation notes to be repaid with the proceeds of property taxes restricted for debt 
service. 

In addition, before any new bonds are issued, the revenues of the debt service fund should be 
sufficient to cover the projected debt service requirements. 

b. Bonds Payable 

The Municipality issues general obligation, special obligation and public improvement bonds 
to finance the acquisition, construction and improvement of capital assets, as well as, to 
finance certain operating needs, including the payment to suppliers in certain circumstances. 

The laws and regulations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico provide that the 
Municipality's public debt will constitute a first claim on the available revenue of the 
Municipality. Public debt includes bonds and bond anticipation notes. The good faith, credit 
and taxing power of the Municipality are irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment of the 
principal and interest of bonds. 

The Municipality levies an annual additional special ad valorem tax of three and a half 
percent (3 .50%) of the assessed value of personal and real property. The proceeds of this 
additional special tax are deposited in a sinking fund established at GDB whereby sufficient 
funds are set aside to redeem the bonds payable of the Municipality in minimum annual or 
semiannual principal and interest payments. The collections of this special tax are recorded 
in the Municipality's debt service fund. 

Variable interest rates on serial bonds are reviewed periodically by GDB and are based on the 
fluctuation of GDB's weighted average rate for its commercial paper program. Under this 
program, GDB issues commercial paper: (1) in the taxable and tax-exempt markets of the 
United States of America, (2) in the Eurodollar market, and (3) to corporations having tax 
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exemptions under the Commonwealth's Industrial Incentives Acts and, which qualify for 
benefits provided by the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. 

The Municipality's tax-exempt bonds are subject to the arbitrage rebate requirements. At 
year-end, the Municipality had no federal arbitrage liability on bonds since interest income 
earned from the investment of unspent bond proceeds were made in bank deposits that 
generate yields lower than the rates applicable to the debt service payments. 

For financial reporting purposes, the outstanding balances of bonds represent the total 
principal to be repaid. Bonds payable is composed as follows: 

This space was intentionally left blank. 
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Description 

2012 general obligation bonds for the construction, improvements and 
acquisitions of various capital assets with an original amount of $100.7 
million due in annual installments of $1,615,000 to $8,530,000, through 
July 1, 2035; with interest ranging from 6.0% to 7.5% 

2012 general obligation bonds for the fifth payment of the early 
retirement termination benefit with an original amount of $25.7 million 
due in annual installments of $375,000 to $2,145,000, through July 1, 
2036; with interest ranging from 6.0% to 7.5% 

2011 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $24.9 million due in 
annual installments of $2,875,000 to $4,310,000, through July 1, 2017; 
with interest ranging from 6.0% to 7.0% 

2010 general obligation bonds for the third payment of the early 
retirement termination benefit with an original amount of $28.3 million 
due in annual installments of $415,000 to $2,365,000, through July 1, 

2034; with interest ranging from 4.75% to 7.5% 

2010 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $11.2 million due in 
annual installments of $255,000 to $1,025,000, through July 1, 2029; with 
interest ranging from 4.75% to 7.5% 

2010 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $10. l million due in 
annual installments of $725,000 to $1,340,000, through July 1, 2019; with 
interest ranging from 5.0% to 7.0% 

2010 general obligation bonds for the acqws1t10n, construction and 
improvements of various capital assets with an original amount of $13.5 
million due in annual installments of $340,000 to $1,260,000, through 
July 1, 2028; with interest ranging from 5.0% to 7.5% 
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Outstanding 
amount 

$ 97,320,000 

24,945,000 

15,625,000 

26,405,000 

10,055,000 

6,825,000 

11,980,000 
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Description 

2009 general obligation bonds for the acquisition of various capital 
assets with an original amount of $7.0 million due in annual installments 
of $800,000 to $1,230,000, through July 1, 2015; with interest ranging 
from 4.75% to 7.5% 

2009 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $16.9 million due in 
annual installments of $430,000 to $1,585,000, through July 1, 200.7; with 
interest ranging from 4.75% to 7.5% 

2008 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $4.7 million due in 
annual installments of $175,000 to $500,000, through July 1, 2023; with 
interest ranging from 1.53% to 7.5% 

2008 general obligation bonds for the second payment of the early 
retirement termination benefit with an original amount of $20.0 million 
due in annual installments of $305,000 to $1,635,000, through July 1, 
2032; with interest ranging from 1.53% to 7.25% 

2008 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $4. 7 million due in 
annual installments of $70,000 to $390,000, through July 1, 2032; with 
interest ranging from 1.53% to 7.25% 

2008 general obligation bonds for the acquisition of various capital 
assets with an original amount of $10.9 million due in annual 
installments of $1245,000 to $1,900,000, through July 1, 2014; with 
interest ranging from 1.53% to 6.50% 
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Outstanding 
amount 

$ 2,375,000 

14,420,000 

3,680,000 

17,800,000 

4,210,000 

1,900,000 
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Description 

2007 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an ol\,,oinal amount of $13.8 million due in 
annual instalhnents of $320,000 to $1,2()(),000, through July 1, 2026; with 
interest ranging from l.53% to 7.00% 

2007 general obligation bonds for the first payment of the early 
retirement termination benefit with an original amount of $22.6 million 
due in annual installments of $357,000 to $1,812,000, through July l , 
2031; with interest ranging from 1.53% to 7.00% 

2005 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $18.6 million due in 
annual instalhnents of $480,CXX> to $1,585,CXX>, through July 1, 2025; with 

interest ranging from 4.23% to 5.33% 

2005 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $18.9 million due in 
annual installments of $570,CXX> to $1,450,000, through July 1, 2024; with 
interest ranging from 4.17% to 5.28% 

2004 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $10.1 million due in 
annual installments of $500,000 to $870,000, through July 1, 2019; with 
interest ranging from 3.28% to 4.80% 

2004 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $22.2 million due in 
annual instalhnents of $815,CXX> to $1,130,CXX>, through July l, 2027; with 
interest ranging from 2. 76% to 5.31 % 

2003 general obligation bonds for the construction and improvements of 
various capital assets with an original amount of $12.8 million due in 
annual installments of $415,000 to $620,CXX>, through July 1, 2028; with 
interest ranging from l.61 % to 5.31 % 
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Outstanding 
amount 

$ 11,000,000 

19,491,CXX> 

13,790,000 

12,635,000 

4,745,000 

14,400,000 

8,310,000 
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Description 

2001 serial bonds for the construction and improvements of various 

capital assets with an original amount of $55.6 million due in annual 

instalhnents of $760,000 to $4,825,000, through July 1, 2026; with 

interest ranging from 2.70% to 5.60% 

2000 serial bonds for the construction and improvements of various 

capital assets with an original amount of $25.4 million due in annual 

installments of $970,000 to $2,680,000, through July 1, 2015; with 

interest ranging from 2.70% to 7.81 % 

1999 general obligations bonds for the construction and improvements 

of various capital assets with an original amount of $65.0 million due in 

annual installments of $1,740,000 to $5,885,000, through July 1, 2018; 

with interest ranging from 4.87% to 6.46% 

1999 general obligations bonds for the construction and improvements 

of various capital assets with an original amount of $67.3 million due in 

annual installments of $1,980,000 to $6,260,000, through July l , 2016; 

with interest ranging from 4.87% to 6.34% 

1998 serial bonds for the construction and improvements of various 

capital assets with an original amount of $51.4 million due in annual 

installments of $1,190,000 to $4,695,000, through July 1, 2017; with 

interest ranging from 4. 87% to 6. 71 % 

1998 general obligations bonds for the construction and improvements 

of various capital assets with an original amount of $18.3 million due in 

annual instalbnents of $350,000 to $1,605,000, through July 1, 2019; with 

interest ranging from 4.87% to 6.71 % 

Total 
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Outstanding 
amount 

$ 41,150,000 

5,170,000 

25,805,000 

17,570,000 

16,900,000 

8,085,000 

$ 436,591,000 
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c. 

d. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds payable are as follows: 

Fiscal year 
ending 

J une 30, Principal Interest 
2015 $ 36,808,000 $ 27,989,771 

2016 37,318,000 25,703,177 

2017 35,701,000 23,031,795 

2018 31,472,000 21,260,883 

2019 23,956,000 19,491,855 

2020-2024 92,319,000 78,965,917 

2025-2029 91 ,601,000 47,236,949 

2030-2034 62,591,000 20,756,890 

2035-2037 24,825,000 2,042,063 

Totals $ 436,591,000 $ 266,479,300 

Mortgage Payable 

The mortgage Joan payable with an original amount of $7 .0 million to the government of the 
United States of America bears interest at 8.5% and is secured by the Federal Housing 
Administration and by a first mortgage on rental property. Principal and interest are payable 
from the proceeds of the rent collected from the tenants. The Federal government provides 
housing assistance payments to qualified tenants to subsidize most of the monthly rent. This 
housing project is administered by a private entity. 

Aggregate annual maturities of the mortgage payable are as follows: 

Fiscal year 
ending 

June 30, Principal Interest 

2015 $ 478,143 $ 204,559 

2016 520,406 162,295 

2017 566,405 116,296 

2018 616,470 66,231 

2019 440,945 14,170 

Totals $ 2,622,369 $ 563,551 

Notes Payable 

On September 24, 2002, CRIM, on behalf of the municipalities of Puerto Rico, entered into a 
financing agreement with GOB to extinguish in advance certain bonds payable issued by 
Public Finance Corporation (PFC), a subsidiary of GDB, which were originally issued to pay 
certain property tax receivables owned by the municipalities of Puerto Rico through 1996, 
which were acquired by PFC with recourse. The original face amount of the note allocated 
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by CRIM to the Municipality was for a term not exceeding 30 years. The note bears interest 
at 6.50 percent during its first five years. Subsequently, from years 6 through 30, the loan 
shall bear variable interest at a rate of 125 points over the 5-year LIBOR rate, which will be 
adjusted every five years. Principal and interest payments on this financing agreement are 
accounted for in the general fund. The outstanding principal as of June 30, 2014 
approximates $10.9 million. 

During September 2002, the Municipality entered into a repayment agreement with the GDB 
and CRIM to repay a debt of $27.4 million . The principal and interest payments are due on 
July l of each year through July 1, 2032. The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2014 
approximates $22.1 million. The repayment agreement is payable in monthly installments of 
$168,685 from unrestricted property tax revenues and bears interest at a fixed interest rate of 
6.19%. 

During November 2004, the Municipality issued a special obligation refunding note with a 
commercial bank for approximately $40 million to refinance certain notes payable to GDB. 
The note bears interest at 90-day London Interbank Offering Rate (LIBOR) plus 1.25% 
(0.80% at June 30, 2014) and is payable semi-annually ranging from $.06 million to $2.9 
million, and matures at various dates through July 1, 2029. The outstanding balance as of 
June 30, 2014 approximates $30.4 million. This note will be repaid from unrestricted 
property tax revenues. 

During June 2006, the Municipality issued a note payable to GDB for $31.4 million. The 
note is payable in annual installments through July 2030 ranging from $0.5 million to $2.4 
million and will bear interest at 90-day LIBOR plus 1.25 percent (1.50% at June 30, 2014). 
The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2014 approximates $25.1 million. The proceeds of 
the note were used principally to pay debt incurred in prior years. This note will be repaid 
from unrestricted property tax revenues. 

During January 2008, the Municipality issued a special obligation note (SON-A) for $36.1 
million. The SON-A is payable in annual installments through July 2014 ranging from $5.1 
million to $7 .0 million and will bear interest at 90-day LIB OR plus 1.25 percent with a 
minimum of 5% and maximum of 12% ( 1.48% at June 30, 2014). The proceeds of the SON­
A were used principally to infrastructure capital outlays. The outstanding balance as of June 
30, 2014 approximates $7.0 million . The SON-A will be repaid through sales tax revenues 
pledge and account for in the Municipality Redemption Fund. 

During January 2008, the Municipality issued a special obligation note (SON-B) for $37.1 
million. The SON-B is payable in annual installments through July 2032 ranging from $600 
thousand to $3.1 million and will bear interest at 90-day LIBOR plus 1.25 percent with a 
minimum of 5% and maximum of 12% ( 1.48% at June 30, 2014). The proceeds of the SON­
B were used principally for the construction of various capital facilities and other capital 
assets. The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2014 approximates $33.3 million. The SON­
B will be repaid through sales tax revenues pledge and account for in the Municipality 
Redemption Fund. 

In addition, the Municipality entered into a loan agreement with the US Department of 
Housing and Urban Development under a Variable Rate Note Guarantee pursuant to Section 
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108 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended. Tbe note was 
issued to finance the future acqujsition and construction of major capita] faci lities, and allows 
borrowings up to a maximum of $72.5 million. The borrowings have an outstanding balance 
of approximately $46.4 million and is payable in annual installments ranging from $2.7 to 
$6.3 million, mature at various dates through July 2022 and bear interest at 0.2% over 90-day 
LIBOR (0.47% at June 30, 2014). This loan agreement will be repaid from future grant 
awards received from the Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) program. 

On August 24, 20 12, the MunicipaJity borrowed $ 18.7 mHlion from GDB for the purpose of 
acquisition of major capital assets. The notes shall bear interests at variable rates (6.00% at 
June 30, 2014). The notes are payable in seven (7) annual instalments ranging from $2. 1 
million to $3.3 million, plus interests, through July 1, 2019. The outstanding baJance as of 
June 30, 2014 approximates $16.6 mill ion. 

On June 28, 20 13, the MunicipaJity borrowed $165 million from three commercial banks 
through the issuance of Series A, Band C of the 2013 Municipal Genera] Obligation Notes 
amounting to $80 million, $60 million and $25 million, respectively, for the purpose of 
providing working capital and the financial resources needed to repay certain operating 
expenses amounting to $ 165 million . 

• The 2013, Series A, Municipal General Obligation Notes, shall bear interests at rate 
of 1.5% over prime rate (4.75% at June 30, 2014). The notes are payable in twenty­
five (25) annuaJ instalments ranging from $1.9 million to $5. 1 million, plus interests, 
through July I , 2038. 

• The 2013, Series B and C, Municipal General Obligation Notes, shall bear interests at 
variable rates (4.25% at June 30, 2014) and are payable in twenty-five annual 
instalments ranging from $ 1.4 million to $3.8 million and from $0.6 million to $1.6 
million, respectively, plus interests, through July 1, 2038. 

• The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2014 of Series A, B, and C of the 2013 
Municipal General Obligations Notes approximate $80.0 million, $60.0 million and 
$25.0 million, respectively. 

In August 20 13, the Municipality borrowed $50.3 million from GDB through the issuance of 
Series D of the 2013 Municipality General Obligation Notes for the purpose of providing 
working capital and the financial resources needed to repay certain operating expenses and 
past due liabilities with suppliers outstandtng since 2012. The outstanding balance as of June 
30, 20 14 approximates $50.3 million. The 20 13, Series D Municipal General Obligation 
Notes, shall bear interescs at variable races (6.00% at June 30, 2014) and are payable in 
twenty-five annual instaJments ranging from $700 thousand to $4.2 million, plus interests, 
through July 1, 2038. 

On January 29, 2014, the Municipality borrowed $5.0 million from a commercial bank 
through the issuance of Series E of the 2013 Municipal General Obligation Note. Such notes 
were issued for the purpose of acquisition of major capital assets. The notes shall bear interest 
at variable rates (7.50% at June 30, 2014). The notes are payable in seven (7) annual 
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e. 

instalments ranging from $650,000 to $785,000, plus interests, through July 1, 2020. The 
outstanding baJance as of June 30, 20 14 approxi mates $5.0 million. 

On June 28, 20 14, the MunicipaJity borrowed $29.9 million from GDB for the purpose of 
refinance the line of credit agreement that were issued to finance the fourth instaUment of the 
early retirement termination benefit plan and other related debts. The notes shall bear 
interests at variable rates (6.00% at June 30, 20 14). The notes are payable in ten (10) annual 
instalments ranging from $2.J million to $4. 1 million, plus interests, through July l , 2023. 
The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2014 approximates $29.9 million. 

The notes with commercial banks are subject to various debt covenants that the management 
of the Municipality understands that have been complied with in aJl materiaJ respects, except 
for certain covenants for which the Municipality has obtained compliance waivers from the 
respective financial institutions at June 30, 2014. 

The maturities of notes payable are as follows: 

FiscaJ year 

encing 

June 30, Principal Interest 

2015 $ 25.223,022 $ 26,453.502 

2016 19,266.686 27,798,686 

2017 20,387.434 26.515.139 

2018 21,565.688 25.149.847 

2019 22,811,899 23.698.847 

2020-2024 110,751,050 %.089.910 

2025-2029 83,729.739 65.320,588 

2030-2034 72.140,260 37.051. 197 

2035-2039 66,180.<XX> 12,924,938 

Totals $ 442.055,778 $ 341.002,653 

Compensated Absences 

The government-wide statement of net position includes approximately $27 .8 million, $28.8 
million and $4.3 million of accrued vacation benefits, accrued sick leave benefits and payroU­
related benefits, respectively, representing the Municipality's commitment to fund such costs 
from future operations. The matured portion of such obligation that is due and payable has 
been recorded in the amount of $689 thousand within accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
of the general fund at June 30, 2014. 

f. Pension-Related Debt 

Pension-related debt includes various obligations of the Municipality with the Employees 
Retirement System of the Government of Puerto Rico and Its lnstrumentaJities for the 
repayment of liabilities that resulted from the enactment of various special laws that, 
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substance over form, converted the Municipality's actuarial accrued liability into a fixed 
contractual liability to the Cost-Sharing Multi-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan that 
the Municipality's employees participate and an early retirement plan. 

On September 1, 2010, the Municipality entered into a payment plan of $21.8 million with 
the Employees Retirement System of the Government of Puerto Rico and Its Instrumentalities 
for the repayment of a pension-related debt that resulted from the enactment of additional 
special laws during the years 2006 through 2010. 

The pension-related debt of $21.8 million is payable with a first installment payment of $2.5 
million made in September 10, 2010 followed by fifty-nine monthly installments of 
approximately $0.3 million, including interestS at an imputed rate of 5% per annum. 

The pension-related debt has been reported in the accompanying government-wide statement 
of net position since it is considered an accounting liability resulting from the conversion of 
an actuarial liability (off balance sheet obligation) into a liability that must be reported in the 
accompanying financial statements. The amount due for pension related debt of $3,690,106 is 
due during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. 

g. Estimated liability for Municipal Solid Waste Uindfill Post-closure Care Cost 

State and federal laws and regulations require the Municipality to place a final cover on the 
Municipality's solid waste landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain 
maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for 30 years after closure. In December 
2000, the Municipality's landfill facilities were closed. Based on current costs, the 
preliminary annual estimate of post closure costs has been assessed to be approximately $700 
thousand for a period of approximately 22 years. The balance of post closure costs of $15.5 
million is reported in the statement of net position. Actual costs may be different due to 
inflation, changes in technology, or changes in laws and regulations. 

h. Self-insurance 

The Municipality establishes a liability for both reported and unreported insured events, 
which includes estimates of both future payments of losses and related claim adjustment 
expenses. The following represents changes in those aggregate liabilities for the Fund during 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014: 

Unpaid claims at beginning of year 
Incurred claims and claim adjustments expenses 

Total incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses 

Payments 

Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at end of year 
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Business-type activities 

i. Revenue Bonds Payable - Proprietary Fund 

On December 15, 2010, the Municipality issued revenue bonds amounting to $55.1 million 
for the acquisition of an income-producing real estate property commonly known as 
International Center. The bonds are payable in twenty five (25) annual installments 
commencing on July 1, 2012 through July 1, 2036. The Municipality shall pay interests on 
the bonds at a rate per annum equal to 3.5 percentage points over the London Interbank 
Offered Rate (3.97% at June 30, 2014). 

Pursuant to the provisions of the revenue bond indentures, the Municipality has pledged and 
assigned its right, title and interest in all future revenues to be produced in the operation and 
maintenance of the acquired property. In the event that such revenues are not sufficient to 
make all debt service payments of principal, interests and premium, if any, on the bonds, the 
Municipality wiU appropriate the necessary portion of its general revenues to cover the debt 
service payments due and payable. During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Municipality 
transferred $2.9 million from the general fund to cover debt service requirements. In addition , 
the acquired property is subject to a mortgage constituted as security for the obligations 
evidenced by the bonds issued. 

The revenue bonds are subject to several positive and negative covenants that the 
Municipality must comply with at all times. The management of the Municipality 
understands that all debt covenants have been complied with, in all material respects, at June 
30, 2014. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds payable are as follows: 

Fiscal year 
ending 

June 30, Principal Interes t 
2015 $ 610,000 $ 2,904,232 

2016 660,000 2,928,306 

2017 700,000 2,940,257 

2018 760,000 2,970,507 

2019 820,000 2,998,206 

2020-2024 5,100,000 15,414,312 

2025-2029 7,320,000 16,360,375 
2030-2034 10,510,000 17,768,095 

2035-2037 27,501,940 30,668,862 

Totals $ 53,981,940 $ 94,953,154 
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12. PENSION PLANS 

a. Cost-Sharing M ultiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

The Municipality' s employees participate in the Employees' Retirement System of the 
Government of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities (ERS), a cost-sharing multi-employer 
(as related to the Municipality's reporting entity) defined benefit pension plan established by 
the Commonwealth and administered by the Retirement Systems Administration of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Substantially all full-time employees of the Commonwealth 
Municipality are covered by ERS under the terms of Public Act No. 447 of May 15, 1951, as 
amended (Act No. 447) . All regular and temporary employees of the Municipality become 
plan members of ERS at the date of employment, while it is optional for officers appointed. 
ERS members, other than those joining it after March 31, 1990, are eligible for the benefits 
described below: 

Retirement Annuity 

ERS members are eligible for a retirement annuity upon reaching the following age: 

Policemen and firemen: 
50 with 25 years of credited service 
58 with 10 years of credited service 

Other employees: 
55 with 25 years of credited service 
58 with 10 years of credited service 

ERS members are eligible for monthly benefit payments determined by the application of the 
stipulated benefit ratios to the member' s average compensation. Average compensation is 
computed based on the highest 36 months of compensation recognized by ERS. The annuity, 
for which a member is eligible, is limited to a minimum of $300 per month and a maximum 
of 75 percent of the average compensation. 

Merit Annuity 

ERS members are eligible for merit annuity with a minimum of 30 years or more of credited 
service. The annuity for which the plan member is eligible is limited to a minimum of 65 
percent and a maximum of 75 percent of the average compensation. 

Def e" ed Retirement A nnuity 

A participating employee who ceases to be an employee of the Municipality after having 
accumulated a minimum of ten years of credited service qualifies for retirement benefits 
provided his/her contributions are left in ERS until reaching 58 years of age. 

Coordinated Plan 

On the coordinated plan, by the time the employee reaches 65 years old and begins to receive 
social security benefits, the pension benefits are reduced by the following: 

a. $165 per month, if retired with 55 years of age and 30 years of credited service. 
b. $110 per month, if retired with less than 55 years of age and 30 years of credited service. 
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c. All other between $82 and $100 per month. 
d. Disability annuities under the coordinated plan are also adjusted at age 65 and in some 

cases can be reduced over $165 per month. 

Non-Coordinated Plan 

On the non-coordinated plan the participating employee does not have any change on the 
pension benefits upon receiving social security benefits . 

Reversionary Annuity 

An ERS member, upon retirement, could elect to receive a reduced retirement annuity giving 
one or more benefit payments to bisfber dependents. The life annuity payments would start 
after the death of the retiree for an amount not less than $240 per year or greater than the 
annuity payments being received by the retiree. 

Occupational Disability Annuity 

A participating employee, who as a direct result of the performance of his/her occupation is 
totally and permanently disabled is eligible for a disability annuity of 50 percent of the 
compensation received at the time of disability. 

Non-occupational Disability Annuity 

A participating employee, totally and permanently disabled for causes not related to hisfber 
occupation and with no less than 10 years of credited service, is eligible for an annuity of 
1.50 percent of the average compensation of the fust 20 years of credited services, increased 
by 2 percent for every additional year of credited service in excess of 20 years. 

Death Benefits 

Occupational: 

a. Surviving spouse - annuity equal to 50 percent of the participating employee's salary at 
the date of the death. 

b. Children - $10 per month for each child, minor or student, up to a maximum benefit per 
family of $100. 

Non-occupational: 

Beneficiary - the contributions and interest accumulated as of the date of the death plus an 
amount equal to the annual compensation at the time of the death. 
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Refunds 

A participating employee who ceases his/her employment with the Municipality without the 
right to a retirement annuity has the right to a refund of the contributions to ERS plus any 
interest earned thereon. 

b. Hybrid Defined Contribution Pension Plati 

On September 24, 1999, Public Act No. 305 was enacted to establish a defined contribution 
plan, known as System 2000, to cover employees joining ERS on or after January 1, 2000. 

Employees that participated in the defined benefit plan as of December 31, 1999, had the 
opportunity to elect to either stay in the defined benefit plan or transfer to System 2000. 
Employees that joined the Municipality on or after January 1, 2000, were only allowed to 
become members of System 2000. 

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan administered by the Retirement Systems 
Administration of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, also known as a cash balance plan. 
Under this new plan, there is a pool of plan assets, which is invested by the System, together 
with those of the cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan. Neither the 
Commonwealth nor the Municipality guarantee benefits at retirement age. The annuity is 
based on a formula which assumes that each fiscal year the employee's contribution (with a 
minimum of 8.28 percent of the employee's salary up to a maximum of 10 percent) is 
invested as instructed by the employee in an account which either: ( I) earns a fixed rate based 
on the two-year Constant Maturity Treasury Notes, (2) earns a rate equal to 75 percent of the 
return of the ERS' investment portfolio (net of management fees), or (3) earns a combination 
of both alternatives. Participants receive periodic account statements sim.ilar to those of 
defined contribution plans showing their accrued balances. Disability benefits are not granted 
under System 2000, rather are provided to those participants that voluntarily elect to 
participate in a private insurance long-term disability program. The employers' contributions 
(9.28 percent of the employee's salary) with respect to employees under System 2000 wiJI 
continue and will be used to fund the cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan. 

System 2000 reduced the retirement age from 65 years to 60 for those employees who joined 
the current plan on or after January 1, 2000. 

On April 4, 2013, the Governor of Puerto Rico, signed into law Act No. 3 of 2013, which 
represents a comprehensive reform of the System. Act No. 3 became effective on July 1, 
2013 and amended the provisions of the different benefit structures under the System, 
including, but not limited to, the following: 

l. For active participants of the contributory defined benefit programs under Act No. 
447 of 1951 and Act No. 1 of 1990, all retirement benefits accrued through June 30, 
2013 were frozen, and thereafter, all future benefits will accrue under the defined 
contribution formula used for System 2000 participants, and will be paid at 
retirement through a lifetime annuity. 

2. Increased the minimum pension for current retirees from $400 to $500 per month. 
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3. The retirement age for Act No. 447 participants will be gradually increased from age 
58 to age 6 1. 

4. The retirement age for active System 2000 participants will be gradually increased 
from age 60 to 65 . 

5. Transitioning active participants under Act No. 1 and Act No. 447 to a defined 
contribution plan similar to System 2000 . 

6. Eliminated the "merit annuity" available to participants who joined the System prior 
to April l , 1990. 

7. The retirement age for new employees was increased to age 67, except for new state 
and municipal police officers, firefighters and custody officers, which will be age 58. 

8. The employee contribution rate was increased from 8.275% to 10%. 

9. For System 2000 participants, the retirement benefits will no longer be paid as a lump 
sum distribution, instead, they will be paid through a lifetime annuity. 

10. Eliminated or reduced various retirement benefits previously granted by special laws, 
including Christmas and summer bonuses. The Christmas bonus payable to current 
retirees was reduced from $600 to $200 and was eliminated for future retirees. The 
summer bonus was eliminated. 

11 . Disability benefits were eliminated and substituted for a mandatory disability 
insurance policy. 

12. Survivor benefits were modified. 

Funding Policies 

The contribution requirement to ERS is established by law and is not actuarially determined. 
These contributions are as follows: 

Municipality and other employers 

Employees: 

Coordination plan: 

Supplementation plan: 
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12.28 percent of applicable payroll 

7 .00 percent of gross salary up to $6,600 per 
year, plus 10.00 percent gross salary in excess of 

$6,600. 

10.00 percent of gross salary. This is the only 
choice available to policemen, firemen and 
mayors 
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13. 

The contribution requirement to System 2000 is also established by law and is not actuarially 
determined. These contributions are as follows: 

Municipality and other 
employers 
Employees: 

9.28 percent of applicable payroll 

5.78 percent of gross salary up to $6,600 per 
year, plus 8.28 percent of gross salary in 
excess of $6,600. 

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014, the Municipality and the 
participating employees contributed at least 92 percent of the required contributions to ERS and 
System 2000. The combined actual contributions made by the Municipality and its participating 
employees to ERS and System 2000 amounted to $26.6 million, $27.1 million and $28.9 million 
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 respectively. 

Readers can obtain informaLion of the audited basic financial statements of ERS and System 2000 
from the Retirement Systems Administration of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the entity 
that administers ERS and System 2000) at PO Box 42003, Minillas Station, Santurce, Puerto Rico 
00940-2003. 

FUND BALANCES 

As of June 30 2014, fund balances of governmental funds are comprised of the following: 

Fund balances: 

Nonspendablc: 
Long-term interfund advances from 

capilal improvementS bond fwlCI 
Loog·rerm loans receivable 
Other unrestn:ted assets 

Restricted for: 

General govenunent 
Public Safety 
Urban development 
Heahh and welfare 
f.conomX: development 
Debt service 
Capital projects 

Unassigned 
Total fw1d balances 

s 

s 

General 
fund 

7,049.516 

1,147,545 

14,076,266 

,1.098,271) 
21.175,()56 

70 

Debt 

service 
fund 

s -

70,965,262 

$ 70,965262 

Capital Other 
improvements governmental 

bond fund funds Total 

$ - s $ 7,049.516 
4,680.342 4.680.342 

850,530 1,998,075 

14,076,266 

448.515 448,515 
6,376,439 6.376,439 
6.078;m 6,078277 
7,051,443 7,051,443 
6,618,887 77.584,149 

79,054,935 79,054,935 

{15,547.0202 {16,6452912 
$ 79.054935 $ 16~57.413 $ 187 '7 52.666 
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14. NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 

The investment in capital assets component of net position, net of related debt, is comprised of 
the following: 

Business-
Go\l!rnrneotal type 

acthities acti\>ities Total 
Capital assets, nee of accumulated depreciation $ 649,028,506 $ 51,814,4()5 $ 700,842,911 
Outstanding balance on capital related debt (4()9,870,CXX}) (53,981.940) ( 463,851,940) 
Unexpended capital debt proceeds 93,878,505 93,878,505 

Total net investment in capital assets $ 333,037,011 $ (2,167,535) $ 330,869,476 

15. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Risk Management Division of the Municipality is responsible of assuring that the 
Municipality's property is properly insured. Annually, rhe Risk Management Division compiles 
the information of all property owned and its respective market value. After evaluating this 
information, the Risk Management Division submits the data regarding the Municipality's 
properties to the Area of Public Insurance at the Department of the Treasury of the Government 
of Puerto Rico who is responsible for purchasing all property and casualty insurance policies of 
all municipalities. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three 
fiscal years. 

The Municipality maintains a claims-made policy to provide professional and patient care 
liability insurance with liabj}jty limits of $300,000 for each medical incident and $2 million for 
aggregate incidents. The Municipality also obtained tail insurance coverage for incidents 
incurred but not reported prior to October 14, 1990. The Municipality has a self-insurance claims 
liability of $10.4 million as of June 30, 2014. The Municipality discontinued its self-insurance 
program effective July 1, 2014. 

16. COMMITMENTS 

a. Operating Leases 

The Municipality leases real property, buildings, vehicles and equipment under various 
operating lease agreements, which generally have terms of one year or less and are 
automatically renewed for the same terms. Rental expenditures recorded in the governmental 
funds for the fiscal year amounted to approximately $6.8 million. Management believes that 
the summary of the future minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable real property 
and equipment lease with terms exceeding one year is not material to the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

b. Construcdon 

The Municipality had commitments at year-end of approximately $31.6 million for the 
construction, improvements, or renovation of several capital facilities and the capital assets. 
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17. 

c. Other commitments 

At year-end, the general fund had commitments of approximately $36.1 million for executory 
purchases orders or contracts that will be honored during the subsequent year. 

CONTINGENCIES 

The Municipality is a defendant in various legal proceedings pertaining to matters incidental to 
the performance of routine governmental operations (including medical malpractice claims to the 
Municipality's Department of Health). Under Public Act No. 104 of June 25, 1955, as amended, 
persons are authorized to sue the Municipality only for causes of actions set forth in said Act to a 
maximum amount of $75,000 or $150,000 if it involves actions for damages to more than one 
person or where a single injured party is entitled to several causes of action. Under certain 
circumstances, as provided in Public Act No. 9 of November 26, 1975, as amended, the 
Municipality may provide its officers and employees with legaJ representation as well as assume 
the payment of any judgment that may be entered against them. There is no Limitation on the 
payment of such judgments. 

With respect to pending and threatened litigation, the Municipality has reported liabilities of 
approximately $4.3 million at year-end, for possible anticipated unfavorable judgments. These 
amounts were included in the financial statements and represent the amounts estimated as 
probable liabilities, which may require future available financial resources for its payment. 
Management believes that any unfavorable outcome in relation to pending or threatened litigation 
would not be significant, if any. The changes in the reserve for claim and judgments for the last 
two fiscal years are as folJows: 

Balance as of July 1, as restated 
Add: Provision for claims and judgments 
Less: Payments or deductions of claims and judgments 

Balance as of June 30 

2014 
$ 14,162,313 

1,045,755 

(10,904,090) 
$ 4,303,978 

2013 
$ 20,832,777 

2,309,746 
(8,980,210) 

$ 14,162,313 

The Municipality, based on the advice of legal counsel, believes that the potential claims not 
covered by insurance will not materially affect the financial position, results of operations and 
cash flows condition of the Municipality. 

The Municipality participates in a number of federal financial assistance programs funded by the 
Federal Government. Expenditures financed by these programs are subject to financial and 
compliance audits by the appropriate grantor. The "Reports on Compliance and Internal Control 
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards and the Requirements of OMB Circular A-
133" for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, disclosed several material instances of 
noncompliance with applicable laws and regulations and with internal accounting and 
administrative controls. If expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grant 
programs regulations, the Municipality may be required to reimburse the grantor. Management 
believes that the Municipality will be able to comply with the terms of corrective action plans that 
may be requested by the federal grantors. 
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18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Municipality evaluated subsequent even ts through December 29, 2014, date through which 
the financial statements were available to be issued. Following are the material subsequent 
events that the Municipality believes require disclosure. 

Effective July 1, 2014, Act No. 18 reduced the statutory municipal sales and usage tax rate from 
one point five percent (1.5%) to one point zero percent (1.0%) for all municipalities of Puerto 
Rico. 

Simultaneously, Act No. 19 created the Municipal Finance Corporation (MFC), a subsidiary of 
GDB, which is authorized to issue bonds and use other financing mechanisms to directly or 
indirectly pay or refinance all or part of the municipal long-term debt incurred that are payable 
from or backed by the municipal sales and usage taxes effective July 1,2014. 

In order to mitigate the effects of the reductions in the municipal sales and usage tax rate referred 
to above, Act No. 18 established the mechanisms to protect the financial stability of the municipal 
governments of Puerto Rico by allowing the municipalities to continue receiving the economic 
benefits lost as a consequence of the reduction in the statutory municipal sales and usage tax rate 
referred to above. For these purposes, effective July 1, 2014, Act No. 18 requires that an amount 
equal to zero point five percent (0.5%) of the state sales and usage taxes collected by the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico be deposited in a special fund to be known as Municipal 
Administration Fund (MAF) in the name and for the benefit of each municipality of Puerto Rico. 

Accordingly, commencing on July 1, 2014, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico shall make 
advances from the collections arising from the zero point five percent (0.5%) of the state sales 
and usage taxes to the MAF of each municipality. The advances shall be made and distributed to 
the municipalities on a monthly basis as follows in accordance with Section 4050 of Act No. 1, as 
amended: 

i . Forty percent (40%) of the amounts transferred shall be available to cover general 
operating expenses of the General Fund of each municipality; 

ii. Forty percent ( 40%) of the of the amounts transferred shall be available and restricted 
in the MFC's redemption fund to guarantee the repayment of any municipal loan, 
bond, note, or other evidence of debt whose repayment source is the monies 
deposited therein under the custody of GDB. 

iii. Twenty percent (20%) of the amounts transferred shall be available and restricted in 
the capital improvements bond fund to finance the acquisition, construction and 
improvement of major capital assets. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Act No. 19, on July 1, 2014, the Municipality transferred to MFC all 
of its outstanding long-term debt payable and backed with the municipal sales and usage taxes, 
and the related accrued interests payable amounting to $70.2 million and $0.4 million, 
respectively. The Municipality also transferred to MFC the outstanding balance of the cash held 
with fiscal agent and other assets amounting to $11.6 million and $0.9 million, respectively, 
which are restricted for the debt service of the debt transferred to MFC. The transfer of those 
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assets and liabilities to MFC resuJted in an economic benefit of $58. l million to the MunicipaJity 
to be recorded during the fiscaJ year ending June 30, 2015. 

In August 20 14, the MunicipaJity borrowed $36.2 mrnion from a commerciaJ bank to finance the 
acquisition, construction and improvement of certain major capital assets. The notes shall bear 
interests at the rate of four point seventy five percent (4.75%) per annum. The notes are payable 
in eight (8) annual principaJ payments ranging from $0.8 million to $30.0 million, plus interests, 
through 2022. 

In November 2014, the MunicipaJ Legislature authorized a loan amounting to $53.2 million from 
GOB to finance the acquisition, construction and improvement of certain major capital assets. 
The notes shaJl bear interests at the rate of twelve percent ( 12 % ) per annum. The notes are 
payable in thirteen ( 13) annual principal payments ranging from $0.7 million to $1.8 million, plus 
interests, through 2027. 

The Municipality approved a tax amnesty effective from November 1, 20 14 to February 28, 2015 
in order to provide an opportunity to tax payers to settle old outstanding tax liabilities, as well as 
to reach agreements for unassessed tax liabilities. 

***** 
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Actual amounts 
(Budgetary 

Bu~eted Amounts basis) 
Original Final (See Note l l 

R.E.VE\'UES: 
Propeny lllXes $ 147.957,895 $ 147,957.895 s 144, 196.528 
Municipal license t:ucs 126,500,IXX) 126.500,IXX) 124.200.450 
Sales and usage taxes 87.502,417 87.502.-117 52.736.454 
Construction ellCise tues 15.700.IXX> 15.700.IXX> 24.295.343 
Olarges for services 54.750,167 54.750.167 51.670317 
Interests on deposit 6.IXX>.IXX> 6.IXX>.IXX> 4.875.853 
Intergovernmental grams and contributions 32.139.021 32.139.021 40.421.521 
Miscellaneous revenues 6.150.500 6.150.500 4.61 1.404 
Other financing sources -

Proceeds from issuance of notes 80.185.IXX) 
Total revenues 476.700.IXX> -176.700.IXX> 527 .192.870 

EXPf.NDJTURES: 
Current: 

General government 110.179.669 114.855.805 108.883.686 
Public safety 56.888.300 55384,555 54.678.287 
Public WO 00 70.412.506 71355.261 82.872.621 
Culture and recreation 13.096,IXX) 13.673.662 14.684,974 
Health and welfare 186.342325 180.255.333 183.444222 
Urban developrrent 8.165.036 7.276.743 1.314,016 
fcononic development I0.058.<XXl 10.426.849 12.669.118 
Education 12.444.<XXJ 1.057,628 15.<XXJ.86-l 

Debt service: 
Principal 5.473.().12 5.473.().12 30.859.66-l 
Interest 3.641,122 3.641.122 8.089.3-18 

Total expenditures 476.700.<XXJ 476. 700.<XXJ 5l2A96.800 
EXCESS OF R.E.YE\'UES OV'ffi EXPENDITURES s s s 1-1.696.070 

EXplanatioo of Differences: 

Sourcq/inflows ofresourus: 

Act uni anx>unts (budgetary bas JS } available for appropriauon from 1he budgetary con-.ianson schedule 
Differences - budgeLal') basis to GAA P: 

Propeny tax amnest) collections are reponed in a non-budget fund as revenues for GAAP purposes 
The proceeds from the issuance of notes payable are budgetary resources but are regarded as 

other financing sources for financial rcponing purposes 

Transfers from capital ifr1>rovemmts bond fund are recorded as in1erest incorre for budgetary purposes 
Olanges assets and deferred innows of resources: 

Net change in ta.'(. intergovemrrental imd miscellaneous receivables 
Net change in deferred in Hows of resources 

Total revenues as reponed on the state rren t ofre,•enues, expenditures , and changes in fund balances 

Uses/outflows of resources: 
Actual amJunts (budgetal')' basis) total charges to appropria1ions from the budgetary C0111Jarison schedule 

Differences - budgetary bas is to GAA?: 
Prior year encurrbrances recorded as current year expenditures for GA.AP purpo: 
Current yearencurrorances recorded as expenditures forbudgetal)' purposes 

Olanges other asse ts and liabili1ies: 
'et change in other unrestricted assets 

To1al expenduures as reponed on the sta1errem of revenues. expenditures. and changes in fund balances 

The accompan,\'uzg nt>tes w budgetary comparison schedule are an inte,~ral parr of this schedul~. 
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Var iance mtb 
Final Bu!!gct 

$ (3,761,367) 
(2.29'),550) 

(34.765.963) 
8.595.343 

(3.079.850) 
(1.124.147) 
8.282.500 

(1,539.096) 

80, I 85.IXX) 
50.492.870 

(5.972.119) 
(706.268) 

11.517.3(,() 
1.011.312 
3.188.889 

(5.962. 727) 

2.242.269 
643.236 

25386.622 
4.448.226 

35.796.800 
$ 14.696,070 

s 527.192.870 

13,197.475 

(80.185.000) 
(3.890. 749) 

4,222.116 
~ 18.090.330) 

$ 442.446.382 

s 512,496.800 

32.084.4(,() 
(36.070.237) 

(50,985) 
$ 508.400.038 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

1. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

a. Budgetary Control 

The Municipality's annual budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting, which is 
not in accordance with GAAP, and represents departmental appropriations recommended by 
the Mayor and approved by the Municipal Legislature prior to the beginning of the fiscal 
year. Amendments to the budget require the approval of the Municipal Legislature. 
Transfers of certain appropriations within the budget, known as Mayor's Executive Orders, 
do not require the approval of the Municipal Legislature. The Municipality prepares its 
annual budget including the operations of the general fund. 

For budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounting is used. The encumbrances (i.e., purchase 
orders, contracts) are considered expenditures when incurred. For GAAP reporting purposes, 
encumbrances outstanding at year-end are disclosed in the notes of the financial statements as 
other significant commitments and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the 
commitments will be honored during the subsequent year. In addition, under the budgetary 
basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when cash is received. 

The unencumbered balance of any appropriation at the end of the fiscal year will lapse at the 
end of such fiscal year. Other appropriations, mainly capital project appropriations, are 
continuing accounts for which the Municipal Legislature has authorized that an unspent 
balance from the prior year be carried forward and made available for current spending. 

The annual budget as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund is the 
budget resolutions at June 30, 2014 representing the original budget. There was one 
supplemental appropriation for the year ended June 30, 20 14. 

***** 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Other Governmental Funds Descriptions 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Special Revenue Funds are established to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources 
that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specific purposes other than debt services and capital 
projects. 

Department of Justice F und - These funds account for and report federal financial resources restricted 
to expenditures for various homeland security and criminal justice programs. 

Department of Labor Fund - These funds account for and report federal financial resources restricted to 
expenditures related with the Workforce Investment Act (WIA). 

Health and Human Services Fund - These funds account for and report federal financial resources 
restricted to expenditures for various health services programs, including but not limited to, Community 
Services Block Grants, Ryan White Act and Head Start programs. 

Housing and Urban Development Fund - These funds account for and report federal financial 
resources restricted to expenditures for various housing and urban development, rehabilitation and 
assistance programs. 

Independent Capital Fund - This fund account for and report federal financial resources restricted to 
expenditures for a revolving loan program to small private business for the development of economic and 
commercial activity within the limits of San Juan. 

Miscellaneous Special Revenue Fund - These funds account for and report miscellaneous financial 
resources restricted or committed to expenditures by the Municipality and subsidized in part by Local, 
State and Federal resources as well as miscellaneous sources. 

Retirement Community Fund - This fund accounts for and reports the financial position and operation 
of Comunidad de Retiro. The Comunidad de Retiro Fund is included as part of other governmental funds 
and accounts for the financial position and operation of Comunidad de Retiro (the Project). The 
Municipality formed the Project for the purpose of operating a 356-unit housing project for the elderly 
and/or handicapped. The Project is operated under Section 231 of the National Housing Act, as amended, 
and regulated by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development as to rent charges and 
operating methods. Legal title of the Project is held by the Municipality. Separate financial statements 
of this individual fund can be obtained from the Project's administrative office: 

Condominio Centro de Altamira 
Paseo 501 Street, Suite 210 
Urbanizaci6n Altamira 
San Juan, Puerto Rico 00920 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Combining Balance Sheet -
Other Governmental Funds 
June 30, 2014 

Other s pecia l revenue funds 

He al lh and R ous in g Misce ll aneous Tutnl 
Deportm e nt Departmen t hum an and urban Indepen dent speci a l Retirem e nt o the r 

o f j us tice of l abo r ser vices developmen t ca pi tol revenue community s pecia l revenu e 

fund fu nd fund fund fun d fund fu nd funds 

ASS EIS 
Accounts receivable. net of allowance 

for doubtful accounts: 
ln1ergovcrnmental grants and contributions $ 825,577 $ 1.001.482 $ 3.934.052 $ 1.880,880 $ $ 817,799 $ $ 8.459,790 
Due from 01her governmental funds 276.035 290 2, 139, I 87 1,242,718 2,538, I 05 2,315, I 88 8,511,523 
Miscellaneous receivables 6,116 92.621 49,184 127,741 19.510 13.210 308.382 

Loans receivable, net allownnoe for loan losses 4,680.342 4,680.342 
0 1her unrestricted assets 385,038 218.476 175.201 71,R 15 850.530 
Restricted assets: 

Cash in commercial banks 289,284 1,876,062 773.389 10, 135,606 4,034,581 3.785,103 1,762,252 22,656,277 

Cash with fiscal agent 12.484,669 12,484,669 
Total assets $ 1,390,896 $ 2,883,950 $ 7,324.287 $ 13,526,864 $ l I ,555.970 $ 19,422.269 $ 1,847,277 $ 57,951.513 

LlAD1U1IEB 
Accounts payable and accnied liabilities $ 324,735 $ 330.382 $ 3,404.384 $ 1,931,920 $ 35.641 $ 3,686,367 $ 347.208 $ 10,060,637 
Due to other governmental funds 548,281 2,166,911 2.996,877 7,898,355 5,440.027 19.050.451 

Bond~ and interest payable 18,575 18,575 
Tot al li:ibilit ics 873.016 2,497.293 6,40 1 ,261 9.830,275 35,641 9, 126,394 365,783 29, 129,663 

Dlll?FRRID INFLOWS 0 F RF.SO UR CES 
Intergovernmental grants and contributions 69,365 148.350 7.443 12,036.670 2,609 12,264.437 

T otal deferred inflows of resources 69.365 148,350 7,443 12,036,670 2,609 l 2,264.437 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable 385,038 218,476 4.855,543 71,81 s 5,530,872 
Restricted 448.515 386.657 794,761 10,495,333 6,664,786 6,376.439 1.407,070 26.573.56 1 
Unassigned (deficit) (405, 123) (7.024,663) (8, 117 .234) (15,547,020) 

Total fund balances 448,5 15 386,657 774,676 3,689.146 11 ,520,329 ( 1,740,795) 1,478,885 16,557.413 
Total liabilit ies, deferred in nows of 

resources and fund balances $ 1,390,896 $ 2,883,950 $ 7,324,287 $ 13,526,864 s 11,555,970 $ 19,422.269 $ 1,847,277 $ 57,951,5 13 

80 



( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( 

Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances-
Other Governmental Funds 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Other specinl revenue ru nds 
Heal th nnd llousi ng MisccllnneouN Tbtol 

Deportment Department humun nnd urban Independent special Retire ment other 
or j ustice or lnhor s ervices developme nt capital revenue community s11cci11I revenue 

fund fund fu nd fund rund rund rund runds 

REVENUES: 
Chnrgc for services $ - $ $ 9.728 $ $ $ $ $ 9,728 

Interests on deposiu 3.928 828.262 6,056 838.246 
Intergovernmental gr.i nts and contributions: 

Federal 1,249,712 3.869,354 43,7 10,354 47. 101,87 1 156,680 13.459,626 1,827,843 11 1,375,440 

Local 8 13,674 81 3,674 

Miscellaneous revenues 383,57 1 8.730 544,098 936,399 

Total revenues 1,249,7 12 3,869,354 43,720,082 47,489,370 984,942 14,288,086 2,371 ,941 I 13,973,487 

EXPl!NDf llJRES: 
Current : 

General government 11 5.757 49.320 8.295,897 407,818 858.930 9.727,722 

Public safety 864,984 1,23 1 2, 128,375 2.994,590 

Urban affairs 40.600.170 1,605,914 1,822,302 44,028.386 

Culture and recreation 1,102,775 158.500 1.26 1.275 

Heall h and welfare 60,000 9,879.284 2.764.272 1,834.162 14,537,7 18 

Urban development 158.816 158.816 

Economic development 3.378.598 744,175 475.864 44,446 4.643,083 

Education 441.440 27,8 13,782 360 ,395 9,437.422 38.053,039 

Capital outlays 2.629,307 2.629.307 

Debt service 
Principol 3.905.000 439.3 12 4,344.3 12 

Interests 1,498,085 240,278 1,738,363 

Total expenditures 1.040,741 3.869.35ll 45,988,963 54,013.228 475,864 16.226,566 2,50 1.892 124,11 6.6 12 

EXCESS (DfiFIClllNCY) OFRE.VENUE5 
0 VER (UNDElt) .EXPl!NDMURJ!5 208.97 1 (4) (2.268,88 l ) (6.523.858) 509,078 ( 1.938 .480) (129.95 1) $ ( 10,143,2 14) 

omm FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer from other governmental fund~ 62.441 2.483.272 5.406,259 5.639.399 l.'.1.59 1,370 
T ronsfcr to other govcrnmcntnl funds (139,537) (42.984) (113, 124) (244,997) (5.403, I 55) ( l .280,498) (7,224,295) 

T otnl other financing sources (uses). net (139,537) 19,457 2,370,148 5. 16 1,262 (5,403, I 55) 4,358,90 1 6,367,075 

NETJNCRFASE(DECREi\.SE) IN Fl.JN)) 
BALANCFS (DEFICl1) 69.434 19.453 101,267 ( 1.362.596) (4 .894,077) 2.420.421 (129.95 1) (3,776,049) 

FUND BALANCFS ATBEX;INNJNG OFYFAR 379,08 1 367.204 673,409 5,05 1,742 16.414,406 (4, 16 1,2 16) 1,608,836 20,333,462 

Fl.JND BALANCES A'fl!NO OFYFAR $ 448.5 15 $ 386,657 $ 774,676 $ 3,689, 146 $ l I ,520,329 $ ( l .740.795) 1.478.885 $ 16.557,413 
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Municipality of San Juan 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Statistical Section 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Information Report presents detailed information as a 
context for understanding what the governmental activities information in the basic financial statements, 
note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the Municipality's overall financial 
position, results of operations and cash flows . 

FINANCIAL TRENDS 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader 
understand how the Municipality's financial performance and well­
being have changed over time. 

REVENUE CAPACITY 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the 
Municipality's most significant local revenue sources, the property tax 
and municipal license tax. 

DEBT CAPACITY 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the 
affordability of the Municipality's current levels of outstanding debt 
and the Municipality's ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the 
reader understand the environment within the Municipality's financial 
activities take place. 

OPERATING INFORMATION 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the 
reader understand how the information in the Municipality's financial 
report relates to the services the government provides and the activities 
it performs. 

Source: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from 
the comprehensive annual financial reports and/or the basic financial statements for 
the relevant fiscal year. Certain items were reclassified to conform to the current 
year presentation. 

Note: The laws and regulations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico establish 
strict confidentiality requirements about taxpayer's and employer's information. 
Accordingly, this statistical section does not include information about the ten 
principal taxpayers of property taxes and municipal taxes, and information about 
principal private employers. 
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Municipality of San Juan 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Net Position by Component - Govern.menial Activities 
last Ten Fiscal Years 

2014 20 13 20 12 20 11 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 
NEf POSl110N: 
Net inves1ment in capital assets $333.037.01 1 385.429,545 248,446,837 273.51\2.683 252.341.458 202.598.411 203.4 I 0,069 23 1.536.767 262.474.334 $ 247.300.514 
Rcsiricted I 04.887,271 99.003,313 84,791 ,476 52.861.932 43.547.515 33,521,750 19,637.401 9 1 .029.309 96,732,264 84,659.447 
Unrestricted (473.956,363) (534,637, I 6 1) (382,6 17,676) (316,242,583) (309,227 .240) (262,419 ,696) (266.52'.l,2 I 5) (397 .805,969) (3 13,J 10,330) (266,753.874) 

Tot.al $ (36,032,08 1) (50,204,303) (49.379,363) 10,202.032 ( 13,338,267) (26,299,535) (43,475,745) (75.239.893) 46,096,268 $ 65.206.087 
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Municipality of San Juan 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
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Changes in Net Position - Governmental and Business-Type Activities 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

EXPENSES 

Gnvcmmcntal Aclivkiea: 

0encra1 govc rn1nent 

l'ublic sufety 

Urban arrai... 

Culture and n:crca1ion 

Heakh ••d "'! lfaro 

Uthao development 

llco nornk dcvclnpmcnt 

llducatio n 

lntcru t< nn long-term dcht 

To 11 I Go vcrnmcn111 t A.ctivitie1 · 

ll11•inc ... Typ• Ac1lvklc• : 

lntcnratlonal Cc ntc r 

Toial Bxpcnses 

PROGRAM REVENUES 

ChOJgcs fo11crvi<.c.: 

Ocne.ralgovemme nl 

ruhlic: S1fc1y 

llrban 1fT1n 

Cuhure ant.I recrcack>n 

Heakh ind ""'lfarc 

Urhon Llcvclttpmcnl 

Bc:ono mic lltvetopment 

Gducatlnn 

0 1he" 

Operating gru nt~ and c:on1r•lutM'ln5 

Caph I grants ond cnntrihullnns 

Total Oo ve mment1I Activkies : 

Ousincss-1'ypc Actlvklc:s: 

ti1cm11k1na l Ccn1cr 

TotalProamm Rc'llcnucs 

NET EXP ENSES 

Govcmmcn1aloc1i'llkica 

Ouslncu-typc 1ctivkl<1 

·roTAL.NET EXPENS ES 

lU 14 

S 114.752.6SR 

60.K40.~46 

09.0SOJl23 

24.639.844 

200,71).23 1 

6.8K~R42 

ll.509.691 

S3.964,694 

40,907,&4S 

664,2SK,177 

S.549.20 

669,807.390 

3,203 .67H 

98~.799 

40/173 

l,IM0.7K I 

32.717.879 

2.JIS.772 

6.()()6J)89 

3,649,766 

K>l,!03.403 

12.1)99.640 

163.303.480 

2.S28Jl6S 

165,J!32J45 

(S00.954.697) 

(3,020.34&) 

(Siil ,97S Jl4S) 

20 lJ 2012 20 ll 

l18.722.1181 IS l.09K.802 143.2n ~ ll 

63.404,941 76.462.L14 (,J ,909,738 

K ~714.6114 R0.339.038 78.S62.14S 

23.Hl.472 26,167,62 1 14Jl0WSI 

247.$60,971 2S2.319,9&9 264.979,76~ 

~2.3K7,Kl1 10,644Jll1 12.2JL79l 

24,760,14~ 2l760,Kl7 26.033.134 

19.S KK.S91 20.232.620 20.202.797 

J6.S7l97 I 2K.1 rl.HSR HK00.672 

20111 

1l8.216.29S 

64.184 .74) 

76,920.317 

26.1 18,795 

2S9.S78MI 

S7.4S6.367 

2S,421.606 

21.070.9SS 

30,,0S,9S7 

2009 

()9Jl22.24 I 

61,833.589 

7K.20S.0~8 

24.S8S.Sl8 

26UOS.290 

57.683.S69 

2UOOJl2S 

16,075.081 

1S.4S8.691 

2008 

t\0,92LKM 

,S.l,7.432 

73.779.]95 

20.S03.40S 

2S2.S K9,628 

SU47.2() 

24.S67,119 

rl.SVS,026 

3L646J29 

1007 

27K.120,9SS 

S1.ROl.24 I 

70.232.1!76 

l(i.MKS.637 

242,4(.4,686 

60.0tl,476 

26.614.239 

11.244.378 

33.6Kl.Sl4 

2006 2005 

lllKl3,K7S $ 88,A3L998 

S2.2 87.S4S 47,69'1.S70 

SH,182.626 

l').429.725 

2SS.ll8 1.64Z 

SJ.542,461 

25 .627.780 

9.3R4.436 

24.116.637 

60,ll tllS 

20,4 lll.2SK 

266,847.420 

Sl.464,789 

29.078.967 

9.621.02S 

25.S><l.292 

6SR,622.45S 707.357.892 705.002,1107 679,49~.6(16 M6,K6'1Jl54 6S3.117.40K 793J)07,002 W K,756,727 601.209JIS4 

4,886,904 3.290.474 L730.193 

66l.S09JS9 7 ll,648,366 706,733,0()() 679,49S.666 666,869,0S4 6S3.ll7 ,408 793.007 .002 $98,756.727 60U09.4S4 

6,119.5~7 

3S6.927 

19JIK6 

2.599.169 

32,468.300 

2J>92,MI 

4,5 11.IOK 

4Jll2,4K2 

ll0,1114.14S 

~JIS IMO 

187.11 IS.'.IOS 

2.180,CJSO 

189,995.JSS 

6.72K.K46 

603,CJ7S 

16.264 

2,12 1.060 

27.0'J0.065 

2.744JRCJ 

4,R86.9RO 

4,644,1)2 

L1 l,6S0.0K7 

1,594,875 

1114.079.7'4 

1,0S7.189 

187,06.923 

9 .720,1104 

4S.IS3,219 

13,425,903 

06.4K7,K3J 

6,329.76K 

2 ILll7.S27 

LS2R.S9S 

2!2,646,122 

S.8 IA.9•17 

40,993.473 

ll.60Kj KCI 

rz 1.oos,309 

4,6Xl,369 

186Jl3S.678 

186,1)35.678 

S,240.933 

41.950.950 

11,876,309 

11).$ 19,634 

Ul47JIS3 

169,635.679 

169,635,679 

S.1129.324 

3K,609JS9 

9.$0),177 

118,799.181 

17l94 l,(l4 I 

171.94J.041 

33.JK L497 

S.172.360 

UK.20.207 

l,()S9,90<) 

IS7.'.llll,SfJ 

IS7Jlll.Sl9 

S.672.377 

18,K56,492 

&.97L706 

118.K'.!7 ,7)9 

l.568.275 

173.906.$89 

173.906S89 

6.276.460 

39.142,387 

6,905.229 

119.609,()44 

L701.Q06 

173.6)4,!26 

173.634.126 

(470)!07.l~O) (S2'.27USK) (493.88S.28()) (493.4S9.9K8) (497.233Jn) (48Ll66.367) (63S.6K8.4R3) (414.&SO.OM) (427Sn.328) 

(2,706.1154) (213.lKS) (20~9K) 

(473.S l4.IJ04) ($23.!l ll443) (494,086,K7K) (493.4S9,98H) (4'17,233.375) (481.JM.367) C63S,6H8,4K3l (424,KSO,QK) (427S7S.128) 

(Continued) 
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Municipality of San Juan 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Changes in Net Position - Governmental and Business-Type Activities 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2014 2013 2011 

G£NERAL1\EVENUF.S ANO SPECIAL ITEMS 

Tuu 467.SOU7H 427,379.141 46l94K.lllfi 

Gnnu and co nuibu11ons not 

re1tric1i:d w 1pcciOI: pmgrun11 40,180.0IS JKAl•S.337 4(),265.139 

~tcre• ls n n dcpo• it 6.048,121 7.42L4~4 1.K7U92 

C1 ln on 1 n~ nf car>illal A$5Clli 

Mit ccl;im.Hl U!f revenues 4,100.997 7.!IS0,991 s.rn>.76' 

Spccillitcm1 

kuurn11l1r1 n_.r..:NC (2,904,232) (l967,4 93) 

To11lGuvemmcntalAc1iviliu : SIS.126,919 479.149,432 SlllH.460 

Uu1inus·Typc Ac:tlvkleJ1 : 

Tr1nilfor" 2,904,232 l967.491 

Totalgcncn l rovcnuu ind 1pc:cial iccm Hl.OJllS I 4KL116,92S SIU3S,461l 

NET IN C REASF. to •:CREASE) IN NF.T rosrroN 

Ctnvemmcn•i l activilk:.• 14,172.222 K.142.2K2 ( IL•l42,69Kl 

Ou1incu .. l)t>C activillea (1111,116) (739.360 UH.2KS) 

1'0TAL GOVF.RNM F.N'r 14,0S6,Kl6 7M2.921 s (12,17S,9K3) 

( 

$ 

( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( 

2011 2010 20119 200 M 2007 2006 1005 

471l,181,990 467.194,lH 4H.90l477 470J70.S31 433.6'11,70ll lfiU53.901 J K4,676,110 

38.Cl'U,S97 10.119.m 10.3SK.872 27J!K9.291 27 ,077 .2!Ml 3l433.6S7 2fi, ll8,6Sl 

2.S61.210 l ,8K4,lll 5JKS.74K 6.6K8.900 7,76K.l\CMl 5,9)2,657 2.Hl•.671 

11,740.394 3 .KSK,933 

6.645,772 4,96J,2R7 4,418,667 7,9Kl791 15.122,419 1.26ll71 5.077,958 

2U,344.K21 

.117,421.S79 S06.41l2S6 114.409.1KS 512.9JD_\l.1 .114.1.12.322 40.1,740.319 41H,707A33 

517.425.H9 S06.42U56 ~ 14.409,SKS S 12,930.SIS Hl.J.11J22 405,740.319 418,707.433 

23.~40.299 

(20lS98) 12.96l26R 17.176.lll 1l76'1,14R (12l336.ltl0 (19,Kl9J!l9) (R,867,895) 

23.13H,70 I .1 l2.96l26K $ 17,176.2 11 H764.14K (12lJ36.161) ( l~.K19.l!l9) (K,K67,K95) 

(Concluded) 

Note: The mun1cipal licenses tax rates, construction excise tax and property lax rates were substantially revised in 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. 
A new Sales and Usage Tax was effective on 2007. 
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Municipality of San Juan 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

201 4 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

Ocnerol Fund,: 

NonspendBblc $ 8. 197.061 14,126 20.SS4 15.619 7.517 2.876 37.435 22.875 68.098 $ 4,393 

Restricted 14,<Y76,266 95.760 2,645 3.297 3,296 461 3,176 3,029 4,381 2,79 1 

Committed 245 S.1 18 1,544 983 494 98 79 

Unassi8J'lcd (1.098,27 1) (99,182) (127.761) (3.5,345) (34.370) (23,328) (61,105) (56,430) (104,350) (42,467) 

Tollll genernl fund, $ 21.175,056 $ 10.704 $ (104,562) $ (16.184) $ (18,439) $ (18.447) $ (19.5 11) $ (30,032) $ (31,773) $ (35.204) 

All Other governmental funds,: 

Nonspendnble $ 5,530.872 10.418 10.911 11,404 12.269 47 1,988 2,264 $ 2,349 

Res1riC1ed 176,593,758 202,953 82,238 56.888 48.204 40.574 42,474 60,815 54.308 67.236 

Co11Unltted 110.949 64,147 63.912 77,572 131.887 53.833 81,130 71,144 

Unassigi1ed (IS.547.020) (16.243) (7.645) (9.287) (5.363) (5,211) (4.961) (7.930) (6,051) (6.607) 

Tol111 all other go•emmental funds $ 166,577,610 $ 186,7 10 $ 195,960 $ 122,659 $ 118,157 $ 125.204 $ 169,447 $ 108,706 $ 131,65 1 $ 134,122 

Note 1: The Municipality implemented GASB Statements No. 54 as of July l , 2008. Fund balance classifications are presented in this schedule to 
conform to the provisions of this statement by reclassifying fund balances for al l prior periods presented. 

Note 2: Detail regarding the Municipality' s categories and classifications of fund balances can be found in the notes to the basic financial 
statements. 
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Municipality of San Juan 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Changes in Fund Balances- Governmental Funds (in Thousands) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

REVENUES 

Propeny truces, $ 241,423 234.752 260,217 237,819 238.690 214,652 2 17,728 217.5 13 206.395 $ 242,475 

Municipal license truces, 121.434 11 8,402 125.998 153.975 157,380 156,033 149,947 145,599 13 1,369 125,253 

Sales and usa!}! taxcs1 61.323 58.033 56,876 56,405 54,487 54,646 54,799 4 1,362 

Construction excise taxcs3 22,868 13,640 18,858 2 1,986 16,637 28,57 1 47,896 29.170 23,490 16,949 

Char!}!S for services 50,048 50,808 48,834 68,300 59,533 58,071 53,142 48.045 53,500 52,323 

Interests on deposits 6,048 1,360 3,871 2,565 3,884 5,386 6,689 7,769 5,933 2.835 

Intergovernmental grants and contribution: 

Federal 111.375 129,284 133,299 142,589 124,905 105.43 1 109.857 107,605 112.243 119,609 

Local 4 1,534 38,648 42.211 38,259 31,979 36.492 36,832 28,746 39,597 27,820 

Miscellaneous revenues 4,301 13,049 5,251 6,645 4,963 4,419 7,982 35.122 3,261 5.078 

Totals 660.354 657,977 695.415 728,543 692.458 663.701 684,872 660,931 575.788 592,342 

EXPENDITURES 

General government 116,716 95,492 144,37 1 150,800 138,345 109,552 144.337 170,590 95.055 100,874 

Public safety 56,942 63,513 64,907 61,306 60,293 57,950 52.950 52.507 50,08 1 49,414 

Urban affairs 127,033 62,176 78,672 67.800 74.715 75,228 72,028 67.557 57,7 16 57.84 1 

Cu It ure and rccre111 ion 15,368 15,578 16,558 16,213 18,371 16,818 12,988 11 ,447 12,655 12,58 1 

Health and welfare 196,8 16 241,142 246,398 259,064 253.358 252,948 246,932 239.081 247.214 252,609 

Urban dcvclopmem 7,198 52,054 50,597 5 1.826 48,624 49,336 45.088 55,008 49,013 50.353 

Economic development 16.863 19,362 15,231 20,523 19,956 18,537 19,247 21,741 21,214 23.161 

Education 52,609 18,032 18.522 18,996 19,909 15,332 12,245 11.106 9.164 9,372 

Capital outlays 29,168 61,888 55,834 39.838 48,527 77.091 43.039 34,783 32,130 42,287 

Debt service: 

Principal 89.572 70,645 58,230 55,759 50,126 47,624 41,91 I 40,385 35,157 37,186 

Interests 44,044 33,842 28,313 31,801 30,306 35,459 31,646 33,61 I 28,140 25.516 

Totals 752,329 733,724 777.633 773,926 762,530 755.875 722,4 11 737,816 637,539 661.194 

DEFICIENCY 0 F RE\IEll U1!S 

UNDER EXPENDITURES (91,975) (75,747) (82.218) (45,383) (70,072) (92, 174) (37,539) (76.885) {61,75 1) (68.852) 

(Continued) 
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Municipality of San Juan 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (in Thousands) 
La.st Ten Fiscal Years 

OTHER FINANCINGS OURCFS (US ES): 

Transfers from other govermental funds 

Bonds issued 

No1e payable issued 

Lease agreements issued 

Refunding bond issued 

Refunding no1e issued 

Payments of refunded bond 

Advances from CRIM 

Transfers 10 propietnry fund 

Sale of cap ital assets 

Transfers 10 other govermen1aJ funds 

To1al 

SPF.clAL ITEMS 

2014 

$ 24,!02 $ 

85,220 

(2.904) 

(24. 102) 

82,316 

2013 2012 2011 2010 

7,503 $ 15,826 $ $ 6,428 $ 

183.730 126,395 26.738 63.035 

25.386 

(1.967) 

(7,503) (15.826) (6.428) 

181,763 126,395 52.124 63,035 

( ( ( 

2009 2008 

9,368 $ 5,749 $ 

28,650 I 08,800 

(9,368) (5.749) 

28,650 108,800 

20,345 

( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( 

2007 2006 2005 

13,874 $ 19 $ 

44,941 31.350 31,0 10 

10,741 

(13,874) 

55,682 

24.655 17 .253 

687 

6.02 1 

(19) 

62,713 

594 

22, 180 

40.033 

(61.965) 

5,834 

54,939 

( 

NET INCREASE (DF.cREASE) IN 

FUND BAlANCFS $ (9,659) $ 106.014 $ 44 ,177 $ 6,741 $ (7,037) s (43,179) $ 71.261 $ (21,203) $ 962 $ (13,913) 

Debi service as a percentage of non cap ii al 

exp end it urcs 18.5% 18.4% 13.6% l l.9% ll.3% 12.2% 10.8% 10.5% 10.5% 10. 1% 

(Concluded) 

Note I: The municipality ]jcenses tax rates were substantially revised in 2003 and 20 I 0 resulting in increases of 28% and I 0% of this tax revenue from 2003 to June 30, 2005 and 
in 2010 from prior year, respectively. 

Note 2: A new sales and usage iaxes was effective in 2007. 

Note 3: The construction excise tax rates were substantially revised in 2005 and a new hotel room tax was effective in 2007, but was eliminated in 2009. 

Note 4: License and permits together with fines and forfeitures were presented as part of charges for services in 2013. 
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Municipality of San Juan 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Property Tax Levies and Collections 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Collected \Iii thin the Fiscal Year of 
the Levy 

Tax Le'ried for the Percentage of 
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Amount 

Le"y 

20141 $ 263,214,542 $ 159,769,657 60.70% 

2013 263,214,542 159,769,657 60.70% 

2012 299,362,852 201,376,960 67.27% 

2011 262,744,836 176,744,509 67.27% 

2010 239,352,137 160,241,499 66.95% 

2009 223,035,646 147,854,065 66.29% 

2008 237,779,692 185.900,468 78.18% 

2007 222,453,686 194.358,542 87.37% 

2006 222,453,686 192,225,788 86.41% 

2005 201,210,440 178,475,279 88.70% 

Source: Municipal Revenue Collection Center. 

CoHections in 
Total Collections to Date 

Subsequent 
Amount 

Percentage of 
Year Levy 

64.184.727 $ 223,954.384 85.08% 

64.184,727 223,954.384 85.08% 

55,076,419 256,453,379 85.67% 

48,339,281 225,083,790 85.67% 

60,692,233 220,933,732 92.30% 

48,460,848 196,314,913 88.02% 

31 ,373,281 217,273,749 91.38% 

17,466,237 211,824,779 95.22% 

15,568,206 207,793,994 93.41% 

11,670,294 190,145,573 94.50% 

Note 1: The figures for 2014 disclosed above were estimated since actual information was not readily 
available. 
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Municipality of San Juan 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Assessed Value of Taxable Property 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Gross Exempted Exonerated Net Assessed Tax Effective 
Year Valuation Value Value Value Rate 

2014) $ 26,627,930,000 3,407,150,005 8,889,249,422 14,331,530,573 8.15% 
2013 29,317,201,784 3,407,150,005 8,889,249,422 17,020,802,357 8.15% 
20122 28,880,260,000 2,776,204,488 8,814,054,942 17,290,000,570 8.15% 

20lh 28,746,074,327 2,763,305,474 8,773,102,406 17,209 ,666,44 7 8.15% 

20101 27,698,472,939 2,419,715,471 8,773,878,912 16,504,878,556 7.01% 
2009 4,205,118,698 453, 199,976 875,713,532 2,876,205,190 7.75% 

2008 4,251,598,060 397,563,359 877,948,279 2,976,086,422 7.99% 
2007 4,230,664,852 397,563,359 877,948,279 2,955,153,214 7.53% 

2006 4,127,182,083 348,451,640 855,064,963 2,923,665,480 7.61% 

2005 4,122,437,982 348,451,640 855,064,966 2,918,921,376 6.89% 

Source: Municipal Revenue Collection Center. 

Note: The actual value of taxable property tax has not been reported since the current property tax law 
imposes the tax based on the assessed value at 1957 market prices. 

Note 1: On July 10, 2009, the Legislature of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico approved Law No. 37 for 
the purpose of, among others, increasing the real property assessed value by ten times and increasing the 
exempt portion of real property tax from the first $15,000 of the assessed value to $150,000. These 
provisions are effective only for fiscal years 2010, 2011 and 2012. 

Note 2: The figures for 2012 disclosed above were estimated since actual information was not readily 
available. However, the management of the Municipality concluded that the estimates for 2012 would not 
significantly differ from actual figures. 

Note 3: The figures for 2014 disclosed above were estimated since actual information was not readily 
available. 
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I..,.; Municipality of San Juan 
"' Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
'- Property Tax Rates 

~ Last Ten Fiscal Years 

'- Real Property - Fiscal General Debt Government 
Year Puryoses Services of Puerto Rico Total 

'- 2014 6.00% 3.50% 1.03% 10.53% 

'- 2013 6.00% 3.50% 1.03% 10.53% 

~ 
2012 6.00% 3.50% 1.03% 10.53% 

2011 6.00% 3.50% 1.03% 10.53% 
'- 2010 6.00% 3.50% 1.03% 10.53% 

2009 6.00% 2.00% 1.03% 9.03% 

2008 6.00% 2.00% 1.03% 9.03% 

2007 6.00% 2.00% 1.03% 9.03% 

2006 6.00% 2.00% 1.03% 9.03% 

2005 6.00% 2.00% 1.03% 9.03% 

Personal Property 

Fiscal General Debt Government 
Year Purposes Services of Puerto Rico Total 
2014 4.00% 3.50% 1.03% 8.53% 

2013 4.00% 3.50% 1.03% 8.53% 

2012 4.00% 3.50% 1.03% 8.53% 

2011 4.00% 3.50% 1.03% 8.53% 

2010 4.00% 3.50% 1.03% 8.53% 

2009 4.00% 2.00% 1.03% 7.03% 

2008 4.00% 2.00% 1.03% 7.03% 

2007 4.00% 2.00% 1.03% 7.03% 

2006 4.00% 2.00% 1.03% 7.03% 

2005 4.00% 2.00% 1.03% 7.03% 

'-' 
Source: Finance Department of the Municipality of San Juan. 

'-' 
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...... Municipality of San Juan - Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
'- Municipal Licenses Tax Filers by Income Level 

last Ten Fiscal Years 

2014 
Income Numbe r Percentage Total Income Percentage 

(In thousands) of Filers of Total (In thousands) of Total 

$5- $1,000 22,180 90.05% $ 3,510,154 16.05% 

$1,000 - $100,000 2,425 9.85% 13,034,891 59.60% 

Over $100,000 25 0.10% 5,323,937 24.34% 
\.... 24,630 100.00% $ 21,868,982 100.00% 

'-
...... 2013 

Income Number Percentage Total Income Percentage 
\.... 

(In thousands) of Filers of Total (In thousands) of Total 

'- $5 - $1 ,000 22,890 90.38% $ 3,555,701 16.89% 

'- $1,000-$100,000 2,413 9.53% 13,578,014 64.51% 

Over $100,000 23 0.09% 3,912,912 18.59% 

'-
25,326 100.00% $ 2 1,046,627 100.00% 

...... 2012 
Income Number Pe rcentage Total Income Percentage 

(In thousands) of Filers of Total (In thousands) of Total 

$5 - $1,000 22,869 90.63% $ 3,477,811 16.85% 

$1,000 - s 100,000 2,342 9.28% 13,335,280 64.62% 

Over $100,000 21 0.08% 3,821,924 18.52% 

25,232 100.00% $ 20,635,015 100.00% 

'-
2011 

Income Number Percentage Total Income Percentage 
\... (In thousands) of Filers of Total (In thousands) of Total 

'-' $5 - $1,000 22,766 90.67% $ 3,525,611 17.11 % 

..... $1,000- $100,000 2,324 9.26% 13,959,370 67.77% 

Over $100,000 18 0.07% 3,114,563 15.12% 

25,108 100.00% $ 20,599 ,544 100.00% 
'-' 

'- 2010 
..... Income Number Pe rce ntage Total Income Pe rcentage - (In thousands) of Filers of Total (In thousands) of Total 

$5 - $1,000 20,422 90.17% $ 3,458,912 14.72% 

$1,000- $100,000 2,198 9.70% 13,264,438 56.44% 
'- Over $100,000 29 0.13% 6,777,072 28.84% 

...... 22,649 100.00% $ 23,500,422 100.00% 

(Continued) 
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'- Municipality of San Juan - Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Municipal Licenses Tax Filers by Income Level 
last Ten Fiscal Years 

2009 
'- Income Number Percentage Total Income Percentage 

'- (In thousands) of Filers of Total (In thousands) of Total 

$5- $1 ,000 20,422 90.17% $ 3,458,912 14.72% 
$1,000 - $100,000 2,198 9.70% 13,264,438 56.44% 

Over $100,000 29 0.13% 6,777,072 28.84% 
22,649 100.00% $ 23,500,422 100.00% 

2008 
Income Number Percentage Total Income Percentage 

(In thousands) of Filers of Total (In thousands) of Total 

$5 - $1,000 20,987 89.86% $ 3,649,010 17.76% 
I,,_ $1,000 - $100,000 2,347 10.05% 13,761,894 66.97% 

'-' 
Over $100,000 20 0.09% 3,139,838 15.28% 

23,354 100.00% $ 20,550,742 100.00% -
2007 

Income Number Percentage Total Income Percentage 
(In thousands) of Filers of Total (In thousands) of Total 

$5 - $1 ,000 20,131 89.46% $ 3,551,983 17.91 % 
$1,000 - $100,000 2,354 10.46% 13,405,025 67.59% 

Over $100,000 18 0.08% 2,876,175 14.50% 
22,503 100.00% $ 19,833,183 100.00% 

2006 
Income Number Percentage Total Income Percentage 

(In thousands) of Filers of Total (In thousands) of Total - $5 - $1,000 17,757 88.90% $ 3,402,152 14.03% - $1,000 - $100,000 2,185 10.94% 13,620,162 56. 17% 
Over $100,000 32 0.16% 7,224,400 29.80% 

19,974 100.00% $ 24,246,714 100.00% 
....... 

'- 2005 
Income Number Percentage Total Income Percentage 

(In thousands) of Filers of Total (In thousands) of Total 

$5 - $1,000 16,027 87.74% $ 3,071,341 14.29% 
$1,000 - $100,000 2,210 12.10% 12,857,944 59.84% 

Over $100,000 29 0.16% 5,559,603 25.87% 
18,266 100.00% $ 21,488,888 100.00% 

'- (Concluded) 
........ Source: Finance Department of the Municipality of San Juan. 
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Municipality of San Juan 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Municipal Licenses Tax Rates 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Financial Businesses Non-Financial Businesses 

Fiscal Year All 
1987 Special under $1 $1 million 1987 Special 

Law million and over Law 

- 2014 1.50% 1.00% 0.20% 0.50% 0.30% 

2013 1.50% 1.00% 0.20% 0.50% 0.30% 

2012 1.50% 1.00% 0.20% 0.50% 0.30% 

2011 1.50% 1.00% 0.20% 0.50% 0.30% 

2010 1.50% 1.00% 0.20% 0.50% 0.30% 

2009 1.50% 1.00% 0.20% 0.50% 0.30% 

2008 1.50% 1.00% 0.20% 0.50% 0.30% 

2007 1.50% 1.00% 0.20% 0.50% 0.30% 

2006 1.50% 1.00% 0.20% 0.50% 0.30% 

2005 1.50% 1.00% 0.26% 0.50% 0.30% 

Source: Finance Department of the Municipality of San Juan. 

-

-
-
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Municipality of San Juan 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Ratios Of Outstanding Debt by Type in Thousands, Except Per Capita Amount 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2014 2013 2012 2011 
(In Thousands) 

Bonds payable $ 436.591 $ 479,437 $ 479,437 $ 394,138 

Bonds anticipation notes 1,873 

Mortgage payable 2,622 3,062 3,465 3,836 

Notes payable 442,056 401,170 213,966 228,856 

Obligations under capital leases 

Total $ 881,269 $ 883,669 $ 696,868 $ 628,703 

Percentage of personal incorrc 13.63% 12.84% 10.97% 9.92% 

Total long-term debt per capita1 $ 2,373 $ 2,235 $ 1,788 $ 1,590 

Bonds payable per capita1 $ J,176 $ 1.213 $ 1,230 $ 997 

Percentage of bonds payable of 

net assessed value of property 2.57% 2.82% 2.77% 2.29% 

2010 2009 

$ 410,636 $ 384,158 

4,177 4,490 

217,525 230,781 

$ 632,338 $ 619,429 

4.71% 4.97% 

$ 1,478 $ 1,445 

$ 960 $ 896 

2.49% 13.36% 

Note: Detail rcgardiJ1g the Municipality's outstanding long-term debt can be found in Note 11 to the financial statements. 
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2008 2007 2006 2005 

$ 389,682 $ 384,794 $ 367,075 $ 369,945 

4,778 5,042 5,285 5.508 

243,287 182.794 194,499 168,365 

657 1,800 3,016 4.521 

$ 638.404 $ 574,430 $ 569,875 $ 548.339 

5.10o/o 5.83% 6.65% 7.24% 

$ 1.486 $ 1,334 $ J,320 $ 1,267 

$ 907 $ 893 $ 850 $ 855 

13.09% 13.02% 12.56% 12.67% 



( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( 

Municipality of San Juan 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
l.Ast Ten Fiscal Years 

In thousands Percentage of 
Less : GO's Assessed 

General Debt Total Perce ntage Value Bonded 
Fiscal Net Assessed Obligation Service Bonded of Personal of Taxable Debt Per 
Year Population2 Value4 Bonds Funds Debt Income Property Capital1 

2014 371 ,309 $ 14,331,530 $ 436,591 $ 70,965 $ 365,626 5.65% 2.55% $ 985 

2013 395,326 $ 17,020,802 $ 479,437 $ 63,712 $ 41 5,725 6.04% 2.44% $ 1,052 

20123 389,714 $ 17,290,001 $ 479,437 $ 66,049 $ 413,388 6.51% 2.39% $ 1,061 

201 J3 395,326 $ 17,209,666 $ 394,138 $ 35,463 $ 358,675 2.67% 2.08% $ 907 

20103 427,789 $ 16,504,879 $ 410,636 $ 19,627 $ 391,009 3.14% 2.37% $ 914 

2009 428,765 $ 2,876,205 $ 384, 158 $ 11 ,201 $ 372,957 2.99% 12.97% $ 870 

2008 429,743 $ 2,976,086 $ 389,682 $ 14,524 $ 375,158 3.35% 12.61% $ 873 

2007 430,724 $ 2,955, 153 $ 384,794 $ 9,404 $ 375,390 3.81% 12.70% $ 872 

2006 431,707 $ 2,923,665 $ 367,075 $ 10,355 $ 356,720 4. 16% 12.20% $ 826 

2005 432,692 $ 2,918,921 $ 369,945 $ 9,175 $ 360,770 4.77% 12.36% $ 834 

Source: Municipal Revenue Collection Center 

Note 1: Details regarding the Municipality's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the basic financ.iaJ statements. 

Note 2: Population data can be found in the accompanying Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistic. 

Note 3: On July 10, 2009, the Legislature of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico approved Law No. 37 for the purpose of, among others, increasing 
the real property assessed value by ten times and increasing the exempt portion of the real property tax from the first $15,000 of the assessed value 
of $ 150,000. These provisions are effective only for fi scal years 2010, 2011. and 2012. 

Note 4: The net assessed value figures for 2014 disclosed above were estimated since actual information was not readily available. 
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Municipality of San Juan 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Legal Debt Margin Information (in Thousands) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Legal Debt Margin calculation as of June 30, 2014: 

Assessed Volue o f Taxable Property 

Legal debt lirrit - 10% of assessed value of taxable property 

Debt applicable to writ: 

General obligotions bonds 

Less: OO's Debt Service Fund balance 

Total net debt applicable to limit 

Legal debt margin 

( ( ( ( ( J 

$ 26.627,930 

$ 2.662.793 

$ 

436,591 

(70.965) 

365.626 

2,297, 167 

( 

Legal debt limit 
1 $ 2.662.793 $ 3.143,881 $ 2.474,638 $ 2.515.932 $ 2.769.847 $ 420.512 $ 425. 160 $ 423.067 $ 412.718 $ 412.244 

Tota l net debt applicable to limit 

Legal debt marg in 

Total net debt applicable 10 rhe limir 

as a perccnrage of debt linir 

$ 

(365,626) (845.119) (4 13,388) 

2,297, 167 $ 2,298,762 $ 2,061.250 $ 

13.73% 26.88% 16.70% 

(358.675) (391,009) (372.957) (375. 158) (375,390) (356.720) (360.770) 

2. 157.257 $ 2.378,838 $ 47,555 $ 50.002 $ 47,677 $ 55,998 $ 51 ,474 

14.26% 14.12% 88.69% 88.24% 88.73% 86.43% 87.5 1% 

Note: Under Puerto Rico law, the MunicipaJity's outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed 10 percent of total assessed property 
value. By law, the general obligation debt subject to the limitation may be offset by amounts set aside for repaying general bond obligations. 
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Municipality of San Juan 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Demographic and Economic Statistics 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Personal Per Inflation Unemployme nt 
Year Population1 Income Capita4 Ratez,4 Employment3 Rate 3 

2014 371,309 $ 6,465,603,617 $ 17,413 0.90% 126,000 9.90% 
2013 395,326 $ 6,883,811,638 $ 17,413 0.90% 126,700 9.10% 
2012 389,714 $ 6,352,338,200 $ 16,300 1.30% 135,600 11.00% 
2011 395,326 $ 6,337,471,106 $ 16,031 1.80% 134,900 11.70% 
2010 427,789 $ 13,424,013,893 $ 31,380 2.00% 139,900 11.90% 
2009 428,765 $ 12,458,000,705 $ 29,056 8.00% 150,000 9.60% 
2008 429,743 $ 11,208,632,880 $ 26,082 11.40% 157,400 8.03% 
2007 430,724 $ 9,845,941,714 $ 22,859 14.10% 165,400 7.40% 
2006 431,707 $ 8,573,772,51 1 $ 19,860 15.10% 172,600 6.70% 
2005 432,692 $ 7 ,57 1,220,066 $ 17,498 13.50% 174,200 7.70% 

Note: 1. Federal Census Bureau and Puerto Rico Planning Board 
2. Government Development Bank of Puerto Rico 
3. Department of Labor and Human Resources of Commonwealth 
4. Information for 2014 was estimated using 2013 actual figures. Actual figures for 2014 were unavailable. 

Population De nsity 

Square 

Miles 
47.8 

Population 
Pe r Square 

Mile 
7,768 
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"""' 
"""' Municipality of San Juan 

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Construction and Bank Deposits 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Conunercial Construction Residential Construction 
'- Square Value in Square Value in 

'- Calendar feet of site (thousands feet of site (thousands 
year approved of dollars) approved of dollars) 

2014 2,093,196 $ 181,810 422,387 $ 22,223 
2013 6,733,092 $ 172,591 2,360,150 $ 27,106 
2012 2,916,665 $ 320,833 1,641,086 $ 98,465 
2011 594,548 $ 65,400 726,649 $ 43,599 
2010 435,135 $ 51,736 625,596 $ 37,536 
2009 214,812 $ 14,608 1,013,914 $ 60,525 
2008 1,163,963 $ 11,561 2,350,640 $ 182,376 
2007 618,033 $ 38,891 3,466,818 $ 83,463 

'-' 2006 260,952 $ 6,558 2,826,717 $ 153,740 

'-' 2005 130,745 $ 7,058 2,233,260 $ ] 10,695 

Notes: 1. Office of Permits of the Municipality of San Juan. 
2. Commissioner of Financial Institutions. 
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Municipality of San Juan 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Number of Regular Employees by Function 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year 

2014 2013 20123 2011 2010 2009~ 2008 20071 2006 2005 
Function 
General government 469 438 517 517 559 557 493 499 647 649 
Public safety 1,140 1,176 J,389 1,389 1,349 1,329 1,270 1,319 1,506 1,476 
Urban affairs 1,076 924 1,092 1,092 1,208 l ,189 758 721 1,098 1,090 
Culture and recreation 221 258 305 305 332 330 161 147 193 191 
Health and welfare 2,346 2,237 2,643 2,643 2,642 2,604 2,499 2,522 3,187 3,193 
Urban development 272 42 50 50 40 40 34 87 113 90 
Economic development 254 272 321 321 405 402 349 365 451 446 
Education 128 113 133 133 1.44 358 131 123 136 133 

Total 5,906 5,460 6,450 6,450 6,679 6,809 5,695 5,783 7,331 7,268 

Source: Office of Human Resources of the Municipality of San Juan. 

Note: A regu lar employee is scheduled to work 1,820 hours per year. (7 hours per day by 52 weeks) includfog, among others, holidays, vacation 
and sick leave. 

Note 1: The Municipality provided two (2) voluntary termination programs that were effective during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. A total 
of l,117 employees retired through such programs. 

Note 2: The Municipality charged the status of all temporary and irregular employees to regu lar employees beginning as of July I, 2008 and 
thereafter. A total of l ,486 employees were reclassified. 

Note 3: On April 4, 2013 Law No. 3 as enacted to amend the provision of Law No. 447 of 1951 Know as the Retirement System Law No. 3 
modified, among other things, the retirement e ligibi lity requirements of all governmental employees. A significant reduction in the workforce of 
the Municipality was experienced during the fi scal year ended June 30, 2013 due to the effects of law No. 3. 

JO I 

( ( 



( (((((((((((((((((((((((((( 

Municipality of San Juan 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Operating Indicators by Function 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

F\mclion 
Public safety 

Police officers 
Police trainings3 

Errergency trainings 
Urban affairs 

Walkside construction (lineal ft.) 
Waste disposal collected (ton.) 

Culture and recreation 
Cultural events3 

Auendance3 

Enrollrreot on sport training 
Health and welfare 

Hospital admissions 
A vcrage length of stay 
Welfare center participant~ 
Head Start enrollment 

Urban development 
Permits and endorsements 

Economic development 
Corrrrercial spaces leased 

Education 
College Enrollrrent 
High School Enrolllrent 
Elementary School Fnrolln-cnt 

2014 

983 
46 
35 

23,166 
210,245 

141 
n/a 

24,946 

5,114 
7 

15,364 
3,725 

3,800 

211 

1,633 
326 
317 

2013 

1,009 
46 

242 

205,489 

141 
n/a 
n/a 

4,831 
6 

18,452 
3,914 

535 

171 

1,570 
267 
401 

2012 

1,141 
100 
297 

46.847 
221,187 

119 
n/a 
n/a 

4,359 
7 

19,697 
4,399 

5,639 

220 

1.720 
284 
190 

2011 

1,141 
100 
297 

46,847 
221,187 

119 
n/a 
n/a 

4,359 
7 

19,697 
4.399 

5,639 

220 

1,720 
284 
190 

Fiscal Year 

2010 2009 

1,135 
158 
220 

28,510 
230,462 

72 
243,687 
145,230 

4,439 
7 

9,186 
4.431 

4,630 

215 

1.792 
242 
158 

1,101 
172 
161 

36,822 
232,435 

135 
554,009 
48,229 

4,805 
7 

8,814 
4,502 

1,11 3 

238 

1,355 
165 
240 

Source: Office of Management and Budget of the Municipality of San Juan. 

Note 1: No operating indicators are available for the general government function. 

2008 

1,133 
225 
149 

46,837 
235,219 

155 
185,455 

16,525 

4,912 
7 

7,670 
4,415 

1.386 

236 

1,357 
120 
153 

( ( 

2007 

1,112 
125 
217 

40,904 
240,665 

150 
182.444 

8,033 

4,824 
6 

6.226 
4,287 

1,536 

265 

1,184 

I 15 
110 
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2006 

1,190 
172 
196 

30,028 
238,899 

120 
160,160 

15,597 

5,107 
6 

5,153 
4,412 

1.713 

249 

853 

2005 

1,177 

197 
171 

15,562 
228,983 

265 
135,000 

5,130 

5,882 
6 

5,681 
4,322 

1,868 

265 

961 

Note 2: The figures for 2012 disclosed above were estimated since actual information was not readily available. However, the management of the 
Municipality concluded that the estimates for 2012 would not significantly differ from actual figures. 

Note 3: The figures for 2014 disclosed above were estimated since actual information was not readily available. 
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Municipality of San Juan 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Capital Assets by Function (In thousands) 
last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year 
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

Function 
Public safety 

Police: 
Stations and substations 14 24 27 27 27 25 26 24 20 20 
Patrol units 1,198 601 41 9 41 9 4,1 20 491 483 408 5 18 502 

Emergency: 
Emergency unit 98 97 83 83 83 88 74 66 55 50 

Urban affairs 
Highways and streets (Lineal miles) 1,027 1,23 1 1.23 1 1,23 1 1,231 916 853 853 853 836 
Public works units 1,354 l ,300 l,425 1.425 1.382 1,298 1,305 1,321 1.289 l,298 

Culture and recreation 
Parks 330 5 12 5 12 5 12 365 365 365 347 347 347 
Culture centcrs3 6 6 5 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 

Health and welfare 
Hospital 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
M cdical centers 10 JI 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 
Mobile units 4 5 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 6 
Community ceniers 30 43 43 38 38 38 38 3 1 31 
Head Start centers 76 74 75 75 75 75 75 79 77 78 

Urban development 
Urban centers 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 

Bconomic development 
Commercial spaces 258 23 1 25 1 251 251 25 1 249 278 240 297 
Main event venues3 3 1 3 1 31 31 15 14 9 6 5 5 

Education 
College 
High School 
Elementary School 

Source: Various Munic.ipality's departments. 
Note 1: No capital assets statistics are available fo r the general government function. 
Note 2: The figures for 2012 disclosed above were estimated since actual information was not readily available. However, the management of the 
Municipality concluded that the estimates for 2012 would not significantly differ from actual figures. 
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

...... 

...... Non-
CFDA Monttary Mondary 

Fedtral Grautor/Pass-Tbrougb GrantorlProgram or Cluster Title Number F.Ipcnditures Expenditures 

Department of Agriculture (USDA} 

Pass-throughj-om Commonwealth of P11Uw Rico Department of Education 

National School Lundi Pro!J111ll 10.555 s 330.515 s 
Child and Aduh Care Food Pro111am 10.558 2,872,865 - Total Department of Agriculture (US DA) 3,203,3ID 

Departmtnt of Housing and Urban Dn~lopment (HUD) 

Direet programs 

Mon~ Insurance Rental Housing for the Elderly 14 138 2,622,3$ 

Section 8 HousingAssistance Payments Prog-am 14 195 2,501,892 

Community Dl!Velopment Bio& Grant Cluster 

Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218 10,073,137 

Emcrpcy Solutions Grant Pro!J111ll 14.231 822,00t 

Supponive Housing Pro!J111ll 14.235 1,482,655 

Shelter Plus Care 14.238 769,057 

Horne Investment Pannership Pro!J111ll 14.239 5,893,134 

Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS 14.241 5,989,535 

....... 
Section 8 ModtTate Rehab.i/ication Cluster 

""' Sect ion 8 Moderate Rehabilitation Single Room Occupancy 14.249 782,418 

~ Lower Income Housing Assistance Pro!J111ll-Section 8 

Moderate Rehabilitation 14.856 3,553,855 -
ARRA-Homeless Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Prog-am 14.257 2,108 

'-
Section 8 Housing Choice Voudlers 14.871 22,413,514 

- Pass-through from Commonwealth of Puerto Rico/Department of Health 

Housing Opponunities for Persons with AIDS 14 241 2,179,178 

Pass-through from Commomvealth of Puerto Rico Muricipal Affa1rs Office 

Nei~borhoodStabilization Prog-am (NSP) 14 256 I 5,9Ci6 

Total Department of Housing & Urban Dn~lopment (HUD) 56,478,453 2,622,3$ 

(cominued) --
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the year ended June 3 0, 2014 

Federal Granlor/Pass-Throuch Crantor/Procnm or C luster Tille 

Department or Justice (DOJ) 

D1ree1 programs 

U.S. Marshall Services- PR Fugnive Task Force 

Drug Enforcement Task 

Community Prosecution Project Safe Neighborhoods 

Pass-through from Commonweohh of P11erto Rico Department of Ju.itlce 

Crime Victim Assistant 

Total Department or Justice (DOJ) 

Department or Labor (DOL) 

Direct programs 

Trade Adjustment Assis1ancc 

Pass-1hro11gh from Cummom.eolth of P11er10 Rico Righi to Empluymml 

AdmtnLffrat1on 

WlA - Adult Progr.un 

WIA - Youth Ac11v111es 

WIA - Dislocated Workers 

T otal Dcpartmut or Labor (00 U 

Department ofTrao$portation 

Direct progranJ.f 

Federal Transit Capital ln\•cstmcnt Grants 

Federal Transit Formula Grants 

Pass-through from Commo,,..ealth of Puerto Hico/Traffic: Safety Commission 

Alcohol Impaired Driving Countermeasures Initiatives 

T otal Department orTransportation (DOT) 

Department of Eacrgy 

Direct programs 

ARRA Energy Efficiency and Conservauon Block Grant 

Total Department o f Energy 

106 

CFDA 
Number 

16000 

16 579 

16.609 

16.575 

17.245 

17 258 

17159 

17.:?60 

20 500 

20.507 

20.601 

81.128 

Monetary 
Expendituru 

34,404 

28,780 

1:?7,572 

60,004 

250,760 

427,588 

1,239,165 

1,243.404 

959.198 

3,869,355 

94,188 

165,260 

27,618 

287,066 

672 ,924 

672,924 

Non-Monetary 
Expenditures 

(conrinued) 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerlo R ico) 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

'-
CFDA Moneta ry Non-Monetary - Federal Grantor/Pass-Tbrougb Grantor/Program or Cluster Titte N umber Expenditures Expenditures 

"-" 
Department of f.ducation (ED) 

'-' Direct programs 

i...,.. Federal Pen Grant Proflll!Tl (PELL) 84.063 5,493,755 

Federal Supplementary Educational Opponunity Grants 84.007 51,951 
\,,.. 

Federal Work-Study Pro!1illD (FWS) 84.033 68,981 

...... TRIO Student Suppon Services 84.042 357,669 

\...,; 
Total Department off.ducation (ED) 5,9n,356 

..... Department of Health and Human S ervices (HHS) 

\,,... Direct programs 

Head Start 93 600 27,820,362 

HTV Emergency Relief Project Grants 93.914 12,041 ,955 

Consolidaied Health Centers 93.224 515,878 

Cancer Control 93.399 768,603 

Drug Free Communities Suppon Pro~ Grants 93.276 1,244,nl 

Pass-through.from Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Families and 

Child Admini.scradon 

Community Services Block Grant 93.569 3,753,904 

Pa.ss-throughfrom Commorrwealth of Puerto Rico Governor's Office 

Special Programs for the Aging. Title Ill, Pan C-Nutntion Services 93.045 975,1 81 

Pass-1hroughfrom Nadonal Hea/1h /nsritute-WESTAT 

National Health Promotion-WEST AT 93.990 408,718 

Pass-through from Commorrwealth of Puerto Rico Departmenl of Education 

Risk Reduct ion 93.941 181 ,426 
\,,.. 

'-' 
Pass-through.from Harvard College 

Child Health and Human Development Exiramural Research 93.865 486,236 ..._ 
HIV-Infected Children 

T otal Department of Health & Human Services (HHS) 48, 196,984 

Corporation for Nationa l and Community Se.-.;ce 

Pa.rs-through from Commorrwea/th of Puerro Rico Departmen1 of Hea/1h 

Retired and Senior Volunteer Proflll!Tl 94.002 62,396 

Foster Grandparent Program 94.011 379,238 

Total Corporation for National and Community Service 441,634 

(continued) 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwemth of Puerto Rico) 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Progn1m or Cluster Ti tle 

Department of Homeland Security 

Pass-through from Commonweo/Jh of Puerto Rico Governor's Office 

Homeland Security Grant Program 

Total Department of Homeland Securi ty 

Total expenditures offederal awards 

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 
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CFDA 
Number 

97.067 

Monetary 

Expenditures 

1,646,015 

1,646,015 

$ 121,018,927 

Non-Monetary 

Expendi tu res 

$ 2,622,369 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

I . BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the 
Municipality of San Juan. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented 
in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. 

2. SUBRECIPIENTS 

During fiscal year 2013-2014, the Municipality disbursed $12,141,049 to sub-recipients for the 
realization of healthcare, public service, and housing. The following entities received sub-awards from 
the Municipality's federal financial assistance programs: 

Federal Program CFDANo Disbursements 

HIV Emergency Relief Project Grants 93.914 $ 8,031,398 
Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS 14.241 3,248,420 
Community Development Block Grant I Entitlement Grants 14.218 691,765 
Community Prosecution Project Safe Neighborhoods 16.609 110,938 
Community Sevices Block Grant 93.569 58,528 
Total s 12,14 1,049 

***** 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
P HA Number RQ006 
Housing Financial Data Schedule 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 -

\.. 
14.249 Section 8 

'- Moderate 14.871 I US6 Lower ID come 
Rehalilitation Housing Housing Assistance 

\.. Single Room Cboice Program_Section 8 

'-' 
Occupancy Vouchers Moderate To1.tl 

111 Cash • Urucs1ntted s 1,705,039 689,107 s J,883,786 s 6,_"IT/,'132 
112 Cash · Restricted · Modem1Zat10n and Development 

113 Cash · Other Restricted 
114 Cash· Tenant Security Deposis 
115 Cash · Restricted for Payment ofOnmit Liabilities 

\.. 100 Total Cash 1,705,039 689,107 3,883,786 6.Tn@l 

'-' 121 Accounts Reccivabk • PHA Projects 
122 Accounts Recetvabk · HUD Other Pro)Ccts 
124 Accounts Receivable · Other Government 
125 Accounts Receivable · Miscellaneous 718,444 718,444 
126 Accounts Receivable· Tcnanll 
126.1 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Tenants 
126.2 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts· Other 
127 Notes, Loans, & Mongages Rccetvable • Oirrcnt 
128 Fraud Recovery 
128.1 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts · Fraud 
129 Accrued Interest Receivable 
120 Total Receivables, Net of Allowances for Doubtful Accounts 718,444 718,444 

131 Investments • Urucstncted 
132 Investments · Restricted 
135 Investments · Restricted for Payment of Olmnt L.iabi!Jty 
142 Prepaid f)ipenses and Other Assets 
143 Inventories 
143. I A Oowancc for Obsolete Inv en tones 
144 Inter Program Due From 
145 Assets Held for Sale 
150 Total Oirrent Assets 2,423.4&3 689,107 3,883,786 6,996,376 

161 Land 
162 &ildings 
163 fwniurc, f1lu1>ment & M!(h11cry · Dwellings 

'- 164 Furniture. f.quipmenl & Machinery· Adminis1ration 
165 Leasehold lq>rovcments 

'- 166 Accu!llllated Depreciation 

I,,,,. 
167 Construction i1 Progress 

"'-
(contilued) 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
P HA Number RQ006 
Housing Financial Data Schedule - For the year ended June 30, 2014 

\., 

'- 14.856 lower 
14.249 Stetioo 8 14.871 lntomt Housing - l\locleralt Housing Assislmu 

'- Rcbatilltatioo Single Choice Program_Seclion 8 
Room OctUl!!!!:I Vouchers Modu1te Total 

'-
168 Jnfrastlllcture 

'- 160 Total Capilal Asseu, Net of AccumJlated Depreciation 

'-
171 Notes, Loans and Mongages Receivable· Non-Current 

172 Notes, Loans, & Mongages Receivable - Non CUmnt · Past 

173 Ganis Receivable - Non C\ment 

174 Olhtr Assets 

176 Investments in Joint Ventures 

ISO Total Non-Qment Assets 

190 Total Assets $ 2.423,483 s 689,107 $ 3,883,786 s 6,996,376 

311 Bank Overdraft s $ s s 
312 Accounts Payable <-90 Days 376,514 9.386 23,715 409,615 
313 Accounts Payable >90 Days Past Due - 321 Accrued Wage/Payroll Ta.-es Payable 

"-' 322 Accrued ColJ1lensated Absences -Omen! Ponion 
324 Accrued Contingency Liability 

325 Accrued Interest Payable 

331 Accounts Payable - HUD PHA Programs 

332 Account Payable - PHA Projects 

333 Accounts Payable - Other Ccvemment 

341 Tenant Seounty Deposits 

342 Deferred Revenues 

343 Current Ponion of Long-term Debt - Capilal 

344 Current Ponion of Long-tenn Debt· Operattng Borrowmgs 

345 Olher Cum:nt Liabilities 1,662 483,748 3,109,470 3,5'>4,880 
346 Accrued Liabilities - Other 

347 Inter Program- Due To 

348 Loan Liability -Current 

310 Total Cum:nt Liabilities 378,176 493,134 3, 133,185 4,004,495 -
351 Long-term Debt, Net of Current · Capital Pro)CCts/Mongage 

352 Long-tcnn Debt, Net of Current· Operatitg BotTOwings 
\.,.; 353 Non-<:urrent l.Jabilitics -Other 

'-
354 Accrued Co111>ensated Abscna:s - Non current 

35S Loan Liabiliry ·Non Current 

356 FASS 5 Liabilities 

3S7 Accrued Pension and OPEB Liabililies 

350 Total Non-CUm:nt Liabilities 

300 Total Liabilities 378,176 493,134 3,133,185 4,004,495 

(continued) 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
P HA Nwnber RQ006 
Housing Financial Data Schedule 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

508.1 Invested In Capilal Assets, Net of Related Debt 

511.1 Rtstrictcd Net Asseu 

5121 Unresnimd Net Asseu 

Sl3 Total Equity/Net Assets 

600 Total l.iabililics and Equily/Ne1 Assets 

14.249 Section 8 
Modualt Rehabilitation 
Single Room Occul!!!!Cl 

2,045,307 

2,045,307 

s ~423,483 s 

112 

14.871 14.856 Lower Income 
BouJing Housing Assis wee 
Choice Pr02ram_Scction 8 

Vouchers Moderate Tow 

195,973 750,601 2,991,881 

195,973 750,601 2,991,881 

689,107 s 3,883,786 s 6,996.376 

(condued) 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 

'-' P HA Nwnber RQ006 

'-
Housing Financial Data Schedule 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

._ 
14.249 Section 8 ,_ 

14.871 Moderate 14.856 Lower lncomc 
HoUJiog Rebabiliiation HoD£ing Assis tance ,_ 
Oioie:e Single Room Program_S«tion 8 

Vouchers Occup1ncy Moderate Toial -- 92000 Asset Management Fee 

92100 Tenant Services· Salaries 

92200 Relocation Costs 

~ 
92300 Employee Bencfn Contnl>utions ·Tenant Services 

92400 Tenant Services -Other - 92500 Total Tenant Services 

'- 93100 Water 

93200 Electricily 15,369 8,323 16,072 39,764 

93300 Gas 

93400 Fuel 

93500 labor 

93600 Sewer 

93700 Employee Benefit Contnl>utioos • Utilities 

93800 Other Utilities &pense 6,670 1,599 3,483 11,752 

...... 93000 Total Utilities 22.039 9,922 19,SSS 51,516 

...... 94100 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - labor 

94200 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations· Materials and 

94300 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts 

'-' 94500 Employee Benefn Contnl>utions ·Ordinary Maintenance 

94000 Total Maintenance 

~ 

95100 Protective Services - labor - 95200 Protective Services - Other Contract Costs 

95300 Protective Services ·Other 

95500 Employee Benef« Conrnl>utions - Protective Services 

95000 Total Protective Services 

96110 Propeny Insurance 

96120 Liability Insurance 

9613-0 Worianeo's Co111>ensation 415,088 1,828 4,165 51 ,081 

96140 AD Other Insurance 97,036 4,168 12,825 114,029 

96100 Total insurance Plcrriums 1412,124 5,996 16.990 165,110 

...... 96200 Other General Expenses 

96210 Compensated Absences 26,340 26,340 - 96300 Payments in Lieu ofTaxes 

I.,..; 
96400 Bad debt· Tenant Rents 

96500 Bad debt • Mongages 

96600 Bad debt - Other 

96800 Severance Expense 

96000 Total Other General Expenses 26,340 26,340 

'-
(continued) 
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'-' Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 

'-
PHA Number RQ006 
Housing Financial Data Schedule - For the year ended June 30, 2014 

'-

14.871 14.249 Section 8 14.856 Uiwer Income 
Housing Moderate Housing Assistance 
Choice Rehabilitation S"mgle Program_Section 8 

Vouchers Room Occupancy Moderate Total 

96710 lnleresl of Moctgage (o: Bonds) Payable 
96720 lixerest on N~ Payable (Shoo and Loog Term) 
96730 Anll!tizatioo of Bond Issu: Costs 
96700 Tora! Interest Expense and Arrortization Cost 

~ Taal Operating Expecses 1,890,121 130,319 29'.l,551 2,319,9t)I 

97ml Excess of Operating Re\-enue O\'er Operalilg E.tpecses 19,885,918 807,696 3,273,455 '13,967 J'iB -
'-' 

97100 Extraordinary Maiuenaoce 
97200 Casuahy Losses - Non-capialized 
97300 Housilg Assistanee Payments 20,523.396 652,081 3,253,076 24,428,553 
97350 HAP Poctabiliy-ln - 97400 Depreciatim E.tpense 
97$.XJ Fraud Losses 

"-' 
97fJ1J Capital Outlays -Cio\'ertUreotal Funds 
moo Debt Pmc~ Payment -Ciovemmental Funds 

'-' 
97800 Dwellilg Units Re111 Expense 
90000 T ctal Expenses 22,413,517 782,400 3,552,627 26,748,544 

'-' 
10010 Operating Transfer In 
10020 Operating transfer Out 

'- 10030 Operating Transfers fronY!o Primary Cio\tl1llli!nt 
10040 Operating Transfers fro!!Vto CollllOllent Unit 

'- 10050 Proceeds from Notes, Loans and Boods 

'"'-' 
I OC60 Proceeds from Propeny Sales 
10070 Extraordinary Items, Net GaiJ/Loss 

'- ICXEO Special Items (Net GaiVLoss) 
10091 Inter Pr*ct Excess Cash Trarufer In 

'-"' 10092 Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer Out 
10093 Transfers between Program and Project - In 
10094 Transfers between Project and Program - Out 
10100 Total Other finaocilg Sources (Uses) 

10000 Excess (Defri!ocy) orTcxal Re\oeoue O\tr (Under) Tora! (637,478) 155,615 20,379 (461,484) 

1 ICllO Requied Annual Debi Prioc'al Payirents - 11030 Begilning Equity l,891J,776 (28.970) 227,626 2,008,432 
11040 Pm Perixl Ad}lslnl!nts, Equity Transfers and Carectioo 783,00J 69.248 502,596 1,354.853 - 11050 Changes in Compensated Absence Balance 
1 IOCiO Changes in Contingent Liability Balaoce 
11070 Changes in Unrecognized Peosilo Transful Liability 

...... II~ Changes in Special TecmlSe\traoce Benefits Liabiliy 

- I lC.00 Changes in Al>w31X:e foc Doobtful Accounts -Dwelling 
11100 Changes in Al>waoce for Doubtful AccOUDts - Olh!r 

....... 1 l l70 Admilistratf.-e Fee Equity 468,873 468,873 

'-' 
(continued) 
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Municipality of San Juan 
I_. (Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 

- PHA Number RQ006 
Housing Financial Data Schedule - For the year ended June 30, 2014 

-
14.249 Section 8 

14.871 l\.blerate 14.856 Lo~r Income 
Housing Rebalilitatioo Housing Assistance 
Oioice Single Room Progr11DLSection 8 

Vouchers Occ.upwicy Moderate Tollll 

11 180 Housing Assistance Payrrents Equity 1.576.434 1,576,434 - 11190 Unit Months A vailablc 55,632 2.064 5.712 63,408 

11210 Nuai>erofUnit Months leased 37.844 1.958 5,516 45,318 
!;... 11270 ER:ess Cash 

11610 Land Purchases - 11620 Building Purchases 

11630 Furniture & Equipm:nt ·Dwelling Purchases 

11640 Fumirure & Equiprrent · Administrative Purchases 

11650 leasehold ~roverrents Purchases 

11660 Infrastructure Purchases 

135 IO CFFP Debt Service Payrreots 

13901 Replacerrent Housing Factor Funds 

4,821,568 44,300 741,450 5.607,318 

~ (concluded) 

\..,,.; 
See notes to housing financial data schedule. 

""" 

-
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
P HA Number RQ006 
Notes to Housing Financial Data Schedule 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTJNG POLICY 

The Housing Financial Data Schedule is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing 
of the related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

***** 
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!DEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATIERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the Municipal Legislature 
Municipality of San Juan 
Capital City of Puerto Rico 

We have audjted, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Uruted States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Munfoipality of San Juan, Capital City of Puerto 
Rico, (the Municipality) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise Municipality's basic financial statements and have issued our 
report thereon dated December 29, 2014. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Murucipality's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opirnons on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opiruon on the effectiveness of Municipality's internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opiruon on the effectiveness of Municipality's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the lirruted purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and 
significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, mjsstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity' s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We 
consider the deficiencies 2014-11- l described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs to be material weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 

650 Munoz Rivera Ave . Suite 502 San Juan , PR 00918-4149 • PO Box 195607 Sa n Juan PR 00919-5607 
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governance. We consider the deficiencies 2014-Il-2 described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs to be significant deficiencies. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Municipality's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to 
be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2014-Il-3 through 2014-Il-5. 

Municipality's Response to Findings 
Municipality's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs. Municipality's response was not subjected co the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit perfonned in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

December 29, 2014 
Stamp No. E'.88694 was affixed 
to the original of this repon 
License No. 88 Exp. December I, 2017. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CffiCULAR A-
133 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the Municipal Legislature 
Municipality of San Juan 
Capital City of Puerto Rico 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
We have audited the Municipality of San Juan, Capital City of Puerto Rico (the Municipality), 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance 
Supplement that could have direct and material effect on each of Municipality's major federal programs 
for the year ended June 30, 2014. Municipality's major federal programs are identified in the summary of 
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Municipality's major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Municipality's 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Municipality's 
compliance. 

Bas.is for Qualified Opinion 
As indicated in the following table and described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs, the Municipality did not comply with certain compliance requirements that are 
applicable to its major Federal programs. Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our 
opinion, for Municipality to comply with the requirements applicable to that program. 

650 Munoz Rivera Ave . Suite 502 San Juan , PR 00918-4149 • PO Box 195607 San Juan , PR 00919 -5607 
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Federal A,'3.I'ding Agency 

US Department of Education 

US Department of Heahb and Human Services 

US Department of Labor 

Federal Program 

84.063 Federal Pell Grant 

93.600 Head Start 
17.258, 17.259, 17.260 Workforce 
Investment Act Cluster 
14.218 Community Development 

US Department of Housing and Urban Development Block Grants 

Compliance 
Requirement Finding No. 

Cash 
Management 

Cash 
Management 

Cash 
Management 

Cash 

2014-ill-l 

2014-III-J 

2014-III-1 

Management 2014-III-1 
Cash 

US Department of Health and Human Services 93.914 HIV Emergency Relief Management 2014-ill-1 
14.241 Housing Opportunities for Cash 

US Department of Health and Human Services Persons with Aili 
14.856 Lower Income Housing 
Assistance Program - Section 8 

US Department of Housing and Urban Development Moderate Rehabilitati:>n 
14.239 Home Investment 

US Department of Housing and Urban Development Partnership Program 
93.569 Community Services Block 

Management 2014-III-1 

Cash 
Management 2014-III-l 

Cash 
Management 2014-III-l 

Cash 2014-ill-1 
US Department of Health and Human Services Grant Management 2014-III-2 

14.218 Community Development 
US Department of Housing and Urban Development Block Grant Reporting 2014-III-4 

US Department of Health and Human Services 93.914 HIV Emergency Relief Reporting 2014-ill-4 
14.241 Housing Opportunities for 

US Department of Housing and Urban Development Persons with Aids Reporting 2014-ill-4 
93.569 Community Services Block 

US Deparcment of Health and Human Services Grant 

US Department of Health and Human Services 93.914 HIV Emergency Relief 

US Department of Health and Human Services 93.914 HIV Emergency Relief 
14.239 Home Investment 

US Department of Housing and Urban Development Partnership 

Qualified Opinion 

Reporting 2014-III-4 
Program 
Income 2014-III-6 

Sub-Recipient 
Monitoring 2014-III-7 

Earmarking 2014-ill-17 

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, 
Municipality complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of the major programs described in the 
preceding paragraph for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Unmodified Opinion on Each of the Other Major Federal Programs 
In our opinion, the Municipality complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its other major 
federal programs identified in the sununary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of 
fmdings and questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2014. 
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Other Matters 
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed other instances of noncompliance, which are required to 
be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2014-In-3, 2014-III-5, 2014-III-8 to 2014-III-16. Our 
opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to these matters. 

Municipality 's response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Municipality's response was not subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the 
response. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
Management of the Municipality is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. ln planning and performing 
our audit of compliance, we considered Municipality's internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with OMB Circular A- t 33, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Municipality's internal control over compliance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified 
certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses and 
significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies 
in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs as items 2014-III-1, 2014-III-2, 2014-UI-4, 2014-III-6, 2014-III-7 and 2014-III-17 to be material 
weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 
2014-lll-3, 2014-III-5, 2014-In-8 to 2014-Ill-16 to be significant deficiencies. 
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Municipality' s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Municipality's response was 
not subjected to tbe auditing procedures applied in tbe audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express 
no opinion on the response. 

Tbe purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe tbe scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and tbe results of that testing based on tbe requirements of 
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

December 29, 2014 
Scamp No. £88695 was affixed 
to the original of this repon 
License No. 88 Exp. December 1, 2017. 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

Section 1- Summarv of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 
Type of auditors' report issued 
Internal control over financial reporting 
1. Material weakness identified? 
2. Significant deficiencies that are not to be considered material weakness? 
3. Noncompliance material to financial statement noted? 

Federal A wards 
Internal control over major programs: 
1. Material weaknesses identified? 
2. Significant deficiencies that are not to be considered material weakness? 
3. Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major program? 
4. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in 

accordance with Circular A-133, Section .510(a) 

Identification of Major Programs: 

Program of Cluster 
• Section 8 Lower Income Housing Assistance Program- Section 8 Moderate 

Rehabilitation 
• Community Development Block Grant I Entitlement Grants Cluster 
• Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS 
• Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher 
• Head Start Administration for Youth and Children 
• HIV Emergency Relief Project Grant 
• Workforce Investment Act Cluster 

• Community Service Block Grant 
• Federal Pell Grant Program 
• Section 231 Direct Loan 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs 

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? 

125 

Unmodified 

Yes 
No 
Yes 

Yes 
Yes 

Qualified 

Yes 

CFDA Number 
14.856 

14.218/14.253 
14.241 
14.871 
93.600 
93.914 

17 .258, 17 .259. 
17.260 
93.569 
84.063 
14.138 

$3,000,000 

No 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

Section 2 - Financial Statement Findings 

Finding No. 2014-ll-01 lnadeguate Accounting Records and Closing Procedures - Material 
weakness 

Criteria 
Article 8.01 O(a) of the Municipalities Law establishes the Municipality must have an accounting system 
that provides for a uniform accounting and financial reporting structure that allows the Municipality to 
carry out its responsibilities. The system and related accounting procedures shaJI permit the preparation 
of accurate and complete financial reports that provide complete information regarding the results of 
operations for the use of the Municipality, the Municipal Legislature, the Governor, the Secretary of the 
Treasury and the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs. 

Article 8.0JO(b) of the Autonomous Municipalities Law establishes that the accounting shall be 
maintained by funds and shall be based in general accepted accounting principles as established by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

Article 7.001 (a) of the Autonomous Municipalities Law establishes that the Municipality shall close its 
accounting records at year end to allow for the accurate evaluation of the results of operations for the 
ensuing fi5cal year. 

Condition 
The Municipality has made modifications to its accounting procedures. However, the following matters 
were noted during out audit that still need to be addressed. 

• The following matters noted affect the overall financial statement preparation and presentation . 
Therefore, these are considered to have a significant and material effect on possible errors or 
irregularities that the Municipality may not be able to prevent or detect on a timely basis because 
of the pervasiveness of each of these matters. The Municipality: 

o Does not close its accounting records to prepare financial reports in accordance with 
GAAP on a monthly basis for all of its operations. Current monthly procedures are 
carried out on a modified budgetary basis and does not provide for an analysis of the 
overall financial position and results of operations of each of the Municipality's funds 
and accounts. 

o Does not analyze and evaluate accounts balances and transactions on a monthly basis to 
ensure that these are free from errors or irregularities. The analysis of most account 
balances and transactions is performed once a year as part of the year-end closing 
process. 

o Does not reconcile periodically and agree amounts in the Municipality's general ledger 
with the corresponding subsidiary of taxes receivable and accounts payable. The 
reconciliation of the accounts payable subsidiary with the general ledger is done as part 
of the year-end closing process. 

o Does not have formal monthly or periodical cut-off procedures to ensure that all 
transactions are recorded in the corresponding accounting period. 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

o Does not prepare budget vs. actual financial reports periodically to provide infonnation 
regarding the year-to-date results of the Municipality's revenue and expenditure 
transactions. lnstead, the Municipality monitors its finances through monthly cash flow 
reports. 

o Has a general ledger and related trial balance accounts that appears to be unnecessarily 
detailed for an effective and efficient accounting and management. 

o Does not have an integrated financial reporting structure to allow for the effective and 
efficient preparation of the Municipality's basic financial statements including the 
conversion process for the government-wide financial statements. The 2014 basic 
financial statements and related conversion was completed after a significant gathering of 
fonnal and infonnal documents. 

• Matters Related to Taxes, Loans and Other Receivables: The Municipality: 
o Does not have an updated and accurate municipal license tax subsidiary ledger. 
o Does not have effective and efficient collection and follow up initiatives to collect 

amounts due from loans and other receivables, as required by Article 8.003 of the 
Autonomous Municipalities Law. 

• Matters related to capital assets: The Municipality: 
o Does not have a capital assets subsidiary ledger integrated within the accounting system. 

Capital assets listings are maintained in excel worksheets. The final amounts presented 
in the Municipality's basic financial statements resulted after significant audit and 
management adjustments and corrections. 

o Does not carry out a periodical reconciliation of the amounts recorded as capital asset 
acquisition expenditures with the additions recorded in capital assets accounts. The 
reconciliation was done as part of the year-end closing process. 

o For 2014, the Municipality carried out a project to reconstruct a subsidiary of assets 
acquired with federal funds by reviewing all purchases in excess of $5,000 for the past 5 
years. Selected mayor items were traced back to physical inventories carried out at the 
federal program level. Although progress has been made to account for all assets acquired 
with federal funds, the Municipality should continue to refine its procedures to ensure 
that all assets are adequately accounted for. 

o Does not perfonn a capital assets inventory every two years. Therefore, there is the 
possibility that the actual capital assets on hand does not agree with the current list of 
capital assets. Accordingly, the Municipality may not prevent or detect on a timely basis 
the unauthorized use or disposition of its capital assets. 

• Matters Related to Accounts Payable: The Municipality: 
o Does not periodically reconcile the accounts payable subsidiary with the general ledger. 

The Municipality makes significant year-end efforts to identify all unrecorded liabilities. 
o Have few accounts payable and accrual accounts that carry debit balances, indicating the 

possibility of errors or over payments. 
o Does not periodically reconcile the accounts payable with all its suppliers and vendors. 

The Municipality reconcile vendor accounts on a case-by-case basis. 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

• 

• 

• 

Cause 

Matters Related to Debt: The Municipality: 
o Does not account for long term debt balances in its accounting system on a timely basis 

nor it has a subsidiary ledger that provides a detail of all its long-term obligations. The 
detail of long term debt is prepared as part of the year-end closing process and kept in 
electronic worksheets. The long-term debt presented in the government-wide basic 
financial statements is assembled from numerous external documents and resources. 

o Does not reconcile periodically the debt service payments with the amortization table. 
During the year ended June 30, 2014 we noted that the amount withheld by CRIM for the 
payment of interest was approximately $1.3 million more than the amount per 
amortization tables provided by GDB. 

Matters Related to Interfund Balances and Transactions: The Municipality 
o Does not periodically analyze de adequacy and reasonability of balances due from and to 

different funds to determine whether the debtor fund is able to repay the amount due. As 
part of the year-end closing process, an analysis was performed over the interfund 
balances. 

Matters Related to A ccrued Vacations: The Municipality: 
o The Municipality's payroll process and accrued compensated absences have material 

weaknesses in its operations and administration. Considering that the Municipality has 
approximately 6,800 to 7,200 employees, the following matters noted are significant 
weaknesses on internal control and compliance: 

• Accrued compensated absences module of the payroll system is not used. 
Instead, the Municipality maintains compensated absences balances informally in 
excel worksheets 

• The aforementioned worksheets are not subjected to supervisory review and 
validation. 

The Municipality's financial accounting and reporting structure is not designed to gather the necessary 
infonnation efficiently and effectively to pennit: 

• Periodic analysis of transactions and balances 
• Periodic reconciliation among trial balances and subsidiary ledgers 

Effect 
The overall effect is that the Municipality's financial information was not complete or accurate to allow 
management to make informed and timely decisions. Errors or irregularities may occur and not be 
detected on a timely basis. Critical financial information may only be available at year-end, after 
extended analysis of accounts and transactions. In addition, management posted a significant number of 
adjustments and corrections in order to correct the amounts presented in its current year financial 
statements. 

Recommendation 
The Municipality should continue its efforts to review and revise its current accounting and financial 
reporting structure. This includes, among others, the evaluation of the current accounting and financial 
reporting software to ensure it meets the necessary standards, establislunent or revision of policies and 
procedures, estabHslunent of periodic reconciliation and analysis processes and procedures, additional 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

training of all personnel related to accounting and financial reporting responsibilities, and establishing a 
financial reporting unit. This financial reporting unit should be responsible for overseeing the overall 
deployment of the project to ensure that goals are met effectively. 

Views of responsible officials 

Management agrees with the finding. Significant changes were made to strengthen the 20 I 4 year-end 
closing process including engaging outside accounting advisors to assist the Municipality, development of 
a detailed year-end work plan and timetable and periodic year-end closing meetings. These changes will 
be repeated in the 20 I 5 year-end closing process. As a result of the 20 I 4 audit, we have identified various 
areas that we need to address to continue to shorten the year-end closing process and strengthen controls 
over certain financial accounting balances and transactions. New procedures will be added to the detailed 
year-end work plan to address these areas of concern. In addition, we still need to continue to improve on 
our monthly accounting processes and procedures. 

Responsible official: Director of Finance 
Estimated completion date: September 30, 2015 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Common wealth of Puerto Rico) 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

- - - ---- - - - - - - - ---

Finding No. 2014-11-2 Deficiency in Inter nal Controls over Personnel F iles 

Criteria 
Laws and regulations require that personnel files should be kept current and should include all required 
documentation. 

Condition 
During our audit we observed that personnel files are not being kept current and in some instances were 
incomplete. lo certain instances, we noted that the following information was not included in the files. 

• Forms 499-R4, Employees Withholding Allowance Certificate, 1-9 Employment Eligibility 
Verification 

• Authorization for direct deposit. In order to comply with our requirement management obtained 
new direct deposits authorization since the originals could not be located. 

• In certain instances, the Change Report (Form SP2) was not updated to reflect the last 
compensation rate approved to the employees 

Cause 
Controls and procedures that require that employee files be current are not carried out consistently and 
there is no proper supervision that require compliance with established policy. 

Effect 
By not keeping personnel files current, the Municipality is exposed to penalties in case of legal claims. In 
addition the Municipality could be not in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

Recomme11dation 
Procedures should be implemented to assure that a!J personnel files are current and complete in 
accordance with laws and regulations. 

View of responsible officials 
Management agrees with the finding. Safeguard controls over the custody of aU supporting documents 
will be emphasized through formal communication to all concerning parties. 

Responsible official: Director of Finance 
Estimated completion date: June 30, 2015 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

Finding No. 2014-11-3 Business Contioujty 

Condition 
A contingency plan to restore operations in case of unforeseen interruptions has not been updated and 
tested. 

Criteria 
A contingency plan, including an alternate processing site must be fully functional, tested, and ready for 
activation at a moment's notice. 

Cause 
The Municipality's Disaster Recovery Plan is dated to 200 I. 

Effect 
Critical business functions may not be resumed in a timely and efficient manner in case that an 
emergency or disaster renders the computer center inoperative. 

Recommendation 
The Municipality should update or develop a Business Continuity Plan for its information technology 
functions, including its alternate processing facilities. In order to provide full assurance that the alternate 
processing facility will work effectively, the plan must be tested by simulating all procedures to be 
performed during a real emergency. Currently, there is a contract with Netwave to provide services for 
the Oracle applications, therefore those applications may be restored in the event of emergency. 

The contingency plan must include not only information systems, but agency-wide disaster recovery 
procedures. Procedures should include manual processing of transactions to ensure continuity of 
operations until computer processing is restored. These manual procedures should also be simulated on a 
periodic basis to assure that all current employees are fully trained to perform their duties in case of a 
disaster, or in any case of prolonged system unavailability. 

Procedures should be developed to periodically test the plan by simulating an emergency and to perform 
any necessary updates for changing business conditions and computer environments on a regular basis. 

View of responsible off1cia/s 
We do not concur with the finding. Copy of the Municipality's Backup and Recovery Procedures 
Manual, which has been updated through May 22, 2014 and is available for inspection. The contingency 
recovery period of the Municipality has been estimated between two (2) and four (4) hours after any 
unforeseen contingent event. Recovery data held at the designated alternate site in the Netware facilities is 
updated on an hourly basis from the primary to the secondary sites pursuant to the data backup and 
recovery itinerary. These procedures have been successfully tested on the new Alternate site on 
November 2014. 

Responsible official: Director of Management and Budget 
Estimated completion date: Not applicable 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

Finding No. 2014-II-4 Internal Audit 

Condition 
The Municipality's information technology (TT) operations may not conform with generally accepted 
internal controls. 

Criteria 
Internal controls in IT operations are critical to mitigating risks of financial misreporting, asset protection, 
and efficient operations. 

Cause 
Internal audit has a limited involvement in Information Systems internal controls. 

Effect 
Gi ven the use of information systems throughout its operations, internal controls in the Information 
Systems functions are a very critical part of the organization. Since there is little involvement by the 
Internal audit function, compliance with policies and procedures may not be monitored appropriately, and 
recommendations for improvement may not be provided by an independent source. 

Recommendation 
MSJ should increase the level of involvement of the internal control expertise typically available from an 
internal audit function (or outsourced) to perform regular reviews of the following areas: 

• Compliance with policies. 
• System development life cycles of information systems. 
• Information System Security monitoring 
• Contingency Planning 
• IT Operations 

View of responsible officials 

The Internal Audit Office plans to conduct an audit over certain areas of the Information Systems' Office's 
operations and procedures. 

Responsible official: Director of Internal Audit 
Estimated completion date: September 30, 2015 
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Finding 2014-Il-5 Security Monitoring 

Condition 
Information security monitoring functions are not performed effectively. 

Criteria 
Security Officer functions should include the use of security monitoring software to complement security 
controls and assure they are effective and efficient. The Municipality's strategic plan establishes an 
Information Security Officer as the position responsible for Information Security and control and for 
developing a security plan. 

Cause 
Although the Municipality's strategic plan establishes an Information Security Officer as the position 
responsible for Information Security and control, the Municipality currently does not have a Security 
Officer position and has not implemented an application and operating system security monitoring 
software. The Municipality's systems have logs which record the system activity that can be available for 
review, but this information is available only for an after the fact searching in the event of an 
investigation. 

Effect 
Without regular system security monitoring reviews, the Municipality may not effectively detect 
important information security activity such as UserID creation and deletion, changes in privileges, 
security violations, system use at unusual hours, login attempts from unauthorized terminals, etc. 

Recommendation 
The Municipality should have a full-time information system security officer and implement security 
monitoring software, in order for the officer to monitor security violations, access to critical files, and the 
activity of security administrators. 

Security monitoring reports can indicate instances of unauthorized or attempted unauthorized access, 
which should be subject to a review, investigation, and corrective or disciplinary action, as appropriate. 
Reports should be tailored to specific user activity (such as activity with security administrator ids, critical 
file access, program changes, and security policy changes) or specific event related activity (time-specific 
activity and recurrent password violations), therefore providing useful and manageable reports that a 
security officer would be able to review regularly without having to sort through numerous line entries on 
logs. 

Security monitoring is best performed by application owners, internal auditors or any independent party 
in order to provide assurance for information technology. Super Admin IDs are very powerful tools that 
should be monitored regularly by independent personnel. 

View of responsible officials 
We do not concur with the finding. The Municipality has adopted sound and effective security 
monitoring procedures including, but not limited to, strict policies and procedures over network access 
controls which have been documented in the Physical and Logical Access Controls and Procedures 
Manual, approved in May 2014. Those procedures also provide strict monitoring controls regarding the 
use of the broad base of municipal information systems. Those policies and procedures provide guidance 
on the systems' navigation and users' privileges. Specifically regarding the munjcipal financial system, a 
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- - - - - -------- -- - ---------

double user password validation is required and the user privileges are assigned in conformity with the 
user's approved specific duties. 

In the modem Era, security controls are established through usage, access and monitoring policies over 
the network and existing vertical applications. Each specialized area has the adequate human resources in 
charge of the day-to-day implementation of those security policies established. 

The Municipality has two (2) network administrators, which among their responsibilities; establish group 
policy controls for users, computers and servers, which allow the simplification of duties, administration 
and implementation on a centralized way to maximize all security control aspects of the Municipality. 

Responsible Official: Director of Management and Budget 
Estimated Completion Date: Not applicable 
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Section 3 - F indings As Req uired by OMB Circular A-133 

Finding No. 2014-lll-1 

CFDA No.: 93.600 
CFDA No.: 84.063 
CFDA No.: 17.258, 17.259, 17.260 
CFDA No.: 93.569 
CFDA No.: 93.914 

Program Name 

Head Start 
Federal Pell Grant 
Workforce Investment Act Cluster 
Community Services Block Grant 
HIV Emergency Relief 

CFDA No.: 14.24 I 
CFDA No: 14.856 

Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids 
Lower Income Housing Assistance Program -
Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation 

CFDA No: 14.239 
CFDA No: 14.218 

Home Investments Partnership 
Community Development Block Grants 

Compliance over Cash Management - Material W eakness 

Criteria 
Per 24 CFR 85.20, recipients must follow procedures to minimize the time elapsing between the transfer 
of funds from the U.S. Treasury and disbursement and establish similar procedures for subrecipients. 

Condition 
We noted that in certain instances the Municipality did not minimize the time lapse between the 
drawdown and receipt of the check by the contractor or the supplier. The exceptions noted are 
summarized by Federal program as follows: 

Total Exceptions Days 
CFDANo. Program Name Sample Noted Lapse 

93.600 Head Start 46 items 12 items 7 to 26 da~s 
84.063 Federal Pell Grant Program 40 items 30 item 8 to 20 da~s 
17.258, 
17.259 and Workforce Investment Act Cluster 14 items 8 items 6 to 22 days 
17.260 
93.569 Communi!z'. Services Block Grant 3 Items I Item 25 da~s 
94.914 HIV Emergenc~ Relief 47 Items 17 Items 5 to 22 da~s 
14.218 Communi!z'. DeveloEment Block Grants 27 items 25 Items 4 to 27 da~s 

Housing Opportunities for Persons with 38 Items 4 items 11 to 25 days 
14.241 

AIDS 
14.239 Home Investments PartnershiE Program 22 Items 18 Items 5 to 33 da~s 
14.856 Lower Income Housing Assistance Program Compared all deposit 7 to 10 days 

Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation per bank statement with 
related withdrawals 
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Cause 
Payment procedures utilized by the Municipality do not allow for precision in determining the time lag 
between a request of Federal funds and the payment being made. The current practice is that the 
Municipality prepares the check and makes it available for the supplier or the contractor so that they can 
personally pick up the check in the Municipality's premises. The time lag presented above could be the 
result of late pick up by the supplier of contractor. However we were unable to validate this situation. 

EffecJ 
Failure to drawdown Federal funds on an as-needed basis could result in an interest liability being 
incurred. 

Questioned Costs 
None 

Recommendation 
We recommend the Municipality to release the checks by immediately upon issuance and contracting the 
supplier for immediate pickup, or sending the payment through mail. 

Views of responsible officials 
We concur with the finding and the independent auditors' recommendation. As an immediate corrective 
action, the Municipality will establish the necessary pol icies and procedures to drawdown federal funds as 
closely as possible to the actual disbursement dates, and checks will be sent by mail to the corresponding 
payees within the allowable period of time. 

Responsible Official: Federal Program Manager 
Estimated Completion Date: June 30, 20 l 5 
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Finding No. 2014-ID-2 

CFDA No.: 93.569 Community Services Block Grant 

Compliance over Cash Management -Material Weakness 

Criteria 
Per 24 CFR 84.22(b)2, cash advances to a recipient organization shall be limited to the minimum amount 
needed and be timed to be in accordance with the actual, immediate cash requirements of the recipient 
organization. 

Condition 
The Municipality is required by the Department of Family of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the 
Grantee) to request reimbursements at the end of every quarter. We noted that during the quarter ended 
March 31, 2014 the Municipality requested $201,462 in excess of the actual expenses incurred in quarter 
resulting in cash received in excess of actual cash needs. Such excess was deducted from the amount 
requested in the following quarter. 

Cause 
The request for reimbursement sent to the Grantee was not reconciled with actual expenses for the quarter 
as recorded in Municipality Oracle accounting system, to ensure that the amount requested was in 
compliance with the approved process. 

Effect 
Failure to drawdown Federal funds on an as-needed basis could result in an interest Liability being 
incurred. 

Questioned Costs 
None 

Recommendation 
We recommend the Municipality to enforce the controls over fund request and verify that the request is 
made for actual expenditures incurred. 

Views of responsible officials 
We partially concur with the finding and the independent auditors' recommendation. However, the 
Municipality acknowledges that funding requests exceeded actual program allowable operating costs by 
only $189,773 during the quarter ended March 31, 2014. The Municipality adopted an immediate 
corrective action in the subsequent quarter ended June 30, 2014 by deducting the excess funding requests 
made in the previous quarter from the allowable funding requests of the later quarter. 

The Municipality will also review its current policies and will adopt improved procedures to ensure that 
all funds are disbursed in accordance with laws and regulations or the terms and conditions of the award. 

Responsible Official: Federal Program Manager 
Estimated Completion Date: June 30, 2015 
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Finding No. 2014-ID-3 

CFDA No.: 84.063 Federal Pell Grant Program 

Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance - Eligibility 

Criteria 
A regular student participating in these federal programs must maintain good standing, or satisfactory 
progress (34 CFR sections 668.16, 668.32, 668.34, 690.75, 675.9, 676.9, 674.9, 685.200, 20 USC 1070h; 
42 CFR section 57.306; 42 USC 293a (d)(2))-all award programs- 84.063. 

Condition 
In a sample of 40 students, we noted one (1) student that received Pell Grant awards although he was not 
in compliance with the required academic progress. 

Cause 
A hold status, placed in the student accounts to prevent the students to perform any transactions in the 
University, was changed to a warning status in the system to allow the students prepare the academic 
program and paid the different fees and tuition but the warning not preclude the students to receive Pell 
Grant. 

Effect 
Ineligible students received student financial assistance under the program. 

Questioned Costs 
$2,000 

Recommendation 
The Municipality should establish policies and procedures to ensure that students are evaluated properly 
before the approval or disbursement of Federal assistance. 

Views of responsible officials 
We concur with the finding and the independent auditor's recommendation. San Juan University College 
personnel were trained to implement the revised academic progress standards and procedures, as follows: 

• Training and guidance was offered to the corresponding staff responsible for the evaluation of the 
Students' Satisfactory Academic Progress. 

The Corrective Action Plan submitted with the Single Audit 2012-13 was implemented in August 2014. 
Therefore, its application overlapped the start of fall semester 2013-14. As a result of the implementation 
of the Corrective Action Plan at the beginning of the semester, it turned out that only one student did not 
meet the Satisfactory Academic Progress. Consequently, the aid granted to that student was reimbursed to 
the USDE. Two students' academic evaluation processes per year are currently in place to assure 
compliance and to strengthen the processes of evaluation and granting federal financial aid. 

Responsible Official: Federal Program Manager/San Juan University College 
Estimated Completion Date: Completed 
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Finding No. 2014-ID-4 

CFDA No.: 93.569 
CFDA No.: 93.914 
CFDA No.: 14.241 
CFDA No.: 14.218 

Community Services Block Grant 
HIV Emergency Relief 
Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS 
Community Development Block Grant 

Compliance over Transparency Act- Material Weakness 

Criteria 
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFT A) require the Office of 
Management and Budget to maintain a single, searchable website that contains all information on 
spending associated with Federal awards. In connection with FFT A, prime recipients were required 
to report subawards starting October I , 20 I 0 with value exceeding $25,000 if the prime contract 
award was $550,000 or more. Among the items required to be reported are the name of entity 
receiving the award, amount of the award, funding agency, CFDA program number and program 
source 

Condition 
During our audit of the major federal awards programs indicated above, we noted the Municipality 
did not complete the subaward reporting requirement under the FFT A. 

Cause 
The Municipality does not have procedures in place to ensure they meet the reporting requirements of 
FF A TA. 

Effect 
The Municipality is not in compliance with the requirements of FFT A and OMB Circular A-133. 

Questioned Costs 
None 

Recommendation 
We recommend the reporting requirements be adhered to and the Municipality files the reports for 
the above programs as soon as possible. 

Views of responsible officials 
We concur with the finding and the independent auditors' recommendation. As an immediate corrective 
action, the Municipality will file the required data of aJI prime contract sub awards in excess of $550,000 
made from October 1, 2010 through June 30, 2014 in the corresponding FFTA system promulgated by the 
Office of Management and Budget. 

R esponsible Official: Federal Program Manager 
Estimated Completion Date: June 30, 2015 
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Finding No. 2014-ID-5 

CFDA No.: 93.914 HIV Emergency Relief 

Compliance over Eligibility of Individuals - Significant Deficiency 

Criteria 
Program laws and regulations require that patients of program be recertified every six months. The 
primary purpose of tbe recertification process is to ensure that an individual's residency, income and 
insurance statuses continue to meet tbe grantee eligibility requirements. 

Condition 
In a sample of 40 patients, in 31 cases we noted based on the information in each of the patient files that 
the recertification were made after the six (6) months period. In addition in three (3) cases in the same 
sample evidence about the patient e ligibility was not available for our examination. 

Cause 
The Municipality performs the recertification on an annual basis instead of the six month period. 

Effect 
The Municipality is not in compliance with program eligibility requirements as per laws and regulations 

Questio11ed Costs 
$7,727 

Recommendation 
The Municipality should establish policies and procedures to ensure that patients are recertified every six 
(6) months in accordance with program laws and regulations. 

Views of responsible officials 
We concur with the finding and the independent auditors' recommendation. As an immediate corrective 
action, the Municipality will carry out recertification procedures on every program participant every six 
months. In addition, strict control policies over participant files will be implemented to ensure all 
required program eligibility documentation is properly safeguarded and available at all times. 

Responsible Official: Federal Program Manager 
Estimated Completion Date: June 30, 20 15 
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Finding No. 2014-ill-6 

CFDA No.: 93.914 HTV Emergency Relief 

Compliance over Program Income-- Material Weakness 

Criteria 
42 USC 300ff-15(e)(l) and (2) requires providers to impose charges if the patient level of income falls 
within certain levels of the poverty level table as published Federal Register. Aggregate charges may be 
imposed if applicable. The term "aggregate" applies to the annual charges imposed for all without regard 
to whether they are characterized as enrollment fees, premiums, deductibles, cost sharing, co-payments, 
coinsurance, or other charges for services ( 42 USC 300ff-l 5( e)(3)). 

Condition 
During our test of compliance with program income compliance requirement we noted the following: 

• The Municipality was comparing the patient level of income with the 2012 poverty table instead of 
using the 2013 poverty level table. A poverty table is published every year. 

• In 19 cases in a sample of 40 patients we noted that the Municipality was inconsistent in the treatment 
of similar government financial aid included in the determination of the patient income level. In 
certain cases foods stamp federal assistance was taken into consideration to determine the patient 
income level while in other cases this assistance was not taken into consideration. 

• In 3 cases in a sample of 40 patients we noted that when comparing the patient income level with the 
current poverty level table, permissible aggregate charges should have been charged to these patients. 
The Municipality provided to us a manual card which indicates the patient payment history as proof 
that charges were made to the patient. However no program income was reported in the program 
financial reports for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. 

Cause 
Lack of detailed uniform policies and procedures for proper determination and recording of program 
income. 

Effect 
The Municipality is not in compliance with the program income compliance requirement as required by 
laws and regulations. 

Questioned Costs 
None 

Recomme.ndation 
The Municipality should establish policies and procedures that ensure compliance with program income 
compliance requirements. Among others these policies and procedures should require that updated 
poverty tables be used at all time, detail the information that should be taken into consideration when 
determining patient level of income and the identification of patient charges to be reported and recorded 
as program income. 
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Views of responsible officials 
We concur with the finding and the independent auditors' recommendation. The Municipality will adopt 
the necessary policies and procedures to ensure updated poverty tables are always used in evaluating 
patient levels of income for applicability of reportable program charges. 

Responsible Official: Federal Program Manager 
Estimated Completion Date: June 30, 2015 
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Finding No. 2014-ID-7 

CFDA No.: 93.914 HIV Emergency Relief 

Compliance over Sub-recipient monitoring - Material Weakness 

Criteria 
The Municipality, as a pass through entity of program funds, is responsible for: 
• Determining sub recipient eligibility 
• At the time of the subaward, identifying to the subrecipient the Federal award information (i.e., 

CFDA title and number; award name and number; if the award is research and development; and 
name of Federal awarding agency) 

• During the award monitoring the subrecipient's use of Federal awards through reporting, site visits, 
regular contact, or other means to provide reasonable assurance that the subrecipient administers 
Federal awards in compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements and that performance goals are achieved. 

• Ensuring that subrecipients expending $500,000 or more in Federal awards during the subrecipient's 
fiscal year for fiscal years ending after December 31, 2003 as provided in OMB Circular A-133 have 
met the audit requirements of OMB Circular A-133 and that the required audits are completed within 
9 months of the end of the subrecipient's audit period; (2) issuing a management decision on audit 
fmdings within 6 months after receipt of the subrecipient's audit report; and (3) ensuring that the 
subrecipient takes timely and appropriate corrective action on all audit findings. In cases of 
continued inability or unwillingness of a subrecipient to have the required audits, the pass-through 
entity shall take appropriate action using sanctions. 

Condition 
During our test of compliance with the requirements of sub-recipient monitoring we noted the following: 
• The Municipality engages a certified public accounting firm to perform agreed-upon procedures on its 

subrecipients as part of its subrecipient monitoring procedures. The Municipality is not contracting 
the agreed-upon procedures on a timely basis to allow for the reports to be issued promptly. At the 
time of our fieldwork, the report for fiscal year 2013-2014 bad not been issued. 

• The Municipality performs site visits without establishing a risk assessment process to properly 
monitor its subrecipients based on risk evaluation of previous performance. In a sample of six items, 
in four cases we noted that no programmatic monitoring was performed. Personnel from the 
Municipality explained to us that sub-recipients to be monitored are selected randomly. However the 
risk assessment process to select the sub-recipient to be monitored is not documented. 

• In a sample of 6 sub-recipients that expended more than $500,000 of federal awards in all cases we 
noted that the last single audit report available for our examination was not for the most current 
period. Current single audit reports were requested and obtained from the sub-recipients following 
our request. 

• After we obtained the single audit reports as explained above we noted that in one case the sub­
recipient' s auditor report that program funds were used to finance costs of other federal awards. In 
other two cases the external auditors' report that the sub-recipients don't have proper accounting 
systems. Since the Municipality did not have current single audit reports no action bas been taken on 
these findings. 
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• In a sample of 6 sub-recipients to review the programmatic monitoring reports we noted that in two 
cases the monitoring reports indicates findings. The audits were performed during November and 
December 2013. However as of the date our audit procedures no action plan on such findings was 
available for our examination. 

• In the programmatic monitoring performed in November 2013 explained above the findings were 
reported to the sub-recipient during August 2014 after we informed the Municipality of the findings 
in the report. 

• Although personnel from the Municipality represented to us that they have regular contacts and visits 
to the sub-recipients such activities are not documented in monitoring files. 

Cause 
Policies and procedures related to sub-recipients monitoring activities are not properly implemented. In 
addition the Municipality understands that the review and discussion of the agreed-upon procedure 
engagement performed by an external accounting firm and the preapproval of all subrecipient expenses is 
sufficient to meet the monitoring activities requirements. 

Effect 
The Municipality is not in compliance with sub-recipient monitoring compliance requirement. There 
could be situations in which the sub-recipient is not expending funds in accordance with laws and 
regulations and not detected by the Municipality in a timely manner. 

Questioned costs 
None. 

Recommendation 
The Municipality should document a formal sub-recipient monitoring process. Monitoring activities are a 
continuing process. The scope of such activities should be established on an annual risk analysis and 
documented in sub-recipient monitoring plan. Some of the matters to be considered in the monitoring risk 
analysis are program complexity, amount of the award, and sub-recipient risk. Regular monitoring 
activities such as reports, site visits and regular contacts should be documented. Single audits should be 
requested when applicable action should be taken on any finding affecting the program. 

In addition, the Municipality should coordinate the performance of the agreed-upon procedures in a way 
that permits the issuance of the reports on a timely basis thus allowing the Municipality to be more 
effective in its monitoring activities. 

Views of responsible officials 
We partially concur with the finding and disagree with the severity of the finding. The Municipality 
engages a certified public accounting firm to carry out agreed-upon procedures over all our subrecipients 
addressing certain compliance requirements including single audit reporting, property and equipment 
management, allowable costs, eligibility among other procedures. As part of such procedures, the 
accounting firm obtains the most recent single audit reports, reviews the reports and findings as well as 
the subrecipients' corrective action plan. The fieldwork of such agreed-upon procedures pert.aining to 
fiscal year 2013-2014 have been completed, findings to the subrecipients have been communicated, 
responses have been received and we are currently waiting to complete exit meetings for final issuance of 
the report in the upcoming weeks. In addition, all disbursements to subrecipients are preaudited before 
issuance of funds by reviewing supporting documents that evidence the expense being claimed, annual 
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trainings are performed for all subrecipients and site visits are made to selected subrecipients throughout 
the year. 

The Municipality will emphasize to all of its subrecipients through formal communication, the need for 
compliance with timely submission of the single audit reports. In addition, we will plan and coordinate 
with our engaged certified public accounting firm to accelerate the completion of our limited-scope audits 
for the 2015 audit cycle. In addition, we will improve documentation in files in support for other 
monitoring procedures carried out during the year. 

Responsible Official: Federal Program Manager 
Estimated Completion Date: June 30, 2015 
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Finding No. 2014-ID-8 

CFDA No.: 14.241 Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS 

Compliance over Eligibility - Significant Deficiency 

Criteria 
Program participants should be recertified every year to determine continued eligibility. 

Conditum 
In a sample of 40 participants we noted that in 2 cases the participants were not recertified during the year 
in accordance with laws and regulations. 

Cause 
Internal control policies and procedures with respect to this compliance requirement ate not properly 
implemented. 

Effect 
There could be participants receiving benefits that are not eligible for such benefits under program laws 
and regulations. 

Questioned costs 
$4,342 

Recommendation 
All program participants should be recertified every year to determine continued eligibility under program 
laws and regulations. 

Views of responsible officials 
We do not concur with this finding. The participants were reevaluated in accordance with the HOPW A 
program regulations. According to our recordS the eligibility of both participants were reevaluated during 
the program year. For both cases the reexamination was affective on June 1, 2014. 

Responsible Official: Federal Program Manager 
Estimated Completion Date: Not applicable 
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Finding No. 2014-ill-9 

CFDA No.: 14.241 Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS 

Compliance over Sub-recipient monitoring - Significant Deficiency 

Criteria 
The Municipality, as a pass through entity of program funds, is responsible for: 

• Ensuring that subrecipients expending $500,000 or more in Federal awards during the subrecipient' s 
fiscal year for fiscal years ending after December 31, 2003 as provided in OMB Circular A-133 have 
met the audit requirements of OMB Circular A-133 and that the required audits are completed within 
9 months of the end of the subrecipient's audit period; (2) issuing a management decision on audit 
findings within 6 months after receipt of the subrecipient' s audit report; and (3) ensuring that the 
subrecipient takes timely and appropriate corrective action on all audit findings. In cases of 
continued inability or unwillingness of a subrecipient to have the required audits, the pass-through 
entity shall take appropriate action using sanctions. 

Condition 
In a sample of 3 subrecipients in all cases the single audit reports were not current. The single audit 
reports provided to us were for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 and June 2012. 

Cause 
Policies and procedures related to sub-recipients monitoring activities are not properly implemented. 

Effect 
The Municipality is not in compliance with sub-recipient monitoring compliance requirement. There 
could be situations in which the sub-recipient is not expending funds in accordance with laws and 
regulations and not detected by the Municipality in a timely manner. 

Question costs 
None 

Recommendation 
Policies and procedures with respect to sub-recipient monitoring should be revised to require that single 
audit for applicable sub-recipients be current. Timely action should be taken on any finding affecting the 
program. 

Views of responsible officia/,s 
We do not concur with this finding. The monitoring procedure of the Municipality of San Juan requires 
sub-recipients with more than $500,000 in federal receipts, the presentation of a single audit. For the 
three cases evaluated by the auditors, the Municipality requested and reviewed the single audits in 
accordance with the regulations. As a corrective action for the lack of one single audit, the subgrantee 
presented copy of the external auditors' engagement letter as evidence that the single audit had been 
engaged. 

Responsible Official: Federal Program Manager 
Estimated Completion Date: Not applicable 
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Finding No. 2014-ID-10 

CFDA No.: 14.856 Project Based Section 8 Vouchers 

Compliance over Reporting - Significant Deficiency 

Criteria 
OMB Circular A-133 requires that reports for Federal awards include all activity of the reporting period, 
are supported by applicable accounting or performance records, and are fairly presented in accordance 
with governing requirements. 

Condition 
During our review of the report HUD-52663 for the year ended June 30, 2014 we noted that the report 
contained mathematical errors and proper documentation supporting the data in the report was not 
provided for our examination. Housing assistance payments and administrative fee as included in the 
report had differences of $150,233 and $21,746 respectively when compared with amounts determined 
during our procedures. 

Cause 
There is no proper supervision and review of the federal awards reports. 

Effect 
The Municipality is reporting erroneous information to the Federal awarding agency. 

Question costs 
None 

Recommendation 
The Municipality should review its policies and procedures with respect to Federal awards preparation to 
require reconciliation of the report with actual data and proper supervision and approval of such reports. 

Views of responsible officials 
We concur with the finding and the independent auditors' recommendations. In order to prevent the 
recurrence of the situation a new procedure for VMS reporting and Reconciliation will be prepared. 

Responsible Official: Federal Program Manager 
Estimated Completion Date: June 30, 2015 
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Finding No. 2014-m-11 

CFDANo.: 14.871 Section 8 Vouchers 

Compliance over E ligibility - Significant Deficiency 

Criteria 
The Circular A-102 common rule requires non-Federal entities receiving Federal awards establish and 
maintains internal control designated to reasonably ensure compliance with Federal laws, regulations and 
program compliance requirements. 

Condition 
During our test of the program eligibility compliance requirement we noted the following: 
• In a sample of 40 participants file in one instance the file did not have the required documentation to 

support eligibility. In addition, third party income verification and required inspections were not 
available in the file for our review. 

• In a sample of 40 participants file in one instance the participant file was not provided to us. 

Cause 
Internal control was not properly executed to ensure effectiveness and compliance with requirements of 
Circular A-102. 

Effect 
The Municipality could not be in compliance with program eligibility requirement. 

Question costs 
$13,735 

Recommendation 
We recommend that internal controls be evaluated to prevent future noncompliance 

Views ofresponsible officials 
We concur with the finding and the independent auditors' recommendation. As an immediate corrective 
action, the Municipality will adopt strict control policies over participant files to ensure all required 
program eligibility documentation, including the required inspection, is properly safeguarded and 
available at all times. 

Responsible Official: Federal Program Manager 
Estimated Completion Date: June 30, 2015 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

Finding No. 2014-ill-12 

CFDA No.: 14.871 Section 8 Vouchers 

Compliance over Special Tests and Provisions - Significant Deficiency 

Criteria 
The Circular A-102 common rule requires non-Federal entities receiving Federal awards establish and 
maintains internal control designated to reasonably ensure compliance with Federal laws, regulations and 
program compliance requirements. 

Condition 
• In a sample of 18 participants file two could not be located in the waiting list provided to us. 
• In a sample of 18 participants to test compliance with Reasonable Test required, in two instances the 

participant's file was not provided for our examination 
• In a sample of 40 participants to test compliance with Housing Quality Standard Enforcement, in 12 

instances the participant's file was not provided for our examination. 
• The schedule of prior year and current year utility allowance was not provided for our examination. 

Cause 
Internal control was not properly executed to ensure effectiveness and compliance with requirements of 
Circular A-102. 

Effect 
The Municipality may not be in compliance with program waiting list compliance requirement. 

Question costs 
None 

Recommendation 
We recommend that internal controls be evaluated to prevent future noncompliance 

Views of responsible officials 
We concur with the finding and the independent auditors' recommendations . We have presented a 
corrective action plan to HUD that includes the following actions: 

• The Municipality will revise the information system (Living) in order to add a module to handle the 
waiting list and the PHA preferences. The system must be able to maintain an audit identifying the 
user and the date of the transactions. 

• The Municipality will obtain training from vendor in the use of the module. 
• After the revision to the Information System a new Waiting List will be presented to HUD with the 

appropriate information. 

This corrective action plan was accepted by HUD. 

Responsible Official: Federal Program Manager 
Estimated Completion Date: June 30, 2015 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

Finding No. 2014-ill-13 

CFDA No.: 93.600 
CFDA No.: 14.218 
CFDA No.: 17.258, 17.259, 17.260 

Head Start 
Community Development Block Grant 
Work Investment Act Cluster 

Compliance over Property Management - Significant Deficiency in Internal Control 

Criteria 
A State shall use, manage, and dispose of equipment acquired under a Federal grant in accordance with 
State laws and procedures. Sub-recipients of States who are local governments or Indian tribes shall use 
State laws and procedures for equipment acquired under a sub-grant from a State. The requirements for 
equipment are contained in the A-102 Common Rule (§.32), program legislation, Federal awarding 
agency regulations, and the terms and conditions of the award. The A-102 Common Rule requires that 
equipment be used in the program for which it was acquired or, when appropriate, other Federal 
programs. Equipment records shall be maintained, a physical inventory of equipment shall be taken at 
least once every two years and reconciled to the equipment records, an appropriate control system shall be 
used to safeguard equipment, and equipment shall be adequately maintained. 

Condition 
In fiscal year 2014, the Municipality carried out a project to reconstruct a subsidiary of assets acquired 
with federal funds by reviewing all purchases in excess of $5,000 for the past 5 years. Selected mayor 
items were traced back to physical inventories carried out at the federal program level. Although progress 
has been made to account for all assets acquired with federal funds, the Municipality should continue to 
refine its procedures to ensure that all assets are adequately accounted for and that the subsidiary record 
contains all documentation required by federal regulation. 

Cause 
The Municipality is in the process of reconstructing its subsidiary records and the focus at this stage was 
over major assets acquired . 

Effect 
Lack of adequate supporting may expose the Municipality to noncompliance with federal laws and 
regulations related to documentation required over assets acquired with federal funds. 

Questioned Costs 

None 

Recommendations 
The Municipality must continue its efforts to complete the subsidiary of assets acquired with federal 
funds and include all documentation required by federal laws and regulations over all assets. 
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(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

Views of responsible officials 
We concur with the finding and the independent auditors' recommendation. The Municipality will 
continue to strengthen its procedures over equipment acquired with federal funds and its corresponding 
subsidiary record, including expanding the coverage of assets evaluated and documented. 

Responsible Official: Director of Finance 
Estimated Completion Date: September 30, 2015 
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(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

Finding No. 2013-ID-14 

Program CFDA No.: 17.258, 17.259, 17.260 Work Investment Act Cluster 

Compliance over Reporting - Significant Deficiency 

Criteria 
Accounting records. Grantees and subrecipients must maintain records which adequately identify the 
source and application of funds provided for financially-assisted activities. These records must contain 
information pertaining to grant or subgrant awards and authorizations, obligations, unobligated balances, 
assets, liabilities, outlays or expenditures, and income, as established by 29CFR Financial reporting, 
§97.41 and Performance reporting, §97.40(b). 

The Municipality maintains the two accounting system as required by program grantee. 

Condition 
Management did not provide for our examination a reconciliation of program costs per the two 
accounting systems. Therefore, we were unable to determine the amount of the difference, if any, between 
the two accounting systems. 

Cause 
Reconciliations between the two accounting systems are not prepared on a current basis. 

Effect 
The use of unreconciled accounting records may lead to incomplete or inadequate financial reporting. 

Questioned Costs 
None 

Recommendations 
The Municipality should establish a monthly reconciliation process among the two sets of accounting 
records to ensure that federal financial reports contain the same information that is recorded in the 
Municipality's official accounting system. 

Views of responsible officials 
We concur with the finding and the independent auditors' recommendation. The Municipality will carry 
out a monthly reconciliation process among the two sets of records to ensure that federal financial reports 
contain the same information that is recorded in the Municipality's official accounting system. 

R esponsible Official: Federal Program Manager I ALDL 
Estimated Completion Date: June 30, 2015 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

Finding No. 2014-ill-15 

Program CFDA No.: 17.258, 17.259 and 17.260 Work Investment Act Cluster 

Compliance over Allowable Costs- Significant Deficiency in Internal Control 

Criteria 
OMB Circular A-87 requires that all expenses charged to a federal program be properly supported. 

Condition 
In a sample of 40 items in one instance management could not provide the supporting documentation for 
an expense charged to the program in the amount of $5,773. 

Cause 
Internal controls over program allowable costs were not properly implemented. 

Effect 
The Municipality could be charging unallowable cost to the federal program or is charging costs that are 
not properly supported 

Questioned Costs 
$5,773 

Recommendation 
The Municipality should revise its controls and procedures to make sure that all charges to a federal 
program are properly supported and accounted for in accordance with requirements of OMB Circular A-
87. 

Views of responsible officials 
We concur with the finding and the independent auditor's recommendation. The Municipality will revise 
its controls and procedures to make sure that all charges to a federal program are properly supported. 

Responsible Official: Federal Program Manager 
Estimated Completion Date: June 30, 2015 
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(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

Finding No. 2014-ID-16 

CFDANo.: 14.241 
CFDA No.: 14.218 

Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS 
Community Development Block Grant 

Compliance over Reporting- Significant Deficiency in Internal Control 

Criteria 
Per program laws and regulations required reports for Federal awards should include all activity of the 
reporting period, are supported by applicable accounting or performance records, and are fairly presented 
in accordance with governing requirements. 

Condition 
During our test of compliance with the reporting requirements of the above referenced programs we noted 
the following: 

• In the case of CFDA 14.241 Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids we were not provided 
supporting documentation for all the financial data included in report HUD 40110-D 

• In the case of CFDA 14.218 Community Development Block Grant financial information 
included reports PR-26 Financial Summary, which is used to determine compliance with 
earmarking requirement, and report PR-03 Activities Summary Report we were not provided 
supporting documentation for all financial data included in such reports. 

Cause 
Procedures to ensure reports are prepared accurately are not operating effectively. 

Effect 
The Municipality could be submitting information which is not accurately to Federal agencies 

Questioned Costs 
None 

Recommendation 
We recommend that reporting policies and procedures be revised to ensure that all reports are submitted 
with accurate data. 

Views of responsible officials 
We concur with the finding and the independent auditors' recommendation. The Municipality will adopt 
the necessary controls and procedures needed to ensure that all financial data included in the reports 
required by HUD are safeguarded and available at all times. 

Responsible Official: Federal Program Manager/Housing Program Manager 
Estimated Completion Date: June 30, 2015 
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(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

Finding No. 2014-ill-17 

CFDA No.: 14.239 Home Investment Partnerships 

Compliance over Earmarking- Material Weakness 
Criteria 
A participating jurisdiction may expend for its HOME administrative and planning costs an amount of 
HOME funds that is not more than ten percent of the fiscal year HOME basic formula allocation plus any 
funds received in accordance with 24 CFR section 92.102(b) to meet or exceed threshold requirements 
that fiscal year. 

Condition 
During our test of the earmarking compliance requirement related to administrative expenses we noted 
that the Municipality did not comply with the 10% limit approved by the Federal agency. The actual 
percentage of administrative expenses charged to the program during the year ended June 30, 2014 was 
23%. 

Cause 
Oversight over compliance with earmarking requirement was not effective. In addition this event of 
noncompliance was not detected by the Municipality's internal control. 

Effect 
The Municipality is not in compliance with program earmarking requirement 

Question Costs 
$271,425 

Recommendation 
We recommend that the Municipality establish policies and procedures to ensure that administrative costs 
does not exceed the 10% maximum. 

Views of responsible officials 
We do not concur with the finding and the independent auditors' recommendation. The Municipality did 
not exceed the ten percent (10%) limitation for allowable administrative expenditures during the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2014 nor in the previous three fiscal years. For years 2013, 2012 and 2011 the 
Municipality expended 1.3%, 8.8% and 9.9% in administrative expenditures, respectively. 

Responsible Official: Federal Program Manager 
Estimated Completion Date: Not applicable. 
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Municipality of San Juan 
(Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings 
For the year ended June 30, 2014 

Finding 
Reference 
Number 

2011-08 

2012-01 

2012-02 

2012-03 

2012-04 

2012-05 

2012-06 

2013-Il-OJ 

2013-Il-02 

2013-11-03 

2013-Il-04 

2013-Il-05 

2013-Il-06 

2013-11-07 

2013-Il-08 

2013-Ill-l 

2013-Ill-2 

2013-Ill-3 

2013-Ill-4 

2013-ill-5 

2013-Ill-6 

2013-Ill-7 

2013-Ill-8 

Fmding Description 

Federal Flll311Cial Reports of Federal Transit Admini<;traoon OJster 
Were Not Submitted 

General Fund Wrth Accumulaled Defi::it a.t JWJe 30, 2012 

Deficiencies Over Accoonting Records 

Checks Outstanding for More Than Six Montb.s. 

Lack of Pbysi:al fnventories Over f.quiJXllent and Vehicles 

Deficiencies in the Execution of Property Management Procedures 

Internal Control Deficiencies on Empbyees Files 

Inadequate AccOW!ting Records and Closing Procedures 

Budgetary Deficits Not Amortized in Accordance to Law 

Muru:ipal Li:ense Tax collecli'.Jos Appropriated for F~cal Year 2013-
14 Used foc Expenditures of Fl'ical Year 2012-13 

Business Continuity 

ln1emal Audit 

Tenninated Employees 

Security Monioriog 

lnfocmalXln Sys!ems Strategi: Planning 

Material weakness on Compliance Wilh Property Management 

Material Weakness on Compliance Over Transparency Act 

Material Weakness on Canpliance Over Federal Pell Grant Eligibility 

Material Weakness on Compliance Over Cooununity Servi:es Bb:k 
Gran! Eligi>ility 

SignifJCaDt Deficiencies on Compliance Over Alklwable Cost/Cost 
Principle on HOME Investment Act Grant 

Material Wealaless on Subrec~nt Monitoring Over Housing 
Opportunities for Persons wiib AIDS Grant 

Significant Deficiencies Over Outstanding Checks on the Secfua 8 
Housing Cboi:e Vouchers and Housing Opportual.ies for Perso!lS Wuh 

AIDS Grants 

Material Weakness on Reponing Over Work Investment Act Ci.J.ster 
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Questioned 
Cost Fmding CWTent Status 

Corrective aclXlo was implemented. 

Corrective acOOn was implemented. 

Siuation still preva.ils. See F111ding 2014-ll-01. 

Corrective acoon was implemented. 

Corrective acOOn was implemeatecl. 

SitualXln still prevails. See Fmding 2014-Ill-13. 

Siruatioo still prevails. See Fmding 2014-ll-02. 

Situation still preva.ils. See Fmdiag 2014-Il-01. 

Corrective acoon was implemented. 

Corrective acoon was implemented. 

Corrective actbn was implemented. 

Corrective aclXln was implemented. 

Corrective ac!bn was implemented. 

Corrective acOOn was implemented. 

Correcth'C acoon was implemented. 

Sj;uation still prevails. See Fmding 2014-ill-13. 

Situation still prevails. See Fmding 2014-ill-04. 

Corrective aclXln was mplemented. 

Corrective aclXlo was implemented. 

Corrective acoon was implemented 

Situation still prevails. See Finding 2014-Ill-OO. 

Corrective acti:m was implemented. 

Siuation still prevails. See Fmding 2014-Ill-14. 


